MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 10-3-2023 MEETING AGENDA

MENDOCING CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
P. 0. BOX 1029
MENDOCINO, CA 95460
Business Phone {707) 937-5790 Treatment Plant (707) 937-5751 Fax (707) 937-3837

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

Tuesday, October 3, 2023

5:00 PM

Mendocino Community Center, 10525 School St., Mendocino

1) CALLTO ORDER
2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA
3) PUBLIC COMMENT: non agenda items

4) COMMUNICATIONS

5) PUBLIC HEARING regarding expanded development and/or use related to Outdoor Dining in the District

5 MINUTE RECESS

6) FINANCIAL REPORT
Discussion and Possible Action to Approve District Disbursements/Expenditures.

7) CONSENT AGENDA

All matters on the Consent Agenda are to be approved by one action without discussion unless a Board

Member requests separate action on a specific item.
a) APPROVAL OF MINUTES from 8-28-23

8) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING ANY CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NEEDING SEPARATE
ACTION

9) NEW BUSINESS

a) Discussion and Possible action to approve the three-year service and maintenance agreement for the

Aerzen blower
Staff recommends approving the three-year service and maintenance agreement for the Aerzen
blower

b) Discussion and Possible action to approve Resolution 2023-317: Resolution of the Mendocino City

Community Services District to adopt mitigated negative declaration, making responsible agency

findings, approving the project, and adopting a mitigation monitoring and reporting program for the

recycled water system project

10) DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

Monthly Report

Pl

11) OLD BUSINESS

a) Discussion and Possible action to approve the bid submitted by Cronin’s Custom Metals for the airline

project
Staff recommends approving the bid submitted by Cronin’s Custom Metals for the airline project

b} Discussion and Possible action to approve a $10,000 spending limit for the Superintendent to
purchase a valve for isolation of the existing airline

Staff recommends approving a spending iimit of up to $10,000 to purchase a valve in order to isolate

the existing airline.




MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 10-3-2023 MEETING AGENDA

12) GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT
Monthly Groundwater Management Report

13) COMMITTEE UPDATES
14) MATTERS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

15) ADJOURNMENT

STANDING COMMITTEES: For 2023

Finance:~—-eeeeee Dennak Murphy and Ishvi Aum
Personnel:-—meoeem Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations:------—weeeeoeoe_________ Dennak Murphy and Jim Sullivan
Safety i Jim Sullivan

Street Lighting:—--—--oeeeee Jim Sullivan and Donna Feiner
Groundwater Management:---—-vemcmeeer.. Jim Sullivan

Pursuant to Americans with Disability Act (ADA Title 1), MCCSD will make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to the meeting. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the
business office at 707- 937-5790. :




MENDOCENO C!TY COMMUN!TY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 1029
Mendocino, CA 95460

(707) 937-5790 (1)

mccsd@mcen.org

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
ACTION MINUTES - August 28, 2023

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FAIR STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS
(PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT LAW
Government Code §61000)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 — CALL TO ORDER - 5:00 p.m.. i

Present: Directors Donna Feiner, Ishvi Aum, Matthew Mlksak VP Jxm Sulhvan and pres dmg was President
Dennak Murphy :

Staff Present: Mr. Ryan Rhoades, District Su‘p’é‘ryintendent, Katie Bétes, Board Secretary
Legal Counsel Present: None E £ :

Public Present: Colin Morrow, Steve Gomes Tom Tetz!aff Meredxth Smlth Peter Lopez, Tony Graham, Maryanne
Graham, Jeannie Dobbins - ¢

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2. APPROVAL OFAGENDA
Agenda item 9b will be tabled toa dlfferent meeting in the future.

Board Action: Upon motlon by Drreotor Feiner and 20 by Director Miksak, IT IS ORDERED to approve the
agenda. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 4
ABSENT: 1 (Aum)
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 ~PUBLIC COMMENT

Tom Tetzlaff, Jeannie Dobbins, Maryanne Graham suggested MCCSD BOD meeting be recorded

Tony Graham, Peter Lopez asked the issue of expanded use be agendized in the future to allow for pubhc
input.

Tony Graham and Meredith Smith had questions about how billing is determined.

President Murphy and District Superintendent reminded public present that they could not comment on
anything that is not on the agenda, but would take all of the comments into consideration.

All public left.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 - COMMUNICATIONS
None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5- FINANCIAL REPORT

Presenter: Katie Bates




TV O AIN A Bage 7 e o
TORS — ACT MINUTES — Ayoust 28, 2023 Fage Zor 3

Board Comment Directors Femer Miksak, and President Murphy
Staff Comment: Superintendent Rhoades

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Feiner and 2 by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve the July
disbursements. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 4
ABSENT: 1 (Aum)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6: CONSENT AGENDA

APPROVAL OF 7/31-23 MINUTES

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Miksak and 2™ by VP Sull|van'~:iT IS ORDERED to approve the consent
agenda. The Motion carried by the following vote: :

AYE: 4
ABSENT: 1 (Aum)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTiON REGARD&NG ANY CONSENT AGENDA ITEM
NEEDING SEPARATE ACTION

None
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8- DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT | .
Presenter: Ryan Rhoades

Board Comment: D:rectors Femer and Pres;dent Murphy

AGENDA ITEMNO. 9 - NEW BUS!NESSv '

a) Discussion and Possible Actmn to approve the engagement with auditing firm, O’Connor &
Company : .

Presenter: Katie Bates

Board Action: Upon motion by Direbtor Feiner and 27 by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve the
engagement with auditing O’'Connor & Company. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 4
ABSENT: 1

b) Discussion and Possible Action to review and approve the Groundwater Extraction Permit Application for
10420 Kasten St

Tabled to a future meeting

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16- OLD BUSINESS

None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11: GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT




BOARD OF DIRECTORS ~ ACTION MINUTES
Presenter: Ryan Rhoades

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12: COMMITTEE UPDATES
None
AGENDA ITEM NO.13: MATTER FROM BOARD MENBERS

Directors Miksak and Feiner had questions about the expanded use ad hoc committee’s progress.
Superintendent Rhoades let them know they are still in the information gathering stage.
VP Sullivan would like the topic of recording meetings to be added to a future agenda for discussion

AGENDA ITEM NOC. 15: ADJOURNMENT
IT IS ORDERED to approve adjourning the meeting at 5:48 p.m.

NOTICE: PUBLISHED MINUTES OF THE MENDOCING C!TY COMMUN!TY SERVICES
DISTRICT MEETINGS

s Effective May 11, 2020, the Board of Directors” minutes will be produced in “action only” format.

o Minutes are considered draft until adopted/approved by the Board of Directors -

» Please reference the District’'s website to obtain add/tzona/ resource information for the Board of Directors:
www.meesd.com. - ~ g

Thank you for your interest in the pro‘c'eédings of the Mehdﬁcino City Community Services District

Board of Directors
STANDING COMMITT FES S o
Finance: ettt : ~,~f—-—5—4‘4—— Dennak Murphy and Ishvi Aum
Personnel:------==szcoan - Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations:-------------- <=os-eseceeeoo- Dennak Murphy and Jim Sullivan
Safetv: ------ S —— T R— Jim Sullivan
Street Lighting:-===e~-==- e — Donna Feiner and Jim Sullivan
Groundwater Management:------=--<=r==zux Jim Sullivan

Respectfully submitted,
Ryan Rhoades and Katie Bates




Compressed air, gas
and vacuum solutions

Aerzen USA
108 Independence Way
Coatesville, PA 19320 USA

Quotation Number: SEQ-23-004847

Contract Start Date: 10/01/23

Contract End Date: 11/01/25

Supplier Name: Aerzen USA Corporation (Aerzen)
Supplier Contact: Seb Rey

Supplier Contact: (707) 741-9846

Supplier Email: seb.rey@aerzen.com

Company Name: Mendocino City Community Service District
Company Address: 10500 Kelly Street, MENDOCINO
Customer Name: Ryan Rhoades

Customer Phone: 707-367-5286 -cell

Customer Email: mccsd@mcen.org

3 Year Preventive Maintenance Contract Quotation

Purpose: Annual preventive maintenance can help maximize the lifetime of your machines and help
avoid unexpected equipment failures and costly plant downtime. Aerzen’s technician will perform the
preventive maintenance service as outlined in your O&M manual and will provide you with valuable
recommendations and tips for proper maintenance and operation.

Scope of Services: An Aerzen certified technician or a factory trained representative will perform all
annual Preventative Maintenance (PM) and inspection tasks per the operations manual for each unit.
Annual PM travel and labor are included in the contract, parts are to be supplied by the customer as well
as any other semi-annual service visit to be performed by site.

Services provided during each annual visit includes:

1. Confirm Blow Off Valve (BOV) load timing and setup and make any adjustments. Align machine
and replace belts

2. Inspect the BOV and clean if necessary, Perform a general machine inspection and provide
recommendations.

3. Confirm wiring and power supply voltages.

4. Monitor and record health of the converter side capacitors. These are wearable items and will
ensure clean power through the inverter assembly

5. Inspect the inverter assembly heat sink to insure proper heat transfer and exhaust

6. Inspect inverter cabinet for signs of wear.

7. Wipe down motor impeller(s).

8. Inspect motor windings.

9. Check control unit power supply and various control panel components.

10. Update any software on the CPU or HM, if necessary.

11. Check instrumentation and calibrate, if necessary.

12. Inspect Harmonic filter, if applicable.

13. Verify safety devices.




AERZEN

Time on site: An Aerzen technician will be on-site for up to 1 day. An escort from your maintenance
department will be required to ensure our technician is able to safely access the machines in a timely
manner. Please allow some flexibility in scheduling this site visit. Normally, we are scheduling work
approximately 5 weeks into the future.

Contract Terms and Conditions:

1. Yearly flat rate paid by Buyer which includes one scheduled trip per year, to be scheduled six
weeks in advance between Buyer and Supplier. There are no emergency visits included in this
contract. Travel related expenses are included for the standard scheduled weekday visits, as
well as all consumable parts required to perform the annual PM as noted in the operations
manual.

2. The final billed amount will not exceed the quotation amount provided, unless additional services
are required, above the work noted in the scope of services.

3. Should work above the scope of service be requested, Aerzen’s standard labor hourly rate may
be applied based on a mutual-agreement while on site. Our standard on-site labor rate is $140
per hour.

Limited Warranty:

1. Supplier warrants its services to be free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period
of ninety (90) days from completion of the service. The warranty covers only the preventative
maintenance services performed pursuant to this contract. Warranty on the equipment itself, is
not included, nor implied as part of the services warranty.

2. Parts that fail due to abnormal operating conditions are not covered under this agreement.
Parts required in addition to the normal (1} set of consumable parts, or to the parts specifically
outlined within this agreement, will be billed to the Buyer at the Supplier’s standard parts rates,
and will be billed to the Buyer one month prior to the scheduled service visit.

3. Aerzenis not liable for punitive, indirect or consequential damages of any kind or for damage to
property or injury to persons, however caused.

4. Aerzen will not be liable for special or consequential damages which may arise under this
budgetary quotation, and in no event shall Aerzen’s liability exceed the value of this budgetary
quotation.

Payment Terms:

1. Payment terms are 100% Net 30 days. Invoicing will be done on the day the contract starts, and
annually thereafter. 3-year contract includes an annual increase of 4%.

2. Atax exemption certificate must be provided to avoid local and state taxes as applied in your
area.

3. Quotation valid for 90 days.




AERZEN

See following page for contract price break down per PM Visit

Pricing Break Down:

included in the contract: Contract Pricing
Service Engineer Travel & Expenses included
Preventative Maintenance Visit Included
Parts or shipment Not Included
Taxes N/A
Annual Visit - Year 1 $3900
Annual Visit - Year 2 $3500
Annual Visit - Year 3 $3900

Machines that will be serviced:

Package, Turbo Blower (TBO75)

8075068 : mi

Note: The list of machines provided are what is listed in Aerzen’s data base. During the survey,
additional machines may be found, surveyed and recorded as part of the audit process.

Supplier’s Signature: Date:

Customers Name:

Customers Sighature: Date:




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-317

RESOLUTION OF THE MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION, MAKING
RESPONSBLE AGENCY FINDINGS, APPROVING THE PROJECT, AND
ADOPTING A MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM
FOR THE RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Mendocino Unified School District (MUSD), proposed the Recycled Water System
Project (Project) in 2021 to expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by MUSD to offset
potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply, which will be achieved through
new recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled water storage tank;
and

WHERFEAS, the MUSD, in its role as Lead Agency, prepared an Initial Study/Proposed Mitigated
Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Recycled Water System Project in accordance with the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970, as amended (“CEQA™), and state and
local guidelines implementing CEQA; and

WHEREAS, MUSD circulated the IS/MND for public review from February 24 to March 25, 2022 for
the required 30-day public review period under CEQA: and

WHEREAS, MUSD filed a Notice of Intent to Adopt the MND at the office of the Mendocino County
Clerk and published the Notice in the Mendocino Beacon on February 24, 2022; and

WHEREAS, MUSD posted the IS/MND on its website and made a hardcopy available for public review
at the District office at 44141 Little Lake Road, Mendocino, CA 95460; and

WHEREAS, MUSD caused the IS/MND to be circulated via the State Clearinghouse on February 24,
2022, and submitted the Notice of Intent to Adopt the MND to applicable Responsible and Trustee
Agencies; and

WHEREAS, MUSD reviewed and considered public comments received from the California Department
of Transportation, the State Water Resources Control Board, and the Mendocino County Department of
Transportation; and

WHEREAS, MUSD, by Resolution 2022-09, made findings pursuant to CEQA, adopted the MND,
approved the Project, and adopted a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) on April 21,
2022; and

WHEREAS, the Mendocino City Community Services District (District) is the purveyor of the recycled
water for the Project, and will therefore be the grant recipient of the State Water Resources Control Board
Recycled Water Funding Program funding to construct the Project, and will oversee construction; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15096, as a Responsible Agency. the District must
consider the environmental effects as shown in the MUSD IS/MND and has responsibility for mitigating
or avoiding the direct or indirect environmental effects of those parts of the project which it decides to
carry out, finance, or approve; and

WHEREAS, the District has independently reviewed and determined that the MUSD IS/MND
adequately disclosed and evaluated the impacts of the Project and imposed adequate mitigation measures
to the extent feasible and has concluded the IS/MND complies with CEQA.




NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7.

Section 8.

Section 9.

The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Resolution.

The District consulted with MUSD regarding the Project; the District has determined that
none of the conditions set forth in CEQA Guidelines section 15052 have occurred, and,
therefore, a shift in lead agency designation is not appropriate.

As the decision-making body for the District, and in the District’s role as a Responsible
Agency under CEQA, the Board has independently reviewed and considered the
information contained in the IS/MND, MMRP, supporting documentation, and the whole
of the record of proceedings. Based on this review, the District finds that the ISS'MND
contains complete, objective, and accurate reporting of the potential impacts of the
Project.

The Board finds that there is no substantial evidence that the Project, with mitigation, will
have a significant adverse impact on the environment.

The Board hereby adopts the MND for the Project.

The mitigation measures in the MND are made a condition of approval of the Project and
a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, attached as Exhibit A, is adopted.

The Board hereby approves the Project.

The record of proceedings of the District and Board on which this Resolution is based are
on file and available for public inspection during normal business hours at 10500 Kelly
Street, Mendocino, CA 95460. The custodian of these documents is the District.

Following adoption of this Resolution, District staff is authorized and directed to file with
the County of Mendocino and the State Clearinghouse a Notice of Determination
pursuant to CEQA.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Mendocino City Community
Services District at the Regular Meeting on October 3, 2023 by the following vote:

ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES:

ATTEST:

NOES:
ABSENT:

Katie Bates. District Secretary Dennak Murphy, Board President




L weiBoid Bunioday pue Bupoliuop uonebiw | 109[01d WBJSAS J31BAA PapAoey 1011SIQ JO0YIS PBYlUN oudopuaiy

‘seiadord Buiuiolpe pue peoy xeT] aMT o) SMBIA YUE) JO Buiusalos
sseeioul 0] adeospue| BUIPUNOLNS SLY Yl Ul PUDIG PUE 1SBHLOD [BNSIA SZILLIUILL PINOM
18U} J0j00 B JO 1 jue) mau pasodold sy 1By} 2UNSUB lieys JSNIN ‘Siaises) juaxe sy oL -~ H

‘sofjadosd
JusoRipE pue Peoy axeT Sl Wouf S1iS 8y} jo Buiusalos [ensiA apinoid 0} alis-uo pajue|d
aq |jeyS $98} Juswaoe|das ‘peoy 8T Bl U0 21iS HUE) BU 1& 13S0 JO pabewep ale so8i}j| —

: ‘oies 1] B JO WNWILW B B pedeldal aq jjeys s8] IS0} 40 pabewep aie saai1 jf -
Bunueyd |

: ‘paned Ajsnomasd siem sesie assym Bulreds)
Juswadejdal Jo 55900Ns AJUSA |

PUE UOIONISUOD BulNp PagInisip 10 PaAoLISs 9SO} 0} s|qeredwon sanads yim Buipaasay
pue sainjes} olydesBodol joefold-aid Buioisal Bulpniour ‘patejebenal pue paiolsal

powueld pue pejeino|es 2 JleUs SSIAIOR UORONISUOD AG PBIIEOS IO PRGINISIP SEAUB JBYI0 pue seaJe Buibeyg —
usaq enRY papesu sjuswaseldal ‘SjuepIsal
2911 J0 JBGQUWINU By} Jey) AIBA | BuipunoLns o} speduwl [eNSIA L) SZIWIUI 0} PRISNIpe 8q |jeys SAUOZ YONS JO UONEIO)
ay -ezis sjqesado WnwiuiW By} ag [eys sease Buibels pue sBUOZ UOKONASUOD JO BZIS 8YL  —
UORONASUOS Bunp pajuswaldul | “apnjous [BYS SaINSEaRy “uononsuod Buunp
’ pue wco;mo.c_om% pue mcma w pagUNISID SESIE JO UORBIOISEs 9INSUS PUR SOUBTINISIP UOHINIISUOD 20NPSI [[BYS GSNIN BYL
jeuy U ole syuswaInbas A | 101ISI 100UOS PaiUN OUIOOPUB syoedwi} {eNSIA SZIWHUIA -8V WAL

sopayisay

‘uononsuUoD Buunp pajusweidl aq jiim pue |
“Josloid 8y} Jo suonieoyoads pue sueqd jeul sy ol pajeiodioou] 89 |jIM SUONBPUSWILLICDS) |
1esiuyoejoal ey} Hodal 8y} Ul PAPNIDUL SUCHEPUSWILIODS) BuipeiB pue uoneledasd aus |

| se jlom se ‘eusjuo ubisep ucePUNO) PUB DILISISS BU} LM aoueploooe ur ubisep spnioul Jjim |
siuL Apnis (eouyoslosb eyl U opew SUOEPUSLLILIODD! oyoads-ays ayl uim Ajduwiod 0y 108{0ld i
oy uBisep [im SNIN 8YL "uonebisaaul 1EDIUL0S]086 B 1onpuod 0] 188uibud [eoIuydsioan) |
paioysiBas-euope e pabebus sey gsnin 8y ‘ssanoid UBISap 108loid au 3o Led sy

uonoNsu0o Buunp psuuoysd |

s| uonpadsui jeuoissajoid

pue sug|d jeuy ojul pajeiodiooul
QJe SUOHBPUBUILIODS] | !

uBisep Apmis jearuyosioad Ajiep 1oLASI |00YDS PBYIUf OUIDCPUSIA |

i

suonjepusLIWoday ubisaq [e21ul93}0aD Jo uonejudWS|d]

saonoeld Juswabeuep 1seg

8950202202 ON HOS
100[01d WalsAg I8jejA PoIoAoay J01)SIQ JOOYIS PaljiLNn OUIDOPUSH
weiboid Buinoday pue ‘Buliojiuocly ‘uoiebiA



weiboig Bugioday pue Butloyuop uonebun | oloid WaisAg Joiep palofoay oIS (00YDS POYIUN OUIDOPUSIY

UORONASUOD JO MRS 0} soud |
pBIONPUOD BJ8 SABAINS AJLBA |

JOLISIQ {00UDS PBYIUN OUOPUS

" pesodoud st Jo LONINSUGS 0] 1011d BUIS YUB) ISNIN BU) 18 s8ioads jueid smejs [eoads Joj |
shkanns uoyonnsuoo-aid ajeudoidde sjejduod o 1s160j01¢ payjenb e utglal jeys QSN suL ,
soainadg JUEld BAI}ISUSS JO $SOT PIOAY 1L-Olg NN

Aessasau
se sauelduod aysqol ¥osud

suoneoyoeds pue sue|d
jeu Ut 8l sjuswainbal AUsA |

JOLISIC] JOOUDS PBIILN OUIOOPUBI

seainosay [estbojoig

18np aABny [0J1U0D O) SBIIAILDE JO Boy Apep e desy jjeys Jojeredo syl -

“SIN0Y BoM-LOU BuLInp 81Is auj OJUO SBDYEA
pazuouneun jo Anus ayj Jusaaid 0} suonnesald s|geuoseal el |[BYS sojesado 8y —

oy Jad SBIU G| PAsOXS SPULM PBUIBISNS USUM SSBSD jlBys Salinoe Buiacwyues iy —

‘s}snp auiogie 0] 83 oAb UeD 1Byl s80BlNs

18410 pue sajidyo0ls sjeualew uo pajjdde aq ||BYS S|BOIWLSYD SIGBINS JO ejem o Yeydsy -
‘panowas Apdwoid 84 (jBYS S198is POARU 0JUO SUBSW IS0 40 ‘iejem Ag UOISOIB

quawdinba Buinow yyes Jo Bupiony Ag penodsuel) uesq sey Jeu) [BUsiBu J8yjo lo ypey -
“Jnoy Jad sejit 0L Jo Huwi peeds pajsod

£ aABY [|BYS 'S|I0 10 SIEDIUBYD S|elNS Uiim pajeal] SSIMIBYIo ssejun ‘spoens pasedun iy~

‘SUOISSIWS
1SNp aAIBny SZIUILIW O} PSIBIEM B( [|BUS SBDBLNS PBOI JI0S PaTMSIP Ap Agisia gy —

‘sapjiAnoe vononisuod Bulnp samnseaw
101U 15np suloqie Buimolio) eyl Juausjdwi jjBys JODBAUOY st puB GSNIN ay) ‘suonenbay |
s wewebeuep Aend iy AunoD ouRopusiy 8y} jo (Q)0ck-1 3Ny UM 8oUBpIoIIE Uj

sainseafy [0J3U0D ISNQ (L-OV INN

Ayfenp iy

Kiessaoau
se aoueydwod a)sgol Ho8YD |

uononsuod Buunp pajuswaidil

pue suopeoyloads pue sue|d
[eul} Ut 8l sjuawaanbal AUsA |

10LISIC] [00UOG PBYIUN OUCPUBIY

“aps-uo pajueld aq jleys seal) jusweoedas ‘sigemolje JUSIXe 3y oL
‘paoridal aq (jeUs saa1) 150} J0 pebewiep ase saa) ji “Uiesy 88y asniesald sdisy 1BY) Jouusw &
Ul PUB SOIOIYBA UOHONISUOD SIEPOLUILOIOR 0} fiessansu aaiBap WNwWILIL 8y} 0 pajsidwiod &g
jjeys Buiunid IsieInynoRIoy paylenb e Jo Jsuogqe Bunnsuoo sisLoqly Buinsuo jo Aeos ,
uBOUBWY ‘1Suogie payienb amnynduoqly o A)2100g jeUONBLIBIU| UE JBUYS JO UdIsiAadns
Japun J01BIUOD 8y} AQ JO I1SUOCIE PBIILIBY B JIUIS Aq pareldwon aq ieys Buiunid ‘Aessasat
sy seau jo Buunid J1 "uoganisuod Buunp a|gises) Jusixs By} 0} PAPIOAE 24 llBUsS sayoush
0} Jusoelpe seai] JO suldup Byl UIUIIM SBIIAIIOR UORONISUOD ‘sanbiuyoe) yons jusweidull jjeys |
Jjopeiu0o ay Juswuble ay) buoje ssO| 83J) puB syoeduu 881} 4oy [eiiusiod ey dziunuiu 0
sanbiuyoay Buiunud pue Buiyoual (eroads dojanap O} JSHOCIE PBYNISS € uiejal j1eus asSniN aul.

$$07 @ad ) eziwjuly 03 senbiuyoay Hulyouail 1Z-g3v NN ;




weiboiy Buiodey pue Buuoluo uogebiin | 109foid walsAS Jaep pejoAosy JoIISI(] [00UDS Paljiun OUROPUSH

uononnsuos Buunp pejusws|dw
2ie sainsesw uoposlold pue
Siajng acueqINsIp jeyl Musa

Aanins Jo uonaidlod Ajien

sucpesyosds
{Bulf Ul 818 S8INSEOW SOUEPIOAE |
pue uonosjoud jey) AUaA |

18004 B4} 1X8 0) s1eg Aue moje 0} Buiddiyo 8)s-uo 10 BlS ay) Wl |RACLUBL O] |

Jonid WBILIBAC 1§8] 89 0} SquWIl| 981} 10 381 paja) Aue Buimoje S8pnidul YoIUM $58001d jRAOWSI
ool dois-om) e Buisn pauwiiogad ag jjeys uoseas AJIUISIBW SU} SPISING [BACWSI 8811 "$]S00I
180 ALUISIBW O SI08Y8 8SIDAPR OU 2INSUD 0} | Jaquaidas 8} [un PapioA. aq |{Bys 100!
sy qussaid §| ‘sieq Buysoos-Aep Joj shenins awnhep pasnoo) apiacid (|BYS pue $aInes) j$o0!
pue sputod Anus 9jgens 10} $891) Byl S1BNIBAS ||BYS JUSLUSSBSSE BY | 'PBgLU| J0 PBAOWSI 8] |
0} sea 10} S)eq smejs [erads 1oy sAoAINS JBYIgRY JoNpLoD (|eys 1siBojoiq 1eq payiienb e (Yo
1snbny ybnouuy 18| Aepy Ajjeseusb) uosess Ajuss)ew 1eg ay) Buunp SIN020 UORONASUOD §)

JoLISIq [004DS PSIIUN OUIOOPUSIA sa1oadsg jeg 199)04d :£-01g WIN

Kanins uoponssucoald |
10 uona|dwos AjBA |

suoneoyioads pue suejd
feuy Ui ale sjuswaiinbal Ao

‘SBIIAIDE UORONASUOD BuuNp papioAe aq Jleys |
10U By} ‘PUNO] SIB SISBU BJOA 9aJ) BUIOUOS SANDE AUE || 'SS[OA 99J) BUIOUOS JO DAREDIPUI S)sau
2894} AUB JO) UONDNIISUOCD JO 1Bls By} 0 Joud shep uanas uyim isiboloig paiienb e Ag pakeains |

aq JlBuS 911S 3UB} ASNIA 84l 18 ease joedw) uogonasuod ey 1siBojoiq payiienb ‘pascudde |
M- B AQ 2U0Z UOHDNIISUOD BY} JO SPISING JBJGRY JBIILIS Ul UOBD0| BJES B O} PIACW 84 ||BYS
Bolj Y} pue PBAIBSYO SIBUM BIIEB JIBIPSWILLI BY} Ul SBIIIAIOR UQHONASUOD JBY [|BYS J0IDBRU0D |

3y} ‘BUOZ UOIDNJISLOD AR UB Ul paniasqo st Boyy pabbel-pas wisyloN & 18y} Judas 8y U]

19LISIC] |OOUDS PBIUN OUIDOPUBA $9jOA 904 ewouog pue Boid pabbs] pay ulsyuoN 108jold 1Z-019 WIN

Aiesseoau i ‘pausweidu pue
paiedaud s} ug|d juawebeuepy
\ueld smejS-fe10ads Ajuen

1L JOU S| BLBIO S5800N5 |

ay 1 uonoe sjeudoidde BuILLIBIEP PUB ‘SUOSESS OM] 0} BUO O] 81IS 8] J0 [000j0sd Buniojuow
AJusp! ‘BLBYIO $SB00NS YSIARISS ‘UORED0]aL 10} LONEDO] BlIS-H0 JO -UO uR Sieopul [jeys |
QSN 8u1 ‘uonosjjon pess Jo Buneooial yjog Jo4 Bunueid usy; uonebedoud soy Assinu jueyd
SAEU [B20] B 0} papiACId J0 ‘8}iS-}0 J0 -uo peaids pue pajds|ion ag Isyle |[BYS spass 'semads

payvads sy} Joy poylaw ajeudoidde siow sy 8¢ 0] PBUILLIBIAP S UOKDB|I00 Pass §] Buipesids
poSSs PUE UOKED0[SL LJ0g S1EPOWILLIODDE O} spue| Agiesu Uo jengey Jejus puspr jleys jodal
Sl "UORONASUOD JO LES 8y} 0} Joud spaas Bugos|iod Jo sjueid ayy Bugesoel jo Alqises; eyl |

0] SE PapIACId 8 JJBYS SUOIIBPUBWILLODS! YoIYM Ul ‘AAJCD UM UCHBUIPIO0D U pajusaidu

| pue paledaid aq ([BYS UB|d Juswabeueyy JUEld STIBIS |BIDAS B '9j(ISes) Jou S| @DUBPIOAE J|

‘(suoneoyioads pue suejd) SjUBWNIOP JORAUOD SU) Ul PaYIIUSPI ABSID 8( {[eys peploA. |
aq 0 suonendod jueid snels jeroads Aue jo SUOREDO| DU 'SESIE UOHONIISUOD 0} Judselpe
pajesol aie suonendod Ji pue sjqises; st asuepione §i pabbey eq jeys (Jussasd Ji) suonendod H
‘paddew aq jBYS pe1osiep ale 1ey) sepads jueld snels jenads jo suonendod Auy "Aressedau
uaym saiads jeiuuaiad Jo saiuojod (Butamoy-aid) ajiuann{ jo uonselep BpPNjoLL 0} PAIIPOW |
8q jjeys sAeaing 1siueloq piol payenb e Ag peulopad ag (jeys pue ‘sjooojosd Aaains
Jueid 811 MAAD Ui Aiduios jjeys spoyiawl Aeaing saads 1abie) auy) 4o) (Jowiuns 1o Buuds)
awp Buiwoolq sjeudoidde ay; Buunp pajonpuod ag [jeys sAaAInNs syl juel Jelem pajpioal




¥ wesboiy Bunioday pue Buojuop uonebiw | 108loid weisAs 181epy pejoAosy 10LISI [O0UDS PaLILM OUROPUSH

{ ‘sioidacal
DAIISUDS-BSI0U JB 9sI0U 82| it 0} Juswidinbe uononiisuod Bunesoal Jo/pue Bunusuoas |
Jo/pue ‘Aisnosueynuis BuINoD0 SBNIAIIDE UOHONIISUOD ASIOU 10 Jaqunu sy} Buidhpas |
‘sioydeoss ansues-asiou woiy Aeme sanijioe; Buiddiys pue Buipeo) pue sjuiod SS8008 SOISA |
Buneool ‘astou Buijpt angusip 01 syonyy Buinenb ‘juswidinba Asiou Bunepdn pue Bupeidss
‘)i paads Buonpal ‘AIARoR UORONIISUOD pUe JSBU Byl Usamag sainjons Buluadwep
punos Jo sU9a10s [BNnSiA Jo Juawaoeld ‘pasesd sey Aialoe Bunsau o pawiyuon si Buiipay
JIUN 3saU 8U} Jo AIIDIA B W1 SBIIANDR UORONISU0D aandnisip Buniey 'szis Jayng Buiseassu
‘0] pajiwy] JouU S4B INQ ‘opnjoul ABWL SBINSEOUL 8SBL | "SIUBGINISIP 80NPaI 0} SSINSEal |
anndepe Juswaiduy Ajdjeipawir f{eys 1siBojoyliuio payienb sy ‘PaaIssqo 948 SSaNSIP 4O ¢
SoURGINISIP Jo Subis §| "opew S| UCKRUILLISIBP B YONS [IIUN BUOZ JaRNg au} Uiylm paygiuold eg
: lieus ‘(esiou sAissaoxe “6'8) semanoe Bugsau qunisip ‘IsiBojoujiulo payenb sy jo uowiido sy;
‘ ; ut Biw yey) saniagoy paginisip Buiag ase SpAg Jaylsym sulLIs)ap 0} yeam Jad aouo jses) je
sisau | Jojuow fieys isiBojoyiiuio paylienb ay) ‘“Aeains syl Bulnp pajosiap sie sisau BAloe §] |

spAiq
Bunseu sy} jo sloineyaq pue saioads Buisau [enpiapul Jo AASUSS (€) pUE JS8U By pue aus
i UOHONIISU0D By} usamiag Buiuesios Jaulo 1o uoneeban Jo Junowe pue sauelsip () ‘Ananoe
uodNIISU0s ay) Buunp psyoadxa souBQINISID PUE 3SI0U BY) PUB ABAINS 38U} JO 8wl 8y} 12 ais
UOHINIISUOD BY) 1B S|BAS| 80UBGINISIP UBWNY PUB 880U (1) SB YONS SI0}08) JUNOOOR OlUl 848}
I $92ZIS Jalng "SAMASN UM ‘ajgesidde 4| ‘pue MIdD BUl Uim UOHBYNSUOD Ul SISBY 85B0-AG
-28E2 B U0 paujwlislap aq pinom sa10ads UOWLIOD 10) 9Zis 1ayhqg sy} ‘[eiaualb uj (senads uo
juspuadap 8zis telng) peposu se pajusus|dwl a4 [jeys siayng pasesd sey Alaloe Bunssu
Jjo pabpay aney Bunok oyl Jey) SauLIBIBP 1SIBOJOYHLIO @U] {HUN $B}IS 1SBU DIOAE [[BUS SOMIALDE |
uononasuos (pemoje st ssaooe Auadoid Buiunsse) 1seuU yoee punoJe Jayng e Bey jeys
1s1BojoylUI0 By} ‘JULC]O0) UOIONIISUOD 841 JO AIIUIDIA BY] UILIIM PBI0BISP 948 S1S8U BANDe || |

palinbal § ‘uoyonsuod
Buunp pajusweidul ate | ‘poleiiuiRl §i oM 108014 8108 ASAINS LORONIISUOD
SI8nq BOUBQUINISIP 1Y AJLIBA | ! -aud uelAe [Busws|ddns e jonpuos jjeys 1sibojoig payenb g 'uoseas Buipasiq ey Buunp
; JaBuoy 10 sAep uanss 10} sasde] yiom [BAowal uoneiabaa pue sousqIMSIp punosB J| saiAoE

! Buiginysip-punolb pue feaowal uoneiabaa o) Joud pouad Aep-7 8yl UM ABAINS UCHONASUOD |

-84d Aep-auo B WnWiUIW & Jonpuod (jeys siBojotg ay] "sewads pag sniels [eoads pue siojdes

J0 @ouBsaId 10} BYS BY) BJBNIBAS 0] PUE SPIIG BAlEU JO Ajtanoe Bugsau o 3osyo o} ‘eale
103(01d 8y} jo AuiDiA By} ulylM SABAINS UORDNASU0D-aid JonpuaD [jeys isiBojoyulo paylenb

e ‘u0SEas Buiisau oy} JO SPISINO 0} PAULUOD a¢ 10UURD [BAOWSS Uoieaban 10 souBqInisIp |

punolb j| 'spag pajostold pue snigls |B1oads 0] 510948 108ilp Auk pioae 0} (G} 1snbny -

suoneoyoads Jo sugd — G| youepy) uoseas Buiisau UBIAR BUj 4O SPISINO PUB SUIUOW UM Jo/pue (i) oty Buunp M

leuy Ul ase mmpsmmms aoueplone ‘81qISES) JI ‘PAJONPUOD aq JjeysS s@a4) Buiisau Jo uoie}aban Jo [BAOLUSS JO S0UBGINISID PUNOID |

pue uonosjoid 18Ul AUSA | JOUISI JOOUDS PBIIUN OUIDOPUB spaig BuiisaN 03 eduequnisiq Jusasid :p-0Olg WM |

uosess Bunsau

Buninp seniaioe Buiginisip
puno.f 1o Buipesb oy Joud
P8jONPUOs aie SABAINS JBY) AJISA




S

weiboid Bupodey pue Butiojuopy uonebmpy | 198loid Weishs 1ejepn paoAosy JoMISIC [00YDS PBYIUM OUIOPUBHY

JI ‘SUOIIBILNOU puUE Sainseal
uonosjoud jo uonadwos Ajen

ut abenbuey jo uoisnjour Ajep

Aiessaosu |

suoneoyoads Jo sueld jeuy |

10LISIQ [00UOS PBYILN OUDOPUS

'$108(qo AuBiaun) PajBIDOSSBUN IO PAJBIDOSSE PUR SUlBWS)
uewny ayj Jo uoRisodsip feuly pue ‘diysuBIpOISND ‘SISAIBUE ‘UOHBPICOS! ‘|RBAOWIB) ‘UOIBABIXS |
sjendosdde sy vonesepisUOd oju axe) pinom juawssibe sy spefqo Arseun; pejeidosseun |
10 psjeiposse pue sulpwal ugwiny Aue jo ‘Ayubip sjendosdde yym Jusuiess) ayy 1o) luswaasbe |
ue dojaAsp 0] SLIOYS sjgeuoSEal 1B a3EeW J[BYS TN Yl pUB aSNIN 8yl qsiBoloseydie
payijienb v sulewal 8U} JO UOIISOUSID BU) 10} IDUMOPUR] 8U] O] SUOIEPUSLULLOID)
S4EW 0} SINOY 8 SBY OUM (QIIN) UBpuedsa( A[eyiT 1SO aul AIiou Usu) |BYS LOISSILUIOD
abejlsl UBOUBWY SALEN S L "UORBUILLIBISP U JO SINOY $Z UILIM UOISSIWLWGD) abey)
ueoualuy aAleN a4} Ai1ou Jeys JaucioD ay) ‘ulBLo UBDLIBWY BAIRN JO 8¢ 0} PaUILLISISD
8JB SulBWal UBWNY BU) J '§'0S0/ § ©Pp0D Al8jes pUB U}iBSH PUR 660G § 9P0D SamInosay) |
aland Aq paunbes se pamojjo) a9 [eys sainpaooid Buimolio) oyl A[RIBIPSWILW PaLoL
aq jeys JauoioD AUNoD au pue puy syl Jo AJUIOIA Y} Ul JBY [JBUS MIOM ‘UORINISUD Bupnp |
paispunoous aie Auowilied jeinynd jo swsl Jo 'spool sArib peleIDOSSE ‘SUlBWSS UBWINY J|

UoRoNISUOD BULIND Palojunosuy Ji SUlBWay UBWNK 199104d -89 WIN

10j08HU0D Joj Buiuiesy Ayanisuss

jeul) Ul 8JB SSINSESW 80UBPIOAR
pug uonosjold jeyy AjLIsA

feanyino uononsisuooasd |
10 uopsjdwos Ajuap

suoneoyads 10 sugyd |

101481 [00YOS PBIIUN OUROPUSIY

‘Pejdale aJe S90IN0SAI |BUOIHIPPE OU JBU} BINSUS puR 82in0sal sy} jo AubBaul o 108104d
0} sainseaw ajeudoidde dojaasp jleys isiBojoseydie U} 'YDED AQ pauyep se aaInosas
feinyno [equy Jo ‘edinosal jeoibojoseydle anbiun ‘8ounosal |RoUI0ISIY B S saylenb puy a1
3 "palnou aq jieys (s)esnelussasdel jequ) sjenudoldde sy} pue ‘puy 8y} S1BNEAS 0] poutR]a
8 [leys sibojoaryoie [BUOISSDjOId paylend B 'pajey 84 (|RYS 92.N0S31 8U] JO AUUIDIA 8y
ut Aiaioe Buiqunisip-punolB j1e ‘senianoe BUIAOW-ULIES Paje|ai-uoloNASU0D BuLNp PaIsncoIsip |
ale 'jlos uappiw psuaxiep Ajjeso) Buipniour ‘sisodap Jo sainjeay (eoifojoseyoie soBuUNSgNS |
Aue Jey} JusA® 3yl U} "UOIDNIISUOD JO 1E}S SU) 0} Joid »els Joornuoy Joj Buluies Ajanisuss |
{eamng uoyonuIsuod-ald & Jonpuod o) isibojoaeyole payiienb & urelas jleys GSNIN duL |
uopondisuoy |
Buiing sesinosoy [esifojoseyaly umowjun o3 syoedw SZIWIUIA (Z-83 WIN H

Alessaoau
se asue)dwoo aysqol yasyn

| uoponysuoo Buunp pajuswsiduwy

pue suoesyoads pue sued |
jeuy Ul aie sjusweinbas Ausp w,

12LISIQ J004OS PAYILL) OUIDOPUBIN

SBINSEBLU BAI09YD JBYIO0 10 'saal} woly Aeme Juswubie sunadid ey

Buimow ‘uotieaeoxa pasnbal Jo JUSIXa Sy} SSZILUIUILW JBY] JuBWdINba uonanisuod Buisn 's100i
281} Jeau Buiyouad Jo Ajwxo.d syl BULOHUOL AQ PBPIOAR 8¢ ||BYS SSO 8811 '$B0IN0S8Y
OHLIOISIH JO AIOJUBAU| QUIDOPUBIA JO UMO | 8 o palsy septadosd ou0lsYy Jo abejuoy
8y} uo yuswubie suiadid sy) Buoje 1nNo00 JBY) S99} ]98NS JO SSOJ PIOAR BYS OSNIN 94

seiliedold 91403SiH U0 S994] 192438 JO SSO™ PIOAY L-HD N

$901N0SaY [einyng




uoionsuoo o) toud jeacsdde 1og
PaliWgns st pue suoneayads |

10 sueyd jeuy ut st ued josiuoD

olyjes; Jo Juswannbai fusp

JOLISIC |00YOS PAIIIUN OUIDOPUBY

wesboidg Buiodey pue Buioyuopy uoneBliy | 108loid WeisAg isiepn pajdiosy JOISI [O0UDS payiun OUIDoPUBH

| SOOIABP 04U00 OlEN [y 'SjuswalNbal Jad JuswiyoeRIdUS AJUNOD OUDOPUBYY PUR SUBLED) |
UM Aidwoo jeys yoium ‘uenonsisuos o solid jercidde pue mainel SN Joy peredesd ag

Heys uerd j0U0D OYje) v 'uoNdnISID SZIWIUIL O} LORONNSU0S Bulinp skempeo. aje1s pue |00 |
UIUIM SIOIIUOD Dijjel} @0NPal 0] S{0U0D DHfEJ] JUBWSidW {BYS J0JOBAUOD S PUB SN ot

uopongisuog Buling sjoquog oyjel | Juswajdwy N1 WA

Aessaoau

se aoueldwod sysqof Xoayy |

suoneoyicads Jo sued |
[BUI Ul DI SBINSEDW SOUBPIOAR |

pug uonoajold jeyy Ajusp

JOLISIC [00UOS PBUIUN OUIDOPUB

uoljeliodsuely
‘Jodjuoo pue uonuaasud jids pue ‘alis 4o pawlopad
Bujuesyo uswdinbe pue sjolyen ‘eale Buibess s Joeiuod o) Bujen; yawdinba/soiyan
J0 [04)u02 ‘seale Jnoysem Aue jo Juswabeuew 'Juswabeuegw o)idy00}s [BuUBIBW

Juswabeuew sisem pue Bupuey [euslew apnoul [|BYS SAING YONS "UORDNASUD Buninp
S|EOILLIBYD UOONJISUOD SNOPIBZEY JO 858918s By} Juanald 0 pajuaws|dw ag fjeus Sdng  ~

JuaWabeuRW JBjBM WI0IS-UOU PUE ‘JOJIUOD UOISOla puim ‘fuswaBeuew aidiools
‘SHIX3 UONONIISUCD PBZYIGRIS 'S|0UCD JUSWIPaS apnjoul |[BYS S80IASP YoNG "SSIIALOR
UOIONIISUOD Ylim UOHBUINIO0D Ul PBJIBISUI 24 [jBUS SBDIABP OHUOD JUBLUIPSS PUB UOISOIY =

"80UBQINISIP JBYe B|qissod SB UD0S SE PaoISal B4 |IBYS |10 PaQINISIP JO sealy  —

‘o|gises)
JUSiXe WNWIXBW By} 0} POUIBJUIBW 8Q |BYS BaJE LUORONASUOD 8y} ulyim uoneeBan Bunsixy -

:Buimoyjoy

3U} 0} paliu| 8 AjBSS80aU Jou Ing ‘Bpnoul Aew SJNG TUOHONASUOD 0} Joud jeacidde

pue mainal SNIN J0j pasedaid oq |[eYs (dOdM) UBId [04U0T UORNIO ISIBA V "SatiAloe |

UORDMIISUOD BULIND SJUBUIUEIUOD 1O SHASP ‘BISEM UCHONIISUOD Jo aBIeyosip oy jusasid o)
(sding) seonoeld uswabeueyy 1seg sjeudoidde Juawsiduwl ||BUS JOJOBAUOD S pue SN 9y

uononasuoy Buning sainseapy [041U0D I21EA WLOKS JuswWaidw] (L-gAH NN |

Asesssoau
se asueldwoo slisqof yoayn

suogneoyoads 1o sue|d
{BUl} Ul BB $8INSEOW 9DUEPIOAE

pue uoposjold jey AjLsA

10L4SIQ 1004OS PBUILN OULOPUS

Apeny dsjep pue ABojoipAy
‘(s)huswipedsp aly 1800 8Y) |
Joy saquunu auoyd ay) 8)S UO aARY JIBYS SI0JOBIIUOD By ‘saly jjews Aue BuiysinBuixe Appoinb |
Ul ISISSE 0] S)iS UOIONJISUOD BU) UO 8jgeieA. 84 [|eus siausinBuixs aii4 "S|eue1sw signsnguos
10BJUOD sWa)sAs Jsneyxa sisym sease Ui paxied aq Jou JjBUS SOIDIUBA UoISoIE usAid pue ;,
Ilos 8y} azijigels 0} Alessa0au alaym paulejuiew ag [jeys punosb syl saoge ybiay U sayouy
81 uey) ssef uopejaban Joyjo pue SSBIS BlIS UCHONIISUOD By wo.y uoneeban signsnquios |
‘Aip Aeme Jesio Jo/pue aaowal [Bys (S)I0JORIUOD S)t pUB GSNIN B4 'UONONIISUOD 0 JoNd U,

uoioNIsuocy Bulinp spiezeH a4 PUeIPlip @9NPaY L-ZVH WAL

sjeligjelyl snoplezey pue spiezep




Z wesBoid Bugioday pue Buiiojiuopy uonebiiy | 108joid WelsAs Jaieps pajphosy 19UISIC |00UOS PSIIUL OUIDOPUSH

"S8INSOP BUR| Jo/pue sinojap Aieiodwia} AUB JO SUORRIND pUB SUONEDO]

BU} PUB SBIIANOE UOIONASUOD JO UOREIND pue ‘uoieoo] ‘BulLll 84} JO UOHINIISUOD O

soUBAPE Ul ASNIN AQ PBYIOU 8q [BYS ‘SAOGE PRUOHUBWI $B $3SN PUB| JBYI0 PUE ‘SIapinosd

fousbraws ‘sassaifoid uononisuod sy siapircid asugingLue pue ‘siepdsoy ‘sjooyds

‘'suopnels aliy se yons ‘sioedwi oyjen Aq pejoaye Aguesiiubis aiow ag Aew Jey) S9SN pUEB|
10 siojenisiupe pue siepinoid adiases AousBiawa yim POIBUIPIOOD 84 JjBYS UOWONSUOY) —

'S9IN0J SjBUIBYE JO/PUEB ‘SIN0IOP LOYS 'SUOIIBARDXD
1ano Buneid se yons ‘soptadosd yons o} sepiyea Aousbisius AQ SSO90E 91BPOWILIOIDE
0} Alessedau sueal ay) sawi g JB Apeas aaey 0} pasinbal 84 BYS 10j0BHU0D

Aiessaoau
8Uj pue ASN ‘pavoolg st Aadoud Agquesu e 0] 559908 UIBW BY} SJBYM SUOHEIO[ 1Y  —

se aouejidwon 8ysqof ¥oayn
"S8INSOID UYONS JO B2UBAPE Ul SN AQ paiiiou aq jleus siaumo Ausdold ‘(unoy
! 8UOo ueY} alow) spousd Jauqg Jo) peloMsal Bq ISNW S$a008 J “sajeld youas |a9s Buisn

suoneoyads Jo sugld | Aq 'sjqises) se ‘paugluieW 9 |jBYS SPROJ 8jeaud pue oignd pue SABMBALD 0} §§800y  ~—
JeUl Ul St SUOIIBDYIOU Jepuodsal

Aouablaws pue sjosuoD :
Olijes) Jo Juawannbal AsA | JOMISIQ 10040 PALIUL OuIDopUSHY ss900Yy Aoushiawig ulejuiely pue sispuodsay Asuabisug AJION Z-M1 WL

‘saunseaw Buimoljog ey} Juswaidw [j2YsS J0J0BAUOD S} puUB OSAIN SUL

"SUOIIPUOD Jo8l0id-a1d 0} paloisal aq |leys suonenByuoo Bupped pue peoy  —
‘siqeosnoesd
Aigeuoseal se Jej Se sinoy [9ael) 3ead JO apISINO JNOD0 [JBYS MIOM UOHOMIISUOD)  —
SHOM O B3110U 8PIACId 0] PRIONPUOD
8Q ||BYS SIOPIOyaYERIS PUB AJIUNUILIOD U} O} MIOM UORDNIISUOD JO UONBIYIOU BOUBADY —
“a|qeonoeld Ajqeuosea)
SE 1gj Se Pazilwiui 8¢ jjeys suoideoxs yong "ybnouy) Buissed s) yiom uoloNASUoD sliym
spousd Jauq Ajpwalxe woyy Yede ‘sawn |je je pauleluiew a8q jjeys saiedold o] sseooy -

"A1ESS8DaU JI SUOZ UOIDNIISUOD BY} pUNCIE
sinojep paublis Joys Buisn ‘sawn e 18 pauigluiRW B4 J[BYS $SB00R UBIsepad pue sppholg  —
(sueaw sayjo Jo siabbey
M ‘sieubis Areiodws ybnouyy Be) sswi e Je pauiRlUIBW B4 JBYS S} ubBnoiy sawg e
1e usado 1dey aq jleys sABMPEOJ JO UONOBIP YDBS Ui BUB| BUD ISBA| 1B ‘U0NONASU0D Buung  —

Alessooau Buimoljoy auy ‘o) pejiy og AjiBSSE00U 10U INg ‘epnpul KB
se soueldwod aysqol yoayn SJONJUOD iyjel ] SB2IAS(] [0JJU0D DIBS ] WHOHUMN U0 [BRUBK BILICHED B4} ulim A[dWoD jjeys |




! wiesboig Buniodsy pue Bulioyuon uoneBip | j08loid Weishs oM poioAoey JOUISIC] OOLDS PaRIUN OUIDOPUBIA

‘POIDBYE BIE $90IN0OSSS [BUOHIPPE OU 18U} PUE USYE] BJ8 801N0%3I |
auyy 109104d 0} suonoe ajetidosdde ey ainsus (jBUS A0 auy WO AQ pauydp Se 80n0sal
[BIMND (BQU) B SE sai{enb pul UL | "Pulj S} S1BNIBAS O pauielal 89 jleys 1sibojoaeydse .

: {BUOISSS10)d palienb e pue JOJUoW UBDLBWY SAEN B pue ‘paunou aq jeys (s)annejuasasds) ;
M : jequ etendosdde syl "paliey ag |BYS 80JN0sa) 81 30 Aia ayy u Ajaoe Buicunisip-punciB
‘uononASUod BuLnp palaAcosip ale sysodep 1o saiINles) 80BlNSANS AUE 1B} JUSAD BU) U] ;

Kiessaosu |
§1 ‘'SUOHEOIIOU PUE SBINSEBU |
uonosloid Jo uonaldwod AueA |

suoneoyoads o sueld (eul
|y obenbuel jo uoisnioul A | 1OLISIQ I00USS PaiUN CUIDOPUSHY SaRIAIIDY UoRONASUCD Bulnp s824n0say jeining jeqiil 199304d (L-HOL WA

s824n088y jedn}ng [equ L




Appendix C

Notice of Completion & Environmental Document Transmittal

Mail to: State Clearinghouse, P.O. Box 3044, Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 (916) 445-0613
For Hand Delivery'Street Address: 1400 Tenth Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 SCH#

Project Title: Wendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project

Lead Agency: Mendocino Unified School District Contact Person: Jasen Morse

Mailing Address; 44141 Litle Lake Road Phone: (707) 937-5868

Cll_\ Mendocino /:}p 95460 County: Mendocino

Project Location: County: Mendocino City/Neavest Community: Mendocino

Cross Streets: Kelly St, Ukiah St, Kasten St, Little Lake St, Lansing St, Little Lake Rd, Schoo! St, State Route 1 Zip Code: 95460

Longitude/Latitude (degrees, minutes and seconds): 39 o018 45 w7 128 °46 183 "W Total Acres:

Assessor's Parcel No.: 119-100-03, -04, -23 Section: Twp.: 17N Range: 17 W Base: Mt. Diablo
Within 2 Miles:  State Hwy #: 1 Waterways: Big River
Alrports: none Railways: none Schools: MHS, Mendo K-8

Document Type:
CEQA: [ NOP [ Draft EIR NEPA: [ NOI Other:  [] Joint Document

[[] Early Cons [} Supplement/Subsequent EIR 1 EA [ Final Document

[} NegDec (Prior SCH No.) [ Draft EIS [ Other:

Mit Neg Dec  Other: [} FONSI

__......--.—._._.-.....—-.—_-—-—-.._._._--.—.-——.—.—.-—-—.——-w—_.—_—.,—-——m—.-—.—-—-.—-.—.—‘_.—.—-——.—.—-——-—-....—-..—.—_.—.—--—--—.—.—-_-—-

Local Action Type:

[ General Plan Update [ Specific Plan [ Rezone [1 Annexation

[ General Plan Amendment [ Master Plan 1 Prezone [ Redevelopment
[ General Plan Element [} Planned Unit Development [} Use Permit [} Coastal Permit
1 Community Plan [ Site Plan [ Land Division (Subdivision. etc.) Other: Project approval
Development Type:

[T} Residential: Units Acres

1 Office: Sq.ft. Acres Employees [ Transportation:  Type

[} Commercial:Sq.ft. Acres Employees ] Mining: Mineral

[ Industrial: ~ Sq.ft. Acres Employees [ pPower: Type MW

[] Educational: 7] Waste Treatment: Type MGD

71 Recreational; [ Hazardous Waste: Type

] Water Facilities: Type MGD Other: Recycled Water Facilities

Project lssues Discussed in Document:

Aesthetic/Visual ] Fiscal 8 Recreation/Parks Vegewtion

Agricultural Land Flood Plain/Flooding Schools/Universities Water Quality

Alr Quality Forest Land/Fire Hazard [ Septic Systems Water Supply/Groundwater
Archeological/Historical Geologic/Seismic ewer Capacity Wetland/Riparian
Biological Resources Minerals Soil Erosion/Compaction/Grading Growth Inducement
Coastal Zone Noise Solid Waste Land Use
Drainage/Absorpti Population/Housing [B Toxic/Hazardous Cumulative Effects

[ Economic/ Public Services/Facilities Traffic/Circulation [] Other:

_—-—-—_.._—-.—._—-_...—.—-_._._.—-——__——_.—..—-._-....--.-__.._.——._—..——_._‘.-.—-—-—-.-._._—-—.-—._..-—.....-.—..—.—.—.__..—.—..._._-.._-

The project would expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by the MUSD te offset potable water use and provide additional fire
water storage and supply. The project includes new recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled water
storage tank. Recycled water pipelines would be constructed within portions of the Mendocino Counly right-of-way on Kelly Street, Ukiah
Streel, Kasten Street, Little Lake Strest, Lansing Strast. Little Lake Road, School Street, and within the State right-of way within State Route 1.
A new irrigation system would be installed at Friendship Park, and recycled water irrigation services would be provided to Mendogino High
Sehool and the K-8 School. A recycled water storage tank would be instalied at MUSD-owned property at 44020 Little Lake Road.

el new projects. e SO wmber alveadv exisis fi

i g Nosice of Preparaiion o

Reviged 2010




Reviewing Agencies Checklist

Lead Agencies may recommend State Clearinghouse distribution by marking agencies below with and "X".
If you have already sent your document to the agency please denote that with an "S".

Air Resources Board Office of Historic Preservation

Boating & Waterways, Department of Office of Public School Construction

1

California Emergency Management Agency Parks & Recreation, Department of

California Highway Patrol Pesticide Regulation, Department of

>

Caltrans District # 1 Public Utilities Commission
Regional WQCB #

Resources Agency

Caltrans Division of Aeronautics
Caltrans Planning

Central Vailey Flood Protection Board Resources Recycling and Recovery, Department of
Coachella Valley Mtns. Conservancy S.F. Bay Conservation & Development Comm.
Coastal Commission San Gabriel & Lower L.A. Rivers & Mtns. Conservancy
Colorado River Board San Joaquin River Conservancy
Conservation, Department of Santa Monica Mins. Conservancy
State Lands Commission
SWRCRB: Clean Water Grants
SWRCB: Water Quality

SWRCRB: Water Rights

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Corrections, Department of
Delta Protection Commission
Education, Department of
Energy Commission

Fish & Game Region #

Food & Agriculture, Department of Toxic Substances Control, Department of

RN AR AR

Forestry and Fire Protection, Department of Water Resources, Departiment of
General Services, Department of

Health Services, Department of Other:

Housing & Community Development Other:

SRR

Native American Heritage Commission

Local Public Review Period (to be filled in by lead agency)

Starting Date February 24, 2022 Ending Date March 25,2022

Lead Agency {Complete if applicable):

Consulting Firm: GHD Applicant:
Address: 2235 Mercury Way, Suite 150 Address:
City/State/Zip: Santa Rosa. CA 85407 City/State/Zip:
Contact: Brian Bacciarini Phone:

Phone; (707)523-1010

Signature of Lead Agency Representative: - At Date: February 23, 2022

Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resourées Code. Reference: Section 21161, Public Resources Code.




Print Fonmn

}

Notice of Determination Appendix D
To: From:
Office of Planning and Research Public Agency: Mendocino Unified School Disfs
it . Address: 44141 Little Lake Road
U.S. Mail: Street Address: Mendocino. CA 95460
P.O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Bm 113

Contact: Jason Morse
Phone: 707-937-5868

Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 95814

County Clerk

County of: Mendocino Lead Agency {if different from above}):
Address: 501 Low GapRd #1020 =~~~
Ukiah, CA 95482 Address:
Contact:
Phone:

SUBJECT: Fillng of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public
Resources Code.

State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse): 2022020568
Project Title: MUSD Recycled Water System Project

Project Applicant: Mendocino Unified School District

Project Location (include county): Mendocino, Mendocino County

Project Description:

The Project would expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by the MUSD to offset potable
water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply. The Project includes new recycled water
pipelines, irrigation systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled water storage tank.

This is 1o advise that the _Mendocino Unified School District has approved the above
([=] Lead Agency or [} Responsible Agency)

described project on April 21, 2022 and has made the following determinations regarding the above
{date}

described project.

1. The project [[B will [] will not] have a significant etfect on the environment.

2. [] An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

3. Mitigation measures [[B were [[] were not] made a condition of the approval of the project.

4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan {8 was [[] was not] adopted for this project.

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [[[] was was not] adopted for this project.

6. Findings [[] were [ were not} made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the
negative Daclaration, is available to the Generat Public at:

44141 Little Lake Road, Mendocino, CA 95460

Signature (Public Agency):

Date: {7,/-23/57—

Title: %ﬁﬂ“ﬂ L b7

Date Received for filing at OPR:

Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code. SDNFORNED coPy
; 17 _ o . '
Reference Section 210&4;:0; 21174, Pubh; Rescxzsrces Code. M%gj’z@ggc???% Fl%gt prded or

as 2827-F0@35
Fendocine County Clerk

~Recorder




Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration

To: Public Agencies, Interested Parties, and Mendocino County Clerk

Project Title: Recycled Water System Project

LLead Agency: Mendocino Unified School District, 44141 Little Lake Road, Mendocino, CA 95460

Contact: Jason Morse, Superintendent, MUSD
Tel: (707) 937-5868; E: jmorse@mcn.org

Review Period: February 24, 2022 to March 25, 2022

The Mendocino Unified School District (MUSD) has prepared this notice to inform agencies and interested parties that
it is releasing a CEQA Initial Study and Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/Proposed MND) for a recycled
water system project.

Project Description and Location

The project would expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by the MUSD to offset potable water use
and provide additional fire water storage and supply. The project includes new recycled water pipelines, irrigation
systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled water storage tank. Recycled water pipelines would be constructed within
portions of the Mendocino County right-of-way on Kelly Street, Ukiah Street, Kasten Street, Little Lake Street, Lansing
Street, Little Lake Road, School Street, and within the State right-of way within State Route 1. A new irrigation
system would be installed at Friendship Park, and recycled water irrigation services would be provided to Mendocino
High School and the K-8 School. A recycled water storage tank would be installed at MUSD-owned property at
44020 Little Lake Road.

Providing Comments

A 30-day public review period will extend from February 24 to March 25, 2022. The 1S/Proposed MND will be
available for public review online at http://www.mendocinousd.org/. Please e-mail any comments on the IS/Proposed
MND by 5 PM on March 25, 2022 to Jason Morse at jmorse@mcn.ord.

After the review period closes, the MUSD Board of Trustees will consider adopting the 1S/Proposed MND for the
project during a public meeting tentatively scheduled for April 21, 2022 at 5:00 PM. We encourage you to check
MUSD's webpage to confirm the date, time and location of the Board meeting at the following website address:
hitp://www . mendocinousd.orga/.




RESOLUTION NO. 2022-069

RESOLUTION OF THE MENDOCINO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION, APPROVING THE
PROJECT, AND ADOPTING A MITIGATION MONITORING AND
REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Mendocino Unified School District (District) prepared an Initial Study/Proposed
Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the MUSD Recycled Water System Project (Project) in
accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970, as amended
(“CEQA™), and state and local guidelines implementing CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the District is the lead agency on the Project, and the District’s Board of Directors is the
decision-making body for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the primary purpose of the Project is to expand the use of recycled water on properties owned
by the District to offset potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply, which will
be achieved through new recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled
water storage tank; and

WHEREAS, the IS/MND was made publicly available from February 24 to March 25, 2022 for the
required 30-day public review period under CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the District filed a Notice of Intent to Adopt the MND at the office of the Mendocino County
Clerk and published the Notice in the Mendocino Beacon on February 24, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the District posted the IS/MND on its website and made a hardcopy available for public
review at the District office at 44141 Little Lake Road, Mendocino, CA 95460; and

WHEREAS, the District caused the IS/MND to be circulated via the State Clearinghouse on February 24,
2022, and submitted the Notice of Intent to Adopt the MND to applicable Responsible and Trustee
Agencies; and

WHEREAS, the District has reviewed and considered public comments received from the California
Department of Transportation, the State Water Resources Control Board, and the Mendocino County
Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, the District prepared a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) to ensure
compliance with the mitigation measures identified and proposed in the IS/MND; and

WHEREAS, the District has reviewed and considered the Public Draft IS/MND, public comments, and
related MMRP for the Project.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MENDOCING UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Resolution.
Section 2. The MND has been prepared and completed in compliance with the requirements of CEQA

and the CEQA Guidelines. The MND reflects the independent analysis and judgment of
the District and Board.




Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

Section 7.

Section 8.

Based on the MND and the entire record of proceedings before the Board, the Board finds
that there is no substantial evidence that the Project as approved with mitigation will have
a significant adverse impact on the environment.

The Board hereby approves and adopts the MND for the Project.

The mitigation measures in the MND are made a condition of approval of the Project and
a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, attached as Exhibit A, is adopted.

The record of proceedings of the District and Board on which this Resolution is based are
on file and available for public inspection during normal business hours at 44141 Little
Lake Road, Mendocino, CA 95460. The custodian of these documents is the District.

The District hereby ratifies its approval of the Project.
Following adoption of this Resolution, District staff is authorized and directed to file with

the County of Mendocino and the State Clearinghouse a Notice of Determination pursuant
to CEQA.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21* day of April, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES: 5
NOES: (7
ABSENT: &
ABSTAIN: ﬁ
Chair, Board of Directors §’
ATTEST:
{"\\, /

N /
“
%,

N N o
Secrefary, B‘Sb({d 0}’ Directors




Print From

Summary Form for Electronic Document Submittal Form F

Lead agencies may include 15 hardcopies of this document when submitting electronic copies of Environmental Impact
Reports, Negative Declarations, Mitigated Negative Declarations, or Notices of Preparation to the State Clearinghouse
(SCH). The SCH also accepts other summaries, such as EIR Executive Summaries prepared pursuant to CEQA Guidelines

Section 15123. Please include one copy of the Notice of Completion Form (NOC) with your submission and attach the
summary to each electronic copy of the document.

SCH #:

Project Title: Recycled Water System Project

Lead Agency: Mendocino Unified School District

Contact Name: Jason Morse

Email jmorse@men.edu 707-937-5868

Phone Number:

Project Location: Mendocino County of Mendocino
City County

Project Description (Proposed actions, location, and/or conseguences).

The Project would expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by the MUSD to offset potable water use and
provide additional fire water storage and supply. The Project includes new recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems,
fire hydrants, and a new recycled water storage tank. Recycled water pipelines would be constructed within portions of
the Mendocino County right-of-way on Kelly Street, Ukiah Street, Kasten Street, Little Lake Street, Lansing Street, Little
Lake Road, School Street, and within the State right-of way within State Route 1. A new irrigation system would be
installed at Friendship Park, and recycled water irrigation services would be provided to Mendocino High School and the:
K-8 School. A recycled water storage tank would be installed at MUSD-owned property at 44020 Little Lake Road.

Identify the project’s significant or potentially significant effects and briefly describe any proposed mitigation measures that
would reduce or avoid that effect.

The Initial Study includes mitigation measures for the following topics.

-- Aesthetics (Minimize Visual Impacts / Trenching Techniques to Minimize Tree Loss)

- Air Quality (Dust Control Measures)

-- Biological Resources (Avoid Loss of Sensitive Habitat / Protect Sensitive Species / Protect Bats and Nesting Birds)

-- Historical Resources (Avoid Loss of Street Trees on Historic Properties)

-- Archaeological Resources (Protect Archaeological Resources and Human Remains if Encountered)

-- Hazards and Hazardous Materials (Reduce Wildland Fire Hazards during Construction)

-- Hydrology and Water Quality (Implement Storm Water Control Measures during Construction)

-- Transportation (Traffic Controls during Construction / Notify Emergency Responders and Maintain Emergency Access)
-- Tribal Cultural Resources (Protect Tribal Cultural Resources if Encountered)

Ravised Sepfember 2011




continued

If applicable, describe any of the project's areas of controversy known to the Lead Agency, including issues raised by
agencies and the public.

None known

Provide a list of the responsible or trustee agencies for the project.

County of Mendocino
California Department of Transportation, District 1

State Water Resources Control Board Division of Financial Assistance
State Water Resources Control Board

Division of State Architect
Mendocino County Air Quality Management District




CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR

s

California Department of Transportation

DISTRICT 1§

P.O.BOX 3700 | EUREKA, CA 95502-3700
(707) 445-6600 | FAX (707) 441-6314 TTY 711
www. dol.co.aov

March 15, 2022
1-MEN-1-50.796
MUSD Recycled Water System
SCH# 2022020568

Mr. Jason Morse

Superintendent

Mendocino Unified School District

44141 Little Lake Road

Mendocino, CA 95460

Dear Mr. Morse:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Mitigated Negative Declaration for
the Mendocino Unified School District (MUSD)’s proposed Recycled Water System
Project. The MUSD proposes to serve its four properties with a new recycled water
system. A recycled water distribution line is proposed to cross under an expressway
portion of State Route (SR) 1 at Little Lake Street. Caltrans is a “responsible agency”
under CEQA for the portion of the project located beneath State Route 1, aligned
with the County's Little Lake Road right of way, in the unincorporated community of
Mendocino. We have the following comments:

The project proposes to install a water distribution line beneath a portion of access-
controlled State right of way, which restricts the right of abutting properties to enter
the highway for the purposes of fravel or to construct encroachments. The plans
provided appear to meet Caltrans standards for a transverse crossing within controlled
access right of way: the casing shown, depth requirement met, plan and profile view,
existing utilifies shown, etc. In addition to these measures, a site-specific traffic
handling plan may be required for construction.

An encroachment permit will be required to perform the fransverse crossing. Permits
issued to MUSD are fee exempt, but a double permit will be required from MUSD’s
contfractor. The double permit issued to the contractor will require a fee.

As part of the application package, requirements in Chapter 600 (603.6A-2D) of the
Encroachment Permits Manual (EPM) must be submifted. Chapter 600 of the EPM can
be found online: <https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/traffic-
operations/documents/encroachment-permits/chapter-6-ada-ally.pdf>.

19
¢
Q.
@
Q
w
Q
@
o
Q
4]

g relicble ransportation network that serves ol peogle and rescenis the environment”




Mr. Jason Morse
3/15/2022
Page 2

To streamline the permit approval process, we require the applicant arange and
participate in a pre-submittal meeting with the Caltrans encroachment permifs staff in
Ukiah, prior to submitting a permit application. For more information or to request an
encroachment permit, please contact the Ukiah permits office at 707-463-4743, and
refer to the linked website: <htftps://dot.ca.gov/programs/traffic-operations/ep>.

Requirements for a performance bond and bond amount will be determined upon
application submittal. The deposit required for the double permit application will be
10 hours based on the linked fee schedule: <https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-
media/programs/iraffic-operations/documents/encroachment-permits/hourly-rate-
flyer-ally.pdf>.

Please contact me with questions or for further assistance with the comments provided
at {707) 684-6879, or by email af: <jesse.robertson@dot.ca.gov>.

Sincerely,

Jesse Robertson
Transportation Planning
Caltrans District 1

e-copy: State Clearinghouse
Heidi Quintrell, Chief, Calirans District 1 Encroachment Permits

S AN comFer mommt relievinges § i Py Aol Bt o o~ fes e rens s te B SrvAran ot
Provide ¢ safe ora relicble TONSQONONon Nanwork NGl serves Qi Oe00ie O raspacis the environmen:




CALIFORNIZ

Water Boards

State Water Resources Conirol Board

Jason Morse

Superintendent

Mendocino Unified School District
44141 Little Lake Road
Mendocino, CA 95460

Dear Mr. Morse,

INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (IS/MND) FOR
MENDOCINIO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT; RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM
PROJECT (PROJECT); MENDOCINO COUNTY; STATE CLEARINGHOUSE NO.
2022020568

We understand that the District is pursuing Clean Water State Revolving Fund
(CWSRF) financing for this Project (CWSRF No. C-06-8429-110). As a funding agency
and a state agency with jurisdiction by law to preserve, enhance, and restore the quality
of California’s water resources, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water
Board) is providing the following information on the IS/MND to be prepared for the
Project.

The State Water Board, Division of Financial Assistance, is responsible for
administering the CWSRF Program (Program). The primary purpose for the Program is
to implement the Clean Water Act and various state laws by providing financial
assistance for wastewater treatment facilities necessary to prevent water pollution,
recycle water, correct nonpoint source and storm drainage pollution problems, provide
for estuary enhancement and thereby protect and promote health, safety and welfare of
the inhabitants of the state.

The Program is partially funded by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) and requires additional “California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)-Plus”
environmental documentation and review. Two enclosures are included that illustrate
the Program environmental review process including the additional CEQA-Plus federal
requirements. For the complete environmental application package and instructions
please visit:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/grants loans/srf/srf forms.shtml

The State Water Board is required to consult directly with agencies responsible for
implementing federal environmental laws and regulations. Any environmental issues
raised by federal agencies or their representatives will need to be resolved prior to the
State Water Board’s approval of a CWSRF financing commitment for your proposed

E. Joagum Es cuam | Enssn SOBECK, EXECUTVE DIRECTOR

1001 1 Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 | Mailing Address: P.G. Box 100, Sacramento. CA 95812-0100 | www.waterboards ca.gov

.
Lo WAYSIED PANTR




Mendocino Unified School District -2 - 03/18/2022

Project. For further information on the Program, please contact Mr. Brian Cary, at (916)
449-5624.

It is important to note that prior to a CWSRF financing commitment, projects subject to
provisions of the Federal Endangered Species Act (ESA), must obtain ESA, Section 7
clearance from the United States Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS), and/or the United States Department of Commerce National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) specific to any
potential effects to special-status species.

Please be advised that the State Water Board will coordinate with the USEPA to consult
with the USFWS, and/or the NMFS regarding all federal special-status species that the
Project has the potential to affect if the Project is to be financed by the Program. The
District will need to identify whether the Project will involve any direct effects from
construction activities, or indirect effects such as growth inducement, that may affect
federally listed threatened, endangered, or candidate species that are known, or have a
potential to occur in the Project site, in the surrounding areas, or in the service area,
and to identify applicable conservation measures to reduce such effects.

In addition, CWSRF projects must comply with federal laws pertaining to cultural
resources, specifically Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (Section
106). The State Water Board is responsible for ensuring compliance with Section 106
and is required to consult directly with the California State Historic Preservation Officer
(SHPO). The SHPO consultation is initiated once sufficient information is provided by
the CWSRF applicant. If the District decides to pursue CWSRF financing, please retain
a consultant that meets the Secretary of the Interior's Professional Qualifications
Standards (http://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/arch stnds 9.htm) to prepare a Section
106 compliance report.

Note that the District will need to identify the Area of Potential Effects (APE), including
construction and staging areas, and the depth of any excavation. The APE is three-
dimensional and includes all areas that may be affected by the Project. The APE
includes the surface area and extends below ground to the depth of any Project
excavations. The records search request should extend to a %-mile beyond project
APE. The appropriate area varies for different projects but should be drawn large
enough to provide information on what types of sites may exist in the vicinity.

Other federal environmental requirements pertinent to the Project under the Program
include the following (for a complete list of all federal requirements and instructions
please visit

http://www waterboards.ca.gov/iwater issues/programs/arants loans/sri/srf forms.shtml

A. An alternative analysis discussing environmental impacts of the Project in either
the CEQA document (i.e. Environmental Impact Report) or in a separate report




Mendocino Unified School District -4 - 03/18/2022

2. Mitigation Measure BIO-2, under section 3.4 Biological Resources states, “In the
event that a Northern red-legged frog is observed in an active construction zone, the
contractor shall halt construction activities in the immediate area where observed
and the frog shall be moved to a safe location in & similar habitat outside of the
construction zone.” Please consider adding language that clarifies that any observed
frogs shall be handled and moved, if appropriate, by a CDFW approved, qualified
biologist.

3 Please consider coordinating with USFWS and or NMFS when developing mitigation
measures as appropriate for any potential impacts to federally listed species.

Please upload to FAAST the following documents applicable to the proposed Project
following the District's CEQA process: (1) one copy of the draft and final IS/MND, (2) the
resolution adopting the IS/IMND and making CEQA findings, (3) all comments received
during the review period and the District’s response to those comments, (4) the adopted
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and (5) the Notice of Determination filed
with the Mendocino County Clerk and the Governor's Office of Planning and Research,
State Clearinghouse. In addition, we would appreciate notices of any hearings or
meetings held regarding environmental review of any projects to be funded by the State
Water Board.

Thank you for the opportunity to review the District’s draft IS/MND. If you have any
questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at (916) 322-0355, or by email at
Matthew Meteliz@waterboards.ca.gov or contact Brian Cary at (916) 449-5624, or by
email at Brian.Carv@waterboards.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Matthew Metelitz
Environmental Scientist

Enclosures (1):
1 Clean Water State Revolving Fund Environmental Review Requirements
olo State Clearinghouse

(Re: SCH# 2019079100)

P.0. Box 3044
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044




o Negative Declaration

Mendocino Unified School District
February 23, 2022




Table of Contents

Contents
1. IO IOMMAON ot 1-1
1.1 SEQA REQUITGIIENS o 1-1
1.2 YOI BACKGIOUN. o 1-2
1.3 Project Location and Existing SEHING oo 1-2
14 YIS DRSCIDION .o 1-3
1.5 Operation and MaINMENANGCE .ot 1-8
1.6 Compliance with Existing Regulations and Standard BMPs................. 1-8
1.7 Required AGENCY APDIOVAIS ..o 1-8
1.8 111081 CONSURRHON .o 1-9
Environmental Factors Fotentially Affected ... 2-1
Environmental I 3-1
3.1 ASINGHUCS T 3-1
3.2 Agriculture and Forest RESOUMCES oot 3-5
3.3 A QUAIY o 3-6
3.4 DIOI0GICAI RESOUICES 3-10
3.5 LB RESOUCES 3-16
3.6 1OMY RESOUICES ..ot 3-20
3.7 O109Y AN SO T 3-22
3.8 Greenhouse Gas EMISSIONS oot 3-25
3.9 Hazards and Hazardous MaIeraIS.....oooo i 3-27
3.10 Hydrology and Water QUAIIY 3-32
3.11 Land Use and PIBNNING o 3-36
3.12 INSTBI RESOUIES .. 3-37
3.13 OIS T 3-38
3.14 Population and FOUSING 3-40
3.15 PUONG SOIVICES T 3-41
3.16 REGIBBNON -t 3-42
3.17 THNSPOMAUON .o 3-43
3.18 1ibal Cultural RESOrCS ... 3-47
3.19 Utilities and Service SYSIBMS. 3-49
3.20 IS o 3-51
3.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance ... 3-54
RETEIBMIOES ottt 4-1
( SPOTEPIPRICES vttt 5-1
5.1 Mendocino Unified School DISWIC i 5-1
52 D 5-1
5.3 SUBCOMSUMANS T 5-1

Mendocine Unified School District Recyciad Water System Project i




Table of Contents

Figure index

Figure 1. ProjeCt AT€a MaD ..o oo 1-10
Figure 2. Recycled Water System Overview Map ... e e 1-11
Appendices

Appendix A Project Drawings

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project




Project information

1. Project Information

Project Title Recycled Water System Project

Lead Agency Name & Address Mendocino Unified School District
44141 Little Lake Road, Mendocino, CA 95460

Contact Person & Phone Jason Morse, Superintendent
Number (707) 937-5868 / jmorse@mcn.org
Project Location The Project area extends from the Mendocino City

Community Services District wastewater treatment plant at
10500 Kelly Street in the unincorporated Town of
Mendocino, along Ukiah Street, Kasten Street, Little Lake
Street, Lansing Street, Little Lake Road, School Street, State
Route 1, and at Mendocino High School, Friendship Park,
Mendocino K-8 School, and a tank site at 44020 Little Lake
Road within unincorporated Mendocino County.

General Plan Land Use General Plan land use designations vary along the Project
Designation alignment. The property at 44020 Little Lake Road is
designated as “Public and Semi-Public Facilities”.

Zoning Zoning districts vary along the Project alignment. The
property at 44020 Little Lake Road has a “Public Facilities”
zoning designation.

1.1 CEQA Requirements

The Mendocino Unified School District (MUSD), serving as the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) Lead Agency, has prepared this Initial Study to provide the public, responsible agencies, and
trustee agencies with information about the potential environmental effects of the proposed Recycled Water
System Project (hereafter referred to as the “Project”). The Project would expand the use of recycled water
on properties owned by the MUSD to offset potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and

supply.
The purpose of this Initial Study is to provide a basis for deciding whether to prepare an Environmental
Impact Report, a Mitigated Negative Declaration or a Negative Declaration. This Initial Study has been
prepared to satisfy the requirements of CEQA (Public Resources Code, Div 13, Sec 21000-21177) and the
CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sec 15000-15387). Section 15063(d) of the
State CEQA Guidelines states the content requirements of an Initial Study as follows:

A description of the project including the location of the project;
2. Anidentification of the environmental setting;

An identification of environmental effects by use of a checklist, matrix, or other method, provided that

entries on a checklist or other form are briefly explained to indicate that there is some evidence to
support the entries;

Mendocino Unified Schoct District Recycled Water System Project 141




Project Information

4. Adiscussion of the ways to mitigate the significant effects identified, if any;

5.  An examination of whether the project would be consistent with existing zoning, plans, and other
applicable land use controls;

6. The name of the person or persons who prepared or participated in the Initial Study.

1.2 Project Background

The MUSD’s potable water supply and distribution systems currently consists of two groundwater wells, two
storage tanks and distribution piping. The system is used to supply both potable water and irrigation water
to facilities and properties owned by the MUSD, which are the K-8 School, Friendship Park, the Community
Center, and Mendocino High School. Drought conditions in the region have resulted in decreased
groundwater levels during the dry summer season and increased risk of loss due to catastrophic fires.
These conditions increase water shortages, and the lack of adequate water supply can limit fire response
options even during normal or wet years.

The Mendocino City Community Services District (MCCSD) currently supplies a limited amount of recycled
water to irrigate athletic fields at Mendocino High School. In 2018, the MUSD was awarded grant funding
under the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) to address requirements and recommendations as
outlined in the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Title 22 Code of Regulations related to the
expanded use of recycled water at its facilities.

Increasing recycled water storage and use will increase the available potable water supply, reduce usage of
limited groundwater resources for irrigation, and increase available fire water storage. Thus, the purpose of
the Project is to expand the use of the recycled water from the MCCSD WWTF to other MUSD sites to
offset existing potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply.

1.3 Project Location and Existing Setting

The proposed Project would expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by the MUSD to offset
potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply (see Figure 1, Project Area Map).
The Project includes new recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled
water storage tank (see Figure 2, Recycled Water System Overview Map). Please see Appendix A for
additional project drawings.

Recycled water pipelines would be constructed within portions of the Mendocino County right-of-way on
Kelly Street, Ukiah Street, Kasten Street, Little Lake Street, Lansing Street, Little Lake Road, School Street,
and within the State right-of way within State Route 1. A new irrigation system would be installed at
Friendship Park, and recycled water irrigation services would be provided to Mendocino High School and
the K-8 School. A recycled water storage tank would be installed at MUSD-owned property at 44020 Little
Lake Road.

Surrounding land uses include single family residential homes, churches, schools, residential inns,
commercial land uses, cemetery, and a fire station. A portion of the proposed recycled water alignment
would be located within historical zones and adjacent to historic landmarks and/or historicaily important built
environment resources. The Mendocino County Historical Preservation District Ordinance designates the
area of Mendocino that is located on the Mendocino Headlands peninsula, west of Highway 1, as Historical
Zone A. Within Historical Zone A, the Mendocino and Headlands Historic District, located generally south
of Little Lake Street, is listed on the National Register of Historic Places (Number 71000165) and on the
California Register of Historical Resources. The area of Mendocino east of Highway 1 constitutes Historical
Zone B.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 1-2




Project Information

The Project is located within the Big River watershed and within a designated coastal zone subject to the
Coastal Zone Management Act. The Project area is underlain by groundwater basin number 1-021, the
Fort Bragg Terrace Area (CDWR 2020), which is not mapped by the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) as a sole source aquifer recharge area and is not identified as an overdrafted groundwater basin.
The Project site is not located within a mapped 100-year or 500-year flood zone (FEMA 2017).

The Project site is not located within an active Alquist-Priolo earthquake fault zone and no other active or
potentially active faults have been mapped within the area. The Project site is located approximately 0.5
mile north of the Big River and does not contain any aquatic habitat or intersect any riparian corridors.

The Project is located within the North Coast Mendocino County sub-basin of the North Coast Air Basin,
which is within the jurisdiction of the Mendocino County Air Quality Management District (MCAQMD). The
North Coast Mendocino County sub-basin, like the rest of Mendocino County, is designated as a non-
attainment area for the State particulate matter (PM10) standard (ARB 2018). The sub-basin is in
attainment for all other State standards and for all Federal criteria air pollutants (ARB 2018, U.S. EPA
2020).

Many large overstory trees remain intact on residential lots adjacent to the Project alignment, typically over
a maintained understory, residences, and driveways. To the south and east of the Project area, there is a
gradual transition to forested open space at varying distances, including Big River State Park to the south.
None of the open space directly borders or closely approaches the Project area. No critical habitat has
been designated for federally-listed species within the Project area.

Existing facilities at the proposed recycled water tank site include two in-service water storage tanks (one
wooden tank and one steel tank), two in-service groundwater supply wells, a water treatment building,
water distribution piping, maintenance building, two shallow decommissioned/abandoned water supply
wells, a pump house that has been converted into a student radio transmission station, and a graded
access road. The location of the proposed recycled water tank is accessible via a graded access road from
the maintenance building off Little Lake Road.

1.4 Project Description

The proposed Project would expand the use of recycled water on properties owned by the MUSD t{o offset
potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply. The proposed Project would
decommission and replace existing recycled water system improvements with newer facilities, including
construction of new recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems, fire hydrants, and a new recycled water
storage tank. A description of the proposed recycled water distribution system and construction activity is
provided below.

Decommissioning of Existing Facilities

The Project would disconnect and abandon an existing 2-inch pipe used to transfer recycled water from the
MCCSD WWTP to an existing 55,000-gallon concrete tank at Mendocino High School. The existing
55,000-gallon concrete tank and irrigation booster pumps at Mendocino High School would be
disconnected from the irrigation system and from the 2-inch pipe used to transfer recycled water from the
MCCSD WWTP. The concrete tank would be left in place. At Friendship Park, an existing 8,000-gallon
underground concrete tank would be disconnected from the irrigation system and left in place, and an
existing irrigation system at Friendship Park would disconnected from the potable water system and
abandoned in place.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 1-3




Project Information

New Recycled Water Distribution System

The Project would construct approximately 1.5 miles of new recycled water distribution mains. The
proposed distribution pipeline would be 12-inch nominal diameter to provide acceptable fire flows during an
emergency. A County of Mendocino encroachment permit would be required for installation of mains within
County right-of-way, and a Caltrans encroachment permit and transportation permit would be required for
installation of the pipeline segment beneath State Highway 1.

Installation of the proposed pipeline beneath Highway 1 would be installed via trenchless construction
methods using a minimum 18-inch diameter steel casing for PVC pipe or 24-inch diameter HDPE casing for
HDPE pipe. The casing would extend beyond the State right-of-way on both sides of Highway 1. Gate
valves would be installed on each leg of every tee and services 3-inches and larger.

New Recycled Water Service Connections

The Project would provide new recycled water service connections at Mendocino High School, Friendship
Park and the MUSD K-8 School. Each service connection would include a main isolation valve, water
meter and backflow prevention device. Proposed service connections at Mendocino High School and the
MUSD K-8 School would connect to existing irrigation systems. A new pPopup spray irrigation system is

Montgomery High School, and all boxes, covers and appurtenances would be of purple color and labeled
with “Recycled Water — Do Not Drink” to signify use of recycled water.
New Recycled Water Fire Hydrants

The Project would install approximately 15 new fire hydrants throughout the new distribution system. The
proposed fire hydrants would be equipped with break-off check valves and would include a gate valve on

New Recycled Water Storage Tank and Appurtenant Facilities

The Project would construct a new 250,000-gallon bolted stainless steel recycled water storage tank at the
MUSD tank site on Little Lake Road east of Highway 1. The proposed tank would be approximately 40 feet

wide gravel apron would be constructed around the perimeter of the new tank with a perforated pipe drain,
as needed to keep subgrade from becoming saturated and direct any runoff from the tank roof to overflow
point and away from the tank.

The proposed recycled water storage has been sized to provide sufficient storage capacity for the
recommended operational storage as well as for fire flows. Operation storage is the volume of water

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 14




Project Information

required to meet the average day maximum month demands associated with the irrigation athletic fields
located at Mendocino High School, Friendship Park and the MUSD K-8 School. The maximum month
irrigation demand was identified as 30,070 gpd. The fire water storage is determined as the volume
required to sustain a flowrate of 1,500 gallons per minute (gpm) at one fire hydrant for a 2-hour duration. At
this rate, the minimum recommended fire water storage volume is 180,000 gallons. The total recycled
water storage volume was determined as the sum of the operational storage volume and the fire water
storage volume. A factor of 1.2 was applied to account for peak day irrigation demands, modest growth in
recycled water demand and additional community fire water storage. The resulting total recycled water
storage volume was 252,084 gallons.

MCCSD Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements

Several improvements are currently planned at the MCCSD WWTP that would enable the expansion of
recycled water use. The improvements were evaluated as part of a separate CEQA review conducted by
the MCCSD in 2018. The improvements include upgrades to the existing WWTP at 10500 Kelly Street,
including:

—  New chlorination system

— New below-grade chlorine contact chamber and recycled water storage

—  New recycled water pumping system

~ Recycled water piping to distribution system point of connection at Kelly Street / Ukiah Street

—  SCADA monitoring and control equipment for tank level and water quality monitoring

Project Construction

A description of the proposed Project construction activities is provided below.

Construction Duration and Hours

Construction of the Project is expected to begin in 2023 and is conservatively assumed to require
approximately 10 months to complete, taking into account time for mobilization, demobilization, and wet
weather delays. Construction activities would generally occur Monday to Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM. The
Project is not anticipated to require nighttime construction work or construction on weekends or legal
holidays.

Construction Staging

Prior to construction, the contractor and its subcontractors would mobilize resources to staging areas. This
would include transport of construction vehicles and equipment, as well as delivery and storage of
construction materials. The contractor may also secure a job site trailer and portable sanitary facilities at
certain staging areas. Several staging areas may be used to store construction materials and equipment
during construction. Construction staging within and adjacent to County of Mendocino road rights-of-way
would occur along various portions of the alignment in areas where work was occurring. This type of
staging would generally include short-term staging of construction equipment and materials along
residential streets where curbside parking is available or on undeveloped properties. Notifications to
adjacent residences would be provided in advance of such work and staging, and the contractor would be
required to enter into an agreement with property owners for use of private property.

Mendocino Unified School District Recyclad Water System Project 1-5




Project Information

Construction Equipment

A variety of construction equipment would be used to build the Project. This would include, but not
necessarily be limited to, excavators, backhoes, front end loaders, scrapers, graders, concrete saws,
cranes, jackhammers, impact driver for shoring installation, winches, chainsaws, forklifts, rollers, asphalt
road pavers, compactors, air compressors, generator sets, and pneumatic tools. A variety of trucks
including cement mixers, haul trucks, and water trucks would also be required.

System Decommissioning

Project construction activities would include abandonment of existing recycled water pipelines from the
MCCSD WWTP to Mendocino High School, as well as an existing 55,000-gallon concrete tank and
irrigation booster pumps at Mendocino High School. At Friendship Park, an existing 8,000-gallon
underground concrete tank would be disconnected from the irrigation system, and an existing irrigation
system would be abandoned. These activities would require the use of construction equipment such as an
excavator, bulidozer, backhoe, grader, and concrete saws. Additional equipment likely to be used would
include air compressors, generator sets, and pneumatic and electric powered tools.

Pipeline Construction

The proposed recycled water pipeline would be installed using a combination of open-trench methods and
horizontal directional drilling (HDD). Underground utility mains would be identified and labeled in the field
prior to construction, including sanitary sewer, water, electrical, natural gas, telecommunications, storm
drains, streetlights, and other fiber optic lines. Potholing may be implemented along portions of the
alignment to further confirm utility locations, which would include the digging of test holes to uncover utilities
to help ascertain horizontal and vertical locations. The Project is being designed to minimize displacement
of existing utilities to the extent feasible. However, in some locations, existing gas, water, electrical, and
fiber optic lines would potentially need to be relocated within the road right-of-way to accommodate the
Project.

In accordance with County of Mendocino and Caltrans requirements, the construction contractor would be
required to obtain an applicable encroachment permit from the County for work within County roadways,
and from Caltrans prior to work within the Highway 1 right-of-way. The encroachment permit applications
would, in both cases, require the development and implementation of traffic and pedestrian control plans to
preserve access and ensure public safety, which would typically include:

- Traffic controls, signs, and flaggers conforming with current California Manual of Uniform Traffic Control
Devices

— Pedestrian and bicycle control devices

- Notifications/arrangements to public for any driveway access restrictions

— Notifications to public transit agencies, emergency responders, and school systems

—  Scheduling of major lane/road closures during off-peak hours

The majority of the proposed recycled water pipeline would be installed using open-trench methods. Under

this method, the construction sequence would typically include removing the ground surface along the

pipeline alignment; excavating a trench; preparing and installing pipeline section; installing vaults,

manholes, and other pipeline components; backfilling the trench with non-expansive fills; restoring

preconstruction contours; and revegetating and paving the pipeline alignments. The maximum amount of

open trench permitted in any one location would be the length necessary to accommodate the amount of
pipe installed and backfilled in a single day. Trenches would be fully backfilled at the end of each day or, in

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 1-8




Project Information

lieu thereof, would be covered by heavy steel plates adequately braced and capable of supporting vehicular
traffic in those locations where it is impractical to backfill at the end of each day. Pipelines would be
installed at depths ranging from approximately 3 to 6 feet below ground surface.

The installation of the proposed recycled water pipeline beneath Highway 1 would be tunneled using HDD
techniques. HDD is a guided, steerable drilling system used for the trenchless installation of pipes,
conduits, and cables. A pilot bore path would be excavated in a shallow arc from a surface-launched drill
rig. Excavation would take place with fluid assisted cutting from a drilling tool on the drill string. As a final
step, the carrier pipe would be pulled into the fluid-stabilized bore. Typical construction equipment for the
HDD method would include drilling rigs, excavators, crane, rough terrain fork lift, mud pumping units,
material separation plants, frac tanks, and vacuum trucks. The depth of the pipe would range between
approximately 4 and 22 feet below Highway 1.

If needed, temporary groundwater dewatering would be conducted to provide a dry work area in trench
excavations. Dewatering would involve pumping water out of a trench. Groundwater would typically be
pumped to Baker tanks (or other similar type of settling tank). Following the settling process provided by a
tank, the groundwater would typically be pumped to a bag and cartridge filter system (or similar system)
before being discharged under permit to the sanitary sewer system.

Tank Construction

The proposed new recycled water tank would be constructed using slab-on-grade foundations resting on
engineered fill materials. Seismic design of the new tank would conform to the most recent version of the
California Building Code (CBC), ASCE 7-2010, ACI 318/350/372 and the AWWA D110 design standards
with any local amendments. The tank would utilize flexible piping and other connections to minimize
damage during a seismic event in accordance with site-specific geotechnical recommendations.

Restoration

Existing paving, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, utilities, landscaping, irrigation systems, planting and other
improvements that would be removed, damaged or disturbed due to the installation of the recycled water
facilities would be replaced in kind to pre-existing conditions or better. Restoration of paved areas would be
in accordance with the requirements of Mendocino County standards and Caltrans Specifications and
Standards Section 39 Asphalt Concrete. Pavement restoration and other facilities restoration would be
constructed to finish grades compatible with adjacent undisturbed pavement and other facilities (i.e., valve
lids, manhole covers, etc.). Damaged pavement striping also would be replaced in kind. Wherever
sidewalks are removed for purposes of construction, the suitable temporary sidewalks would be installed
promptly after backfilling and would be maintained in satisfactory condition until the final restoration there
has been made.

Waste Management

Site preparation, including demolition, clearing and grading of the Project site as necessary would require
the removal and off-haul of materials. This would include, but not necessarily be limited to, vegetation,
concrete, asphalt and fill, and certain existing utilities that would be removed and replaced. The Project
contractor would be required to develop and implement a waste management plan according to ASTM E
1609 and the Project specifications, including measures to divert construction waste from landfills by using
recycling, reuse, salvage, and other diversion programs. Materials that could not be reused or composted
at local facilities would be disposed of at regional landfills.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Projsct 127




Project information

1.5 Operation and Maintenance

1.6 Compliance with Existing Regulations and Standard BMPs

The Project will abide by the following regulations and industry-accepted Best Management Practices
(BMPs) to reduce or avoid potential adverse effects that could result from construction or operation of the
Project. In addition to these BMPs, mitigation measures are presented in the following analysis sections in

Implementation of Geotechnical Design Recommendations

As part of the Project design process, the MUSD has engaged a California-registered Geotechnical
Engineer to conduct a geotechnical investigation. The MUSD will design the Project to comply with the site-
specific recommendations made in the geotechnical study. This will include design in accordance with the

1.7 Required Agency Approvals

Construction and operation of the proposed Project would be required to adhere to applicable regulations,
including local, State, and federal recycled water regulations. As CEQA Lead Agency, the MUSD would

—~ County of Mendocino: The Project would require an Encroachment Permit from the Mendocino
County Department of Transportation for improvements made within the County right-of-way, as well as
a Use Permit and possibly a Coastal Development Permit and Building Permit from the Mendocino
County Planning & Building Services Department. The Project may also be subject to review by the
Mendocino Historical Review Board for construction activity within Historical Zone A, as designated by
the Mendocino County Historical Preservation District Ordinance.

— California Department of Transportation (Caltrans): The Project would require a Utility
Encroachment Permit from Caltrans District 1 for the pipeline crossing beneath Highway 1, as well as a
Transportation Permit for the movement of oversized or excessive load vehicles on Highway 1.

~ State Water Resources Control Board Division of Financial Assistance: The Project would require
a State Revolving Fund Application and Section 1086 Consultations.

— State Water Resources Control Board: The Project may require a General Construction Permit if the
project disturbs land exceeding one acre.

Mendocine Unified School District Recycled Water Systerm Project 1.8




i

ot

| 2inbiy dey ealy Jo00id

sy o

DD R ORI Lo Sy

apuLeT Sieg R I Rk
- op uoisiAaYy 120014 walsAg Jajem pajohooy ®5 om0 o oot
19L0LZHL O Walong 14513 jeoyds payiun outopuay BISHY 05 1y

il
SERY,
2 Ajunuwiwos i

Sk
salepunog
josieq "xoxddy
oS jooydg |
pajjiun oupsopualy

puaba |



Project Information

1.8 Tribal Consultation

The MUSD has no record of receiving requests for notification of Proposed projects from California Native
American tribes pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1.

Mendocino Unifiag School District Recycled Water System Project 1.9




o iy oy i

e T
Z ainbid

[ ECEINEL)
waskg 101epm pejohosy
ot
eoee aed oy j—
-~ O} UOSIAY rajosd waishg salep paipAsIY < wr o ®
[EYLIRATIC R uCN] OIS |0OYDS PALIUN OUIIOPUIY 15 oz it

(1 1os8Uu] 995)
e uoONSBULOY WBISAS
| sndwes 4
| joouog UBIHf ¢

g (g 19sU] 898)
a LoRoAUUOD WalSAS |

S_Z,wmwmc_



Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

2. Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact
that is a “Potentially Significant Impact” as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. Where checked below,
the topic with a “Potentially Significant Impact’ would be addressed in an environmental impact report:

] Aesthetics 7] Greenhouse Gas Emissions [ Public Services

[] Agricultural & Forestry Resources [] Hazards & Hazardous Materials [[] Recreation

] Air Quality [ Hydrology/Water Quality ] Transportation

[} Energy [] Land Use/Planning [] Tribal Cuitural Resources

] Biological Resources ] Mineral Resources [] Utilities/Service Systems

[] Cultural Resources ] Noise [] wildfire

] Geology/Soils 1 Population/Housing [] Mandatory Findings of Significance

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency)
On the basis of this initial evaluation:

] | find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE
DECLARATION would be prepared.

X | find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there would not be
a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the project
proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION would be prepared.

] | find that the proposed MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
REPORT is required.

M | find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or “potentially significant unless
mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect: (1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier
document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the
earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must
analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.

! | find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or “potentially significant uniess
mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least one effect: (1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document
pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (2) has been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or
NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project,
nothing further is required.

February 23. 2022

% Signatuie Date

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  2-1




Environmental Analysis

3. Environmental Analysis

3.1 Aesthetics

Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project:

i

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic v
| vista? ’ ‘

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, |
but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and § v 3
historic buildings within a state scenic highway? I

¢) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the

existing visual character or quality of public view of
: the site and its surroundings? (Public Views are
those that are experienced from publicly ; v
accessible vantage point). If the project is in an !
urbanized area, would the project conflict with
applicable zoning and other regulations governing
scenic quality?

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare | |
: which would adversely affect day or nighttime ; } v
views in the area? 1

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? (Less than Significant)

The Mendocino County Coastal Element and the California Coastal Act seek to protect views to and along
the ocean and scenic coastal areas to minimize alteration of natural land forms. The California Department
of Parks and Recreation’s California Coastline Preservation and Recreation Plan (CDPR 1971) identified
Town of Mendocino as a State priority for protection of its natural, scenic, and historic coastal landscape
through a combination of public acquisition, comprehensive planning, primary reliance on local government
administration with full public participation, and State coastal agency oversight. Successful conservation,
preservation, and restoration since before enactment of the 1972 California Coastal Zone Conservation Act
have both protected numerous landmark buildings, historic buildings, and other historic structures in the
Town of Mendocino, and resuited in the initial public acquisition of the scenic and public recreational open
space of Mendocino Headlands State Park.

The Project area is not located within a visual resource area as designated in the Mendocino County
Coastal Element, the Mendocino County General Plan, or the California Coastline Preservation and
Recreation Plan. The Project corridor is mostly developed with existing paved roadways and with existing
water storage facilities. The Project site is not located within a designated highly scenic area or within a
coastal viewshed from public areas such as roads, parks and trails. Following construction, the proposed
new recycled water pipeline would be located below ground and would not impede or alter views.
Construction at the MUSD tank site on Little Lake Road east of State Highway 1 would include construction
of a new approximately 250,000 gallon bolted stainless steel storage tank. The proposed improvements

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-1




Environmental Analysis

would not block coastal views or views of ridgelines from public roadways or other vantage points. The
viewshed of the Project area would not substantially change as a result of the Project. Therefore, impacts
on a scenic vista would be less than significant.

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? (Less than Significant)

The Project is not located within or adjacent to an officially designated scenic highway. State Route 1 within
Mendocino County is identified as eligible to become an officially designated scenic highway (Caltrans
2021). An eligible State Scenic Highway designation differs from an official designation and does not
require local jurisdictions to enact a scenic corridor protection program. In addition, the proposed recycled
pipeline that would cross State Route 1 would be located below ground. The impact would be less than
significant.

c} In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of
public view of the site and its surroundings? (Public Views are those that are experienced
from publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the
project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality? (Less
than Significant with Mitigation)

The Mendocino County Historical Preservation District Ordinance designates the area of Mendocino that is
located on the Mendocino Headlands peninsula, west of Highway 1, as Historical Zone A. Within Historical
Zone A, the Mendocino and Headlands Historic District, located generally south of Little Lake Street, is
listed on the National Register of Historic Places (Number 71000165) and on the California Register of
Historical Resources. The Historical Preservation District for the Town of Mendocino, first incorporated by
ordinance in the Mendocino County Code in 1973, established the Mendocino Historical Review Board that
must approve activities and other work, including demolition, construction, remodeling, excavation, and
painting within Historical Zone A, comprising the 19th century town west of Highway 1. The area of
Mendocino east of Highway 1 constitutes Historical Zone B. The Mendocino Historical Review Board has
less specific powers of approval in Historical Zone B.

Mendocino Town Design Guidelines Policy DG-1 specifies that all new development shall be designed to
be compatible with the historical design character of the Town. Actions DG-1.4 of the Design Guidelines
specifies that new buildings, and rehabilitation, redevelopment, and renovation of existing structures in the
Mendocino and Headlands Historical Preservation District and throughout the Town shall (a) be consistent
with the historical community character of the Town, and (b) not degrade the setting of buildings of
landmark stature.

The proposed Project improvements would occur within the existing road rights-of-way in Historical Zone A.
Installation of new fire hydrants within Historical Zone A would be required to adhere to the design
requirements of the Mendocino Historical Review Board to ensure compatibility with the historical design
character of the Town. Neither construction nor operation of the Project would materially alter adjacent built
environment resources within Zone A, and construction activities would not require the removal of adjacent
street trees or vegetation in the vicinity of the properties. Existing paving, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, utilities,
and other improvements within the area of potential effect that are disturbed due to the installation the
recycled water facilities would be replaced in kind to pre-existing conditions or better. Restoration of paved
areas would be in accordance with the requirements of Mendocino County standards and Caltrans
Specifications and Standards Section 39 Asphalt Concrete.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-2




Environmentaj Analysis

Nevertheless, during construction, the presence of Machinery and disturbed ground surfaces would resuit in

short-term changes to localized visya| character. Construction areas would pe visible from adjacent
residences, businesses ang from travelers on public roadways. Because of the nature of pipeline

level.

Mitigation
Mitigation Measure AES. 1 would reduce the temporary construction-relateq impact on visual character to a
Iess~than-signiﬁcant level by minimizing and restoring areas disturbed during construction, by minimizing
tree loss, replanting trees, and incorporating aesthetic elements into the proposed improvements.
Mitigation Measure AES-2 would reduce the impact related to Potential tree loss to a less-than-signiﬁcant
level by minimizing tree removals and replacing any trees lost to reestablish the visyag] character that the
trees help provide,

Mendocing Unified Schoo) District Recycled Water System Project 3.3



Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measure AES-1: Minimize Visual Impacts

The MUSD shall reduce construction disturbance and ensure restoration of areas disturbed during
construction. Measures shall include:

_ The size of construction zones and staging areas shall be the minimum operable size. The
location of such zones shall be adjusted to minimize the visual impacts to surrounding
residents.

- Staging areas and other areas disturbed or scarred by construction activities shall be restored
and revegetated, including restoring pre-Project topographic features and reseeding with
species comparable to those removed or disturbed during construction and repaving, where
areas were previously paved.

- Iftrees are damaged or lost, trees shall be replaced at a minimum of a 1:1 ratio.

~ Iftrees are damaged or lost at the tank site on Little Lake Road, replacement trees shall be
planted on-site to provide visual screening of the site from Little Lake Road and adjacent
properties.

_ To the extent feasible, MUSD shall ensure that the proposed new tank is of a color that would
minimize visual contrast and blend in with the surrounding landscape to increase screening of
tank views from Little Lake Road and adjoining properties.

Mitigation Measure AES-2: Trenching Techniques to Minimize Tree L.oss

The MUSD shall retain a certified arborist to develop special trenching and pruning techniques to
minimize the potential for tree impacts and tree loss along the alignment. The contractor shall
implement such techniques. Construction activities within the dripline of trees adjacent to trenches
shall be avoided to the extent feasible during construction. If pruning of trees is necessary, pruning
shall be completed by either a certified arborist or by the contractor under supervision of either an
International Society of Arboriculture qualified arborist, American Society of Consulting Arborists
consulting arborist, or a qualified horticulturalist. Pruning shall be completed to the minimum degree
necessary to accommodate construction vehicles and in a manner that helps preserve tree health.
If trees are damaged or lost, trees shall be replaced. To the extent allowable, replacement trees
shall be planted on-site.

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area? (No Impact)

No construction would occur after dark. Therefore, nighttime lighting would not be required during
construction. No impact would result during construction.

The proposed recycled water distribution system would be located below ground and would not include new
exterior lighting. The proposed new recycle water storage tank would not create new sources of substantial
light or glare. No operational impact would result.

Mendesino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-4




Environmental Analysis

3.2 Agriculture and Forest Resources

Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or
Farmiand of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the : v
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural
use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or ’ v
a Williamson Act contract?

- ¢) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning

‘ of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources
Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by v
Public Resources Code section 4526), or
timberland zoned Timberland Production (as
defined by Government Code section 51104(g))?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of ‘ , :' v
forest land to non-forest use?

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment
which, due to their location or nature, could result v
in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use
or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

a-e) Convert farmland or forestland or conflict with zoning? (No Impact)

The Project would not be located in lands designated as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide Importance (CDC 2021a), or on land under a Williamson Act contract (Mendocino County 2014).
The Project would not be constructed on land zoned for agricultural or forestland uses and is located on
land designated as urban and built-up. Thus, the Project would not convert Important Farmland, land under
a Williamson Act contract, or forest land to other uses, nor conflict with zoning for agricultural or forestry
uses. No impact to agricuiture or forestry resources would result.

idendocino Unified Schootl District Recycled Water System Project 35




Environmental Analysis

3.3 Air Quality

Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management district or air poliution
control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the v
applicable air quality plan?

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase »
in any criteria pollutant for which the project region v
is non-attainment under an applicable federal or
state ambient air quality standard?

¢) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant v
concentrations? ‘
d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to
odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of v
people?
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? (Less than

Significant with Mitigation)

The Project site is located within the North Coast Mendocino County sub-basin of the North Coast Air
Basin, which is within the jurisdiction of the Mendocino County Air Quality Management District (MCAQMD).
The MCAQMD’s 2005 Particulate Matter Attainment Plan in 2005 (MCAQMD 2005a) is the applicable air
quality plan for the North Coast Air Basin. According to the 2005 Particulate Matter Attainment Plan, the
primary man-made sources of PMy, pollution in the North Coast Air Basin are wood combustion
(woodstoves, fireplaces and outdoor burning), fugitive dust, and automobile traffic. Some of the automobile
emissions are the resuit of “pass-though” traffic on US Highway 101 because of its nature as the major
transportation corridor in this part of the State. Control measures recommended in the 2005 Particulate
Matter Attainment Plan include measures related to woodstoves, campgrounds, unpaved roads,
construction and grading activities, new residential development, and open burning emissions.

Construction activities associated with the Project would include site preparation (e.g., demolition,
clearing/grubbing), grading, excavation, utility trenching, and tank installation. The types of air pollutants
generated by these activities are typically nitrogen oxides and particulate matter, such as dust and exhaust.
Because construction activities could temporarily increase levels of PMyoin a region designated as non-
attainment for PMyg, the impact is considered significant. With implementation of Mitigation Measure AIR-1,
construction activities would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 2005 Particulate Matter
Attainment Plan.

Following construction, the Project would not prevent the MCAQMD from implementing the actions in the
2005 Particulate Matter Attainment Plan, and none apply directly to the operation of the Project. No
operational impact would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-6




Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measure

With implementation of Mitigation Measure AQ-1, construction activities would not conflict with or obstruct
implementation of the 2005 Particulate Matter Attainment Plan. The impact following mitigation would be
less than significant.

Mitigation Measure AQ-1: Dust Control Measures

In accordance with Rule 1-430(b) of the Mendocino County Air Quality Management District
Regulations, the MUSD and its Contractor shall implement the following airborne dust control
measures during construction activities:

- All visibly dry disturbed soil road surfaces shall be watered to minimize fugitive dust emissions.

- All unpaved surfaces, unless otherwise treated with suitable chemicals or oils, shall have a
posted speed limit of 10 miles per hour.

- Earth or other material that has been transported by trucking or earth moving equipment,
erosion by water, or other means onto paved streets shall be promptly removed.

- Asphalt, oil, water, or suitable chemicals shall be applied on materials stockpiles and other
surfaces that can give rise to airborne dusts.

- All earthmoving activities shall cease when sustained winds exceed 15 miles per hour.

- The operator shall take reasonable precautions to prevent the entry of unauthorized vehicles
onto the site during non-work hours.

- The operator shall keep a daily log of activities to control fugitive dust.

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase in any criteria pollutant for which the
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard? (Less than Significant)

The North Coast Mendocino County sub-basin, like the rest of Mendocino County, is designated as a non-
attainment area for the State particulate matter (PM1o) standard. The sub-basin is in attainment for all other
State standards and for all Federal criteria air pollutants (CARB 2018, U.S. EPA 2021).

By its nature, air pollution is largely a cumulative impact, in that individual projects are rarely sufficient in
size to result in nonattainment of ambient air quality standards. Instead, a project’s individual emissions
may contribute to cumulative adverse air quality impacts. Based on the current Air Basin designations, the
non-attainment pollutant of concern is PMio.

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District's (BAAQMD) CEQA guidelines and thresholds, which the
MCAQMD uses as CEQA guidance, includes screening criteria to provide lead agencies with a
conservative indication of whether a project could result in potentially significant air quality impacts.
According to the guidelines, if a project’s characteristics (i.e., square footage, acreage, number of dwelling
units) are less than associated screening criteria, then the lead agency does not need to perform a detailed
air quality assessment of the project’s air pollutant emissions and a less-than-significant impact would
accur.

For construction activities, several different screening criterions are recommended by the BAAQMD relative
to air pollutant emissions (i.e., reactive organic gases [ROG], NOX, PM2.5, and PM10). For example,
detailed air quality assessments are not required for construction of projects such as single family
residential developments comprised of less than 114 dwelling units, City parks that are less than 67 acres

Mendocing Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-7




Environmental Analysis

in size, and construction of office and commercial buildings that are less than 277,000 square feet
(BAAQMD 2017). The BAAQMD CEQA thresholds do not include specific screening criteria for pipeline
installation and storage tank projects. However, when one compares the screening criteria established for
the types of projects described above, it is reasonable to assume that the extent of construction activities
associated with the Project would be substantially less and would also not warrant a detailed air quality
assessment.

The Project would not be anticipated to encounter asbestos-containing materials during construction, would
not involve the simultaneous occurrence of more than two construction phases, or construction of more
than one land-use type. Construction would not involve extensive site preparation or material transport.
The Project would result in a short-term increase in fugitive dust emissions during construction which would
include PM2.5 and PM10. The short-term impact would be less than significant. Additionally, required
implementation of the dust control measures required by Mitigation Measure AQ-1 would further minimize
fugitive dust and emissions during construction.

Following construction, the Project would not result in a new stationary source of emissions and the Project
would not result in a substantial increase in maintenance trips. Therefore, the Project would not result in a
substantial source of new mobile pollutant emissions nor result in a cumulatively considerable increase in
PM10 emissions. No long-term impact would result.

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? (Less than Significant)

Sensitive population groups include children, the elderly, the acutely ill, and the chronically ill, especially
those with cardio-respiratory diseases. Residential uses are also considered sensitive to air pollution
because residents (including children and the elderly) tend to be at home for extended periods of time,
resulting in sustained exposure to any pollutants present. Sensitive receptors located adjacent to the
Project area include single family residences and schools.

The main pollutants of concern for this impact are diesel particulate matter (DPM). Construction equipment
and heavy-duty truck traffic generate DPM exhaust, which is a known toxic air contaminant. The installation
of the proposed recycled water distribution system would occur at a rate of approximately 100 feet of pipe
per day, thus the construction activities would continually be shifting. Because of continuous shifting of the
construction activities, no prolonged exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations
would result. Project construction would result in a less than significant impact from exposure to
construction-generated DPM.

In addition, the Project area is not located within an area of concern for naturally occurring asbestos (NOA).
The nearest location of concern for NOA is approximately 20 miles inland from the Project area (MCAQMD

2005b). Therefore, no human exposure to NOA is anticipated to occur during construction. No impact would
result.

Following construction, Project operation would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial poliutant
concentrations as the Project does not include any stationary source emissions or an increase in any
mobile emissions. No long-term impact would result.

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial
number of people? (Less than Significant)

Implementation of the Project would not result in any major sources of odor. The Project is not one of the
common types of facilities known to produce odors (e.g., landfill, coffee roaster, wastewater treatment
facility, etc.). Construction activities could result in short-term odors, such as diesel exhaust from

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-8




Environmental Analysis

construction equipment. Such odors would be temporary, occurring only during the construction period, and
would disperse rapidly. Therefore, construction would not create objectionable odors affecting a substantial
number of people and the temporary impact during construction would be less than significant. Additionally,
implementation of the air quality control measures required by Mitigation Measure AQ-1 would further
reduce odors released from construction equipment. Following construction, there would be no features
included in the Project that would, by their nature or design, result in a new source of odors. No operational
impact would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-9




Environmental Analysis

3.4 Biological Resources

Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or
through habitat modifications, on any species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special- v
status species in local or regional plans, policies, or
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish
and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian
habitat or other sensitive natural community
identified in local or regional plans, policies, v
regulations or by the California Department of Fish
and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service?

¢) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or
federally protected wetlands (including, but not ‘
limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through v
direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or :
other means?

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species
or with established native resident or migratory v
wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native
wildlife nursery sites?

e) Conlflict with any local policies or ordinances
protecting biological resources, such as a tree v
preservation policy or ordinance?

f)  Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat
| Conservation Plan, Natural Community v

Conservation Plan, or other approved local, '

regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status species in local or regional
plans, policies, or regulations, ot by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.8. Fish
and Wildlife Service? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

Special-status species include those plant and wildlife species that have been formally listed, are proposed
as endangered or threatened, or are candidates for such listing under the federal Endangered Species Act
(ESA) or California Endangered Species Act (CESA). These acts afford protection to both listed and
proposed species. In addition, California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Species of Special
Concern, which are species that face extirpation in California if current population and habitat trends
continue, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) Birds of Conservation Concern, and CDFW special-
status invertebrates, are all considered special-status species. Although CDFW Species of Special
Concern generally have no special legal status, they are given special consideration under CEQA. in
addition to regulations for special-status species, most birds in the United States, including non-status

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-10




Environmental Analysis

species, are protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act of 1918. Plant species on California Native Plant
Society (CNPS) Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants with California Rare Plant Ranks (Rank)of 1, 2
and 4 are also considered special-status plant species and must be considered under CEQA. Bat species
designated as “High Priority” by the Western Bat Working Group (WBWG) qualify for legal protection under
Section 15380(d) of the CEQA Guidelines. Species designated “High Priority” are defined as “imperiled or
are at high risk of imperilment based on available information on distribution, status, ecology and known
threats.”

A Biological Resources Report was prepared for the Project to evaluate the potential for special-status plant
and wildlife species and sensitive habitats (including wetlands) to occur on or in the vicinity of the Project
site (GHD 2021). The assessment included literature and database searches as well as a site survey to
determine what species and habitats have potential to be present on the Project site. The information and
data collected for the assessment have been used as the basis of this biological resources analysis.

Special-Status Plant Species

Due to seasonal survey timing constraints, field surveys for special status plants were not possible in 2021.
The majority of the Project site is comprised of developed land, including paved roadway surfaces, parking
lots, sidewalk, and areas of urban landscaping. No special-status plants are expected to occur in such
areas because no suitable habitat is present.

Areas in which habitat for special status plants may be present include the MUSD tank site on Little Lake
Road. According to special-status species lists, five federally listed or under review plant species that are
regulated by the USFWS under the ESA were identified during scoping in the vicinity of the Project area.
However, none of these are likely to occur within the Project area due to the lack of suitable habitat and/or
because the Project area lies outside of the species’ known current geographic range. Three state-listed or
candidate plant species that are regulated by the CDFW under the CESA were identified during scoping in
the vicinity of the Project area. These include Howell's spineflower, Burke's goldfields, and Monterey
clover, none of which are likely to occur within the Project area due to lack of suitable habitat and/or
because the Project lies outside of the species’ known current geographic range.

In addition, occurrences for 40+ other special status plant species with special state protections (or tracked
via the CNDDB) were identified within the one-quad search area of the Project. Of these, only 13 have
moderate potential to occur within the PSB. Presence (if any) of these species within the Project Area will
be confirmed during seasonally-appropriate botanical surveys.

Although no special status plants were observed along the Project corridor or at the MUSD tank site during
a reconnaissance level site visit, the blooming period for the plants listed above as having a moderate
potential to occur is generally in the spring. Because of the proximity of the Project area to known
populations of the above listed special status plant species, the impact of the Project is considered
potentially significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 would reduce the impact of the Project
on special-status plants to a less-than-significant level by requiring pre-construction surveys by qualified
biologists prior to work in applicable habitats, as well as a minimum level of compensation for loss of any
habitat for special-status plant.

Special-Status Wildlife Species

A reconnaissance level biological field survey was conducted for the Project site on July 30, 2021. The
survey methods were intended to identify sensitive habitat and detect wildlife activity. This included
inspecting the ground, shrubs, and trees for the presence of any wildlife species.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-11




Environmental Analysis

The Project corridor is comprised primarily of developed hardscapes, including paved roadway surfaces,
parking lots, sidewalk, and areas of urban landscaping. Natural habitat remains around the MUSD tank site
on Little Lake Road, including Douglas fir and California bay laurel forest. These areas of natural habitat
could serve as potential nesting, foraging, roosting, and breeding habitat for special status wildlife species.
No federally designated critical habitat is present within or immediately adjacent to the Project area. No
impact to critical habitat would result.

Northern red-legged frogs are relatively common in and near coastal portions of Mendocino County and
records have documented the species within three miles of the Project site on private timberlands and in
Big River State Park. This species has a moderate likelihood of periodically occurring within the Project
area at the MUSD tank site as they could occasionally forage on or disperse through the area if a suitable
breeding wetland is present nearby. In the event this species were to disperse onto the MUSD tank site,
vegetation removal and ground disturbance may result in potentially adverse effects to the species. The
potential impact is considered significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-2 would ensure no
direct effects (mortality/take) of Northern red-legged frogs would occur and thereby reduce impacts to a
less-than-significant level.

Sonoma Tree Voles are primarily arboreal mammals that occur in coniferous forest habitat. Sonoma Tree
Voles usually occur within the fog belt of northern California from Sonoma County to the Oregon border,
and diet on needles of Douglas fir (Pseudotsuga menziesii) and grand fir (Abies grandis). Based on the
location of the Project, the presence of Douglas fir trees at the MUSD tank site, and numerous historical
records documenting species presence in the Project area, the Sonoma Tree Vole has a moderate
likelihood of occurring at the tank site, and vegetation removal and ground disturbance may result in
potentially adverse effects to the species if present. The potential impact is considered significant.
Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-2 would ensure no direct effects no direct effects (mortality/take)
of Sonoma tree vole would occur and thereby reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Birds and raptors are protected under the federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act (50 CFR 10.13), and their nest,
eggs, and young are also protected under the California Fish and Wildlife Code (§3503, §3503.5, and
§3513). The white-tailed Kite (Elanus leucurus) is a California Fully Protected Species which has been
recently recorded throughout the town of Mendocino within 0.5 mile of the Project site. The osprey (Pandion
haliaetus) is a California State Watch List (Nesting) species with numerous recent occurrence records along
the Big River and throughout the town of Mendocino, within 0.5 mile of the Project site. This species was
observed flying in the Project area during the site reconnaissance. The purple Martin (Progne subis) is a
California Species of Special Concern with a recorded occurrence in 2018 on Big River near West Haul
Road, within 0.5 mile of the Project site. Based on historical records and available habitat, the three above-
mentioned species have a moderate potential to occur within the Project site, and vegetation removal and
ground disturbance may result in potentially adverse effects to the species if present. The potential impact
is considered significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-3 would reduce the impact to nesting
birds to a less-than-significant level.

Townsend’s Big-eared Bats are medium-sized bats, distinguished from other co-occurring bat species by
their large ears and a two-pronged horseshoe-shaped lump on the muzzle. Townsends’ Big-eared Bats are
typically associated with coastal redwood forests, foothill oak woodlands, inland deserts, pinyon-juniper and
pine forests, and mixed coniferous-deciduous forests. The species roosts colonially in a variety of structures
including hollow trees, buildings (barns), mines, and lava tubes. Forests near the Project site may serve as
hibernacula for this species and requisite roosting and foraging habitat is present in the 6-quad search area.
The closest known occurrence record is from 2016 along the side of Highway 1, about 0.5 road miles north
of Little River and 1.8 miles south of the Town of Mendocino. Foraging habitat for the species could be

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Froject  3-12




Environmental Analysis

present in the area of the MUSD tank site. Therefore, Townsend’s Big-eared Bats have a moderate
likelihood of occurring within the tank site, and vegetation and structure removal and ground disturbance for
the recycled water tank may result in potentially adverse effects to the species if present. The potential
impact is considered significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-4 would reduce potential
impacts to special status bats to a less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-4 would reduce the Project impact on special-status plants and
wildlife to less-than-significant levels by requiring pre-construction surveys by qualified biologists prior to
work in applicable habitats, and measures to avoid take of species as well as a minimum level of
compensation for loss of habitat for special-status plant and wildlife species.

Mitigation Measure BIO-1: Avoid Loss of Sensitive Plant Species

The MUSD shall retain a qualified biologist to complete appropriate pre-construction surveys for
special status plant species at the MUSD tank site prior to construction of the proposed recycled
water tank. The surveys shall be conducted during the appropriate blooming time (spring or
summer) for the target species. Survey methods shall comply with CDFW rare plant survey
protocols, and shall be performed by a qualified field botanist. Surveys shall be modified to include
detection of juvenile (pre-flowering) colonies of perennial species when necessary. Any populations
of special status plant species that are detected shall be mapped. Populations (if present) shall be
flagged if avoidance is feasible and if populations are located adjacent to construction areas. The
locations of any special status plant populations to be avoided shall be clearly identified in the
contract documents (plans and specifications).

If avoidance is not feasible, a Special Status Plant Management Plan shall be prepared and
implemented in coordination with CDFW, in which recommendations shall be provided as to the
feasibility of relocating the plants or collecting seeds prior to the start of construction. The report
shall identify similar habitat on nearby lands to accommodate both relocation and seed spreading.
If seed collection is determined to be the more appropriate method for the specified species, seeds
shall either be collected and spread on- or off-site, or provided to a local native plant nursery for
propagation then planting. For both relocating or seed collection, the MUSD shall indicate an on- or
off-site location for relocation, establish success criteria, identify monitoring protocol of the site for
one to two seasons, and determine appropriate action if the success criteria is not met.

Mitigation Measure BIO-2: Protect Northern Red Legged Frog and Sonoma Tree Voles

In the event that a Northern red-legged frog is observed in an active construction zone, the
contractor shall halt construction activities in the immediate area where observed and the frog shall
be moved to a safe location in similar habitat outside of the construction zone. The construction
impact area at the MUSD tank site shall be surveyed by a qualified biologist within seven days prior
to the start of construction for any tree nests indicative of Sonoma tree voles. If any active Sonoma
tree vole nests are found, the nest shall be avoided during construction activities.

Mitigation Measure BIO-3: Protect Bat Species

If construction occurs during the bat maternity season (generally May 1st through August 30th), a
qualified bat biologist shall conduct habitat surveys for special status bats for trees to be removed
or limbed. The assessment shall evaluate the trees for suitable entry points and roost features and
shall provide focused daytime surveys for day-roosting bats. If present, the roost shall be avoided

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-13




Environmental Analysis

until after September 1 to ensure no adverse effects to maternity bat roosts. Tree removal outside
the maternity season shall be performed using a two-step tree removal process which includes
allowing any felled trees or tree limbs to be left overnight prior to removal from the site or on-site
chipping to allow any bats to exit the roost.

Mitigation Measure BIO-4: Prevent Disturbance to Nesting Birds

Ground disturbance or removal of vegetation or nesting trees shall be conducted, if feasible, during
the fall and/or winter months and outside of the avian nesting season (March 15 — August 15) to
avoid any direct effects to special status and protected birds. If ground disturbance or vegetation
removal cannot be confined to outside of the nesting season, a qualified ornithologist shall conduct
pre-construction surveys within the vicinity of the Project area, to check for nesting activity of native
birds and to evaluate the site for presence of raptors and special status bird species. The biologist
shall conduct at minimum a one-day pre-construction survey within the 7-day period prior to
vegetation removal and ground-disturbing activities. If ground disturbance and vegetation removal
work lapses for seven days or longer during the breeding season, a qualified biologist shall conduct
a supplemental avian pre-construction survey before Project work is reinitiated.

If active nests are detected within the vicinity of the construction footprint, the ornithologist shall flag
a buffer around each nest (assuming property access is allowed). Construction activities shall avoid
nest sites until the ornithologist determines that the young have fledged or nesting activity has
ceased. Buffers shall be implemented as needed (buffer size dependent on species). In general,
the buffer size for common species would be determined on a case-by-case basis in consultation
with the CDFW and, if applicable, with USFWS. Buffer sizes will take into account factors such as
(1) noise and human disturbance levels at the construction site at the time of the survey and the
noise and disturbance expected during the construction activity; (2) distance and amount of
vegetation or other screening between the construction site and the nest; and (3) sensitivity of
individual nesting species and behaviors of the nesting birds.

If active nests are detected during the survey, the qualified ornithologist shall monitor all nests at
least once per week to determine whether birds are being disturbed. Activities that might, in the
opinion of the qualified ornithologist, disturb nesting activities (e.g., excessive noise), shall be
prohibited within the buffer zone until such a determination is made. If signs of disturbance or
distress are observed, the qualified ornithologist shall immediately implement adaptive measures to
reduce disturbance. These measures may include, but are not limited to, increasing buffer size,
halting disruptive construction activities in the vicinity of the nest until fledging is confirmed or nesting
activity has ceased, placement of visual screens or sound dampening structures between the nest
and construction activity, reducing speed limits, replacing and updating noisy equipment, queuing
trucks to distribute idling noise, locating vehicle access points and loading and shipping facilities
away from noise-sensitive receptors, reducing the number of noisy construction activities oceurring
simultaneously, and/or reorienting and/or relocating construction equipment to minimize noise at
noise-sensitive receptors.

Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service, including state or federally
protected wetlands? (No Impact)

During a reconnaissance-level site visit conducted at the Project site, no potentially jurisdictional wetlands
or waters were observed on-site. A search of the USFWS National Wetlands Inventory for the Project

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-14




Environmental Analysis

vicinity also was completed, the results of which show no wetlands mapped within the Project area. During
the reconnaissance-level site visit, a wetland containing emergent vegetation (e.g., cattails) was
documented to the south of Little Lake Road in front of the Mendocino K-8 School. However, the wetland is
located outside the Project Area and no construction activities would occur in or near the area of potential
wetlands. The potential presence of sensitive natural communities and environmentally sensitive habitat
areas was also visually assessed during the reconnaissance biological survey. No such communities or
habitat areas were identified within the Project area. Therefore, no impact to riparian habitat, wetlands, or
other sensitive natural communities would result.

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife
species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use
of native wildlife nursery sites? (Less than Significant)

Figure 4.4-7 of the Mendocino County General Plan EIR identifies major wildlife corridors in Mendocino
County. The Project site is not located within a mapped major wildlife movement corridor, and the Project
site is currently developed with existing facilities which the MUSD proposes to reconstruct within
substantially the same footprint. The Project corridor is located approximately one-half mile north of the Big
River and does not contain any aquatic habitat or intersect any riparian corridors. Thus, there is no direct
hydrologic connectivity between the Project Area and Big River and no impact on movement of any native
resident or migratory fish or essential fish habitat would result. No continuous barriers to terrestrial wildlife
movement are anticipated, and the Project would not substantially interfere with migratory birds, bats, or
aquatic species. The impact would be less than significant.

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree
preservation policy or ordinance? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

No tree preservation policy or ordinance is applicable to the Project. The Mendocino County General Plan
and Coastal Element contain numerous policies and action items to protect biological resources. General
Plan Policy RM-28 requires that all discretionary public and private projects that identify special-status
species in a biological resources evaluation (where natural conditions of the site suggest the potential
presence of special-status species) shall avoid impacts to special-status species and their habitat to the
maximum extent feasible. Where impacts cannot be avoided, Policy RM-28 states that projects shall
include the implementation of site-specific or project-specific effective mitigation strategies developed by a
qualified professional in consultation with State or federal resource agencies with jurisdiction (if applicable).
Implementation of mitigation measures listed in impact 3.4 (a) above would reduce Project-related impacts
to special-status species to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, within implementation, no conflicts with
local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources have been identified.

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? (No
impact)

Habitat Conservation Plans and Natural Community Conservation Plans are geographic specific plans to
address effects on sensitive species of plants and animals. There are no such adopted plans covering the
Project area. No impact would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-15




Environmental Analysis

3.5 Cultural Resources

Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the

significance of a historical resource pursuant to v
§15064.57

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the !
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant v

to §15064.5?

- ¢) Disturb any human remains, including those

. . : v
interred outside of formal cemeteries?

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to
§15064.57 (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

The CEQA Guidelines define a historical resource as: (1) a resource listed in the California Register of
Historical Resources: (2) a resource included in a local register of historical resources, as defined in the
California Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 5020.1(k), or identified as significant in a historical
resource survey meeting the requirements of PRC Section 5024.1(g); or (3) any object, building, structure,
site, area, place, record, or manuscript that a lead agency determines to be historically significant or
significant in the architectural, engineering, scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, social, political,
military, or cultural annals of California, provided the lead agency’s determination is supported by
substantial evidence in light of the whole record.

A portion of the proposed recycled water alignment would be located within historical zones and adjacent to
historic landmarks and/or historically important built environment resources. The Mendocino County
Historical Preservation District Ordinance designates the area of Mendocino that is located on the
Mendocino Headlands peninsula, west of Highway 1, as Historical Zone A. Within Historical Zone A, the
Mendocino and Headlands Historic District, located generally south of Little Lake Street, is listed on the
National Register of Historic Places (Number 71000165) and on the California Register of Historical
Resources.

The Historical Preservation District for the Town of Mendocino, first incorporated by ordinance in the
Mendocino County Code in 1973, established the Mendocino Historical Review Board (MHRB) that must
approve activities and other work, including demolition, construction, remodeling, excavation, and painting
within Historical Zone A, comprising the 19th century town west of Highway 1. The area of Mendocino east
of Highway 1 constitutes Historical Zone B. The Mendocino Historical Review Board has less specific
powers of approval in Historical Zone B.

Mendocino Town Design Guidelines Policy DG-1 specifies that all new development shall be designed to
be compatible with the historical design character of the Town. Actions DG-1.4 of the Design Guidelines
specifies that new buildings, and rehabilitation, redevelopment, and renovation of existing structures in the
Mendocino and Headlands Historical Preservation District and throughout the Town shall (a) be consistent
with the historical community character of the Town, and (b) not degrade the setting of buildings of
fandmark stature.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-16




Environmental Analysis

Portions of the proposed recycled water alignment in Ukiah Street, Kasten Street, Lansing Street, and Little
Lake Street would be located adjacent to built environment resources listed in the Town of Mendocino’s
historic resources inventory and within Historical Zone A and the Mendocino and Headlands Historic
District. The proposed alignment along Ukiah Street would be located adjacent to multiple such properties,
including Crown Hall and properties located at 571, 45116, 45124, 45140, 45271, 45281, 45320, 45330,
and 45370 Ukiah Street. The recycled water pipeline would also be installed near properties at 390 and
10550 Kasten Street, 10575 Lansing Street, and 43267, 44800, 44900, 45150, and 45160 Little Lake
Street, which contain built environment resources that have been inventoried as historic landmarks and/or
historically important.

The proposed Project improvements would occur within the existing road rights-of-way in Historical Zone A.
Installation of new fire hydrants within Historical Zone A would be required to adhere to the design
requirements of the Mendocino Historical Review Board to ensure compatibility with the historical design
character of the Town. Neither construction nor operation of the Project would materially alter adjacent built
environment resources within Zone A, and construction activities would not require the removal of adjacent
street trees or vegetation in the vicinity of the properties. Existing paving, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, utilities,
and other improvements within the area of potential effect that are disturbed due to the installation the
recycled water facilities would be replaced in kind to pre-existing conditions or better. Restoration of paved
areas would be in accordance with the requirements of Mendocino County standards and Caltrans
Specifications and Standards Section 39 Asphalt Concrete. The Project would not materially alter any built
resources adjacent to the alignment, with the exception of a 55,000-gallon concrete tank at Mendocino High
School and an 8,000-gallon concrete tank at Friendship Park, which would be disconnected and left in
place. No resources contributing to the Mendocino and Headlands Historic District are located within the
direct area of potential effect for the Project.

The street trees located adjacent to the listed built environmental resources are not intended to be directly
removed during construction. However, because several of the street trees are located in the vicinity of the
proposed excavation limits, trench excavations may potentially encounter root zones of certain trees, which
could impact the overall health or stability of a tree. If mature street trees located adjacent to properties
listed in the Mendocino historic resources inventory and the Mendocino and Headlands Historic District
were impacted, potential contributing landscape elements of a listed historical resource could be negatively
affected. The impact may be significant. With implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-1 (Avoid Loss of
Street Trees on Historic Properties), the potential impact to cultural resources during construction would be
reduced to a less-than-significant level. The improvements would also be required to adhere to review
conditions of approval from the Mendocino Historical Review Board.

The potential for historic-period archaeological resources impacts is evaluated in impact “b” below.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-1 would reduce significant impacts to less-than-significant levels
by protecting and preserving mature trees located on or adjacent to listed historic properties.

Mitigation Measure CR-1: Avoid Loss of Street Trees on Historic Pfoperties

The MUSD shall avoid loss of street trees that occur along the pipeline alignment on the frontage
of historic properties listed on the Town of Mendocino Inventory of Historic Resources. Tree loss
shall be avoided by monitoring the proximity of trenching near tree roots, using construction
equipment that minimizes the extent of required excavation, moving the pipeline alignment away
from trees, or other effective measures.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-17

*




Environmental Analysis

b} Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to §15064.5? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

An Archaeological Resources Study was prepared for the Project by the Anthropological Studies Center of
Sonoma State University (ASC 2021). The study assessed the potential for surficial and/or buried
archaeological and historical resources in the proposed improvement area through the completion of the
following:

— Records and literature search at the Northwest Information Center (NWIC) of the California Historical
Resources Information Center (CHRIS) on October 26, 2021;

—  Further literature review of publications, files, and maps for ethnographic, historic-era, and prehistoric
resources and background information;

—  Communication with the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) to request a review of the
Sacred Lands File and contact information for the appropriate tribal communities on November 29,
2021;

- Contact with the appropriate local Native American Tribes on December 7, 2021: and
— Pedestrian archaeological survey of the Project area on November 10, 2021.

The study determined that the sensitivity of the area of potential effect for buried indigenous archaeological
resources is high. No previously recorded cultural resources located within the area of potential effect were
identified, and a pedestrian archaeological survey of the Project site also identified no archaeological
rasources. However, the search of the NAHC's Sacred Lands File for Sacred Sites was positive for a
resource in or near the area of potential effect, though no information suggesting the presence of sacred
sites or archaeological resources was received from individuals or organizations contacted as part of the
study. Such coordination included letters, faxes, and telephone calls to Native American contacts provided
by the NAHC. The NWIC records search also identified several cultural resources including historic-era
and indigenous cultural resources within a half mile of the area of potential effect. If previously unidentified
cultural resources are encountered during construction, the impact would be significant. With
implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-2 (Minimize Impacts to Unknown Archaeological Resources
During Construction), the potential impact to cultural resources during construction would be reduced to a
less-than-significant level.

The study also determined that the likelihood of buried historic-era features, such as a privy or artifact
deposit, is also high because of the age of the recorded buildings within the Mendocino and Headlands
Historic District. Four historic-artifact deposits were determined to be located within a half mile of the area
of potential effect. Therefore, the possibility of encountering historic-era archaeological resources cannot
be discounted. The impact related to the potential disturbance of historic-era archaeological resources
during construction is considered significant. With implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-2 (Minimize
Impacts to Unknown Archaeological Resources During Construction), the potential impact to archaeological
resources during construction would be reduced to a less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-2 would reduce the potential impact to previously undiscovered
cultural resources to a less-than-significant level by performing pre-construction contractor training and
outlining procedures to be taken in the event of inadvertent discovery of unrecorded resources consistent
with appropriate laws and requirements.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycied Water System Project 3-18




Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measure CR-2: Minimize Impacts to Unknown Archaeological Resources During
Construction

The MUSD shall retain a qualified archaeologist to conduct a pre-construction cultural sensitivity
training for Contractor staff prior to the start of construction. In the event that any subsurface
archaeological features or deposits, including locally darkened midden soil, are discovered during
construction-related earth-moving activities, all ground-disturbing activity in the vicinity of the
resource shall be halted, a qualified professional archaeologist shall be retained to evaluate the find,
and the appropriate tribal representative(s) shall be notified. If the find qualifies as a historical
resource, unique archaeological resource, or tribal cultural resource as defined by CEQA, the
archaeologist shall develop appropriate measures to protect the integrity of the resource and ensure
that no additional resources are affected.

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? {Less
than Significant)

No human remains are known to exist within the Project area. Excavation and earthmoving activities would
occur within previously disturbed areas that are primarily underlain by engineered soils and/or fill. However,
the possibility of encountered human remains cannot be discounted, and the potential impact is considered
significant. With implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-3 (Protect Human Remains if Encountered
during Construction), the potential impact to human remains during construction would be reduced to a
less-than-significant level.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure CR-3 would reduce the potential impact to previously undiscovered
human remains to a less-than-significant level by outlining procedures to be taken in the event of
inadvertent discovery of unrecorded resources consistent with appropriate laws and requirements.

Mitigation Measure CR-3: Protect Human Remains if Encountered during Construction

If human remains, associated grave goods, or items of cultural patrimony are encountered during
construction, work shall halt in the vicinity of the find and the County Coroner shall be notified
immediately. The following procedures shall be followed as required by Public Resources Code §
5097.9 and Health and Safety Code § 7050.5. If the human remains are determined to be of Native
American origin, the Coroner shall notify the Native American Heritage Commission within 24 hours
of the determination. The Native American Heritage Commission shall then notify the Most Likely
Descendant (MLD), who has 48 hours to make recommendations to the landowner for the
disposition of the remains. A qualified archaeologist, the MUSD and the MLD shall make all
reasonable efforts to develop an agreement for the treatment, with appropriate dignity, of any human
remains and associated or unassociated funerary objects. The agreement would take into
consideration the appropriate excavation, removal, recordation, analysis, custodianship, and final
disposition of the human remains and associated or unassociated funerary objects.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-19




Environmental Analysis

3.6 Energy Resources

Would the project:

a) Result in potentially significant environmental
impacts due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary v
consumption of energy resources, during project
construction or operation?

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for v
renewable energy or energy efficiency? |

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impacts due to wasteful, inefficient, or
unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?
(Less than Significant)

Project construction activity would require the temporary use of fossil fuels (gas, diesel, and motor oil) for
excavation, grading, and vehicle use. The precise amount of construction-related energy consumption that
would occur is uncertain. However, construction would not require a large amount of fuel or energy usage
because of the moderate number of construction vehicles and equipment that would be used during
construction, worker trips, and the relatively short construction duration required for a Project of this scale.
Use of fuels would not be wasteful or unnecessary because their use is necessary to complete the Project.
Excessive idling and other inefficient site operations would be prohibited. Equipment idling times would be
minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the maximum idling time to five
minutes or less (as required by the California airborne toxics control measure (Title 13, Section 2485 of the
CCR). Therefore, construction would not result in the use of large amounts of fuel and energy in a wasteful
manner, and the impact would be less than significant.

Following construction, energy consumption associated with operation of the Project would be limited to the
electricity needed to operate the recycled water distribution system. The overall electrical demand is not
expected to increase substantially as a result of this Project, and the total amount of electricity utilized
beyond that currently utilized for the existing recycled water system would not substantially increase. Fuel
consumption would be limited to that utilized by routine maintenance workers as they traveled to and from
the site. No increase in operation and maintenance related trips would occur. The operational impact
would be less than significant.

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency? (No
Impact)

In 2003, the California Energy Commission (CEC), the California Power Authority (CPA), and the California
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) jointly adopted an Energy Action Plan (EAP) that listed goals for
California’s energy future and set forth a commitment to achieve these goals through specific actions. In
2005, the CEC and CPUC approved the EAP II, which identified further actions to meet California’s future
energy needs, mainly focused on the energy and natural gas sectors. Additionally, the CEC also prepared
the State Alternative Fuels Plan in partnership with the California Air Resources Board and in consultation
with the other state, federal, and local agencies. The alternative fuels plan presents strategies and actions
California must take to increase the use of alternative non-petroleum fuels in a manner that minimizes costs

Mendocino Unified Schoot District Recycled Water System Project  3-20




Environmental Analysis

to California and maximizes the economic benefits of in-state production. Locally, the Mendocino County
General Plan includes goals fo promote energy conservation in the County and to increase use of
renewable energy resources (Goal RM-9).

Project construction and operational activities would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the EAP,
EAP I, the State Alternative Fuels Pian, or local goals. Project construction activity would not require a
large amount of fuel or energy usage because of the limited extent and nature of the proposed
improvements and the minimal number of construction vehicles that would be required for a project of this
scale. Project operation would not result in a substantial increase in energy use. No conflicts with a state
or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency have been identified. Therefore, no impact would
result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-21




Environmental Analysis

3.7 Geology and Soils

Would the project:

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or
death involving:

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the
State Geologist for the area or based on other v
substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to
Division of Mines and Geology Special
Publication 427

il. Strong seismic ground shakmg'? o - o - v
i, Seismic related ground failure, including ‘ “ ‘/
liquefaction?
- xv Landshdes’P e , U S WS B
b) Resultmsubstantxal son erosion orthe loés of o / N B

topsoil?

¢} Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is

| unstable, or that would become unstable as a result
of the project, and potentially result in on, or off, site v
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,
liquefaction or collapse?

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table
‘ 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994),

. o i : . v
creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or
property?
. e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the
" use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater v
disposal systems where sewers are not available
for the disposal of wastewater?
) Directly or indirectly destroy a unigue
: paleontological resource or site or unique geologic 4

feature?

a.i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other
substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special
Publication 42. (No Impact)

The Project site is not located within a designated Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone, and no other active
or potentially active faults have been mapped passing through the Project area or the Town of Mendocino.
Additionally, the Project does not include structures intended for human occupancy. The Project would not

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-22




Environmental Analysis

change the exposure of people or structures to risk of loss, injury, or death from fault rupture. No impact
would result.

a.ii)  Strong seismic ground shaking? (Less than Significant)

The nearest active faults to the Project site are the Maacama Fault, located approximately 25 miles to the
east, and the San Andreas Fault, located approximately 20 miles to the south. Moderate to major
earthquakes generated on either fault can be expected to cause strong ground shaking in the Project area.

By applying geotechnical evaluation techniques and appropriate engineering practices, potential injury and
damage from seismic activity can be diminished, thereby exposing fewer people and less property to the
effects of a major damaging earthquake. The design and construction of the proposed Project is subject to
engineering standards of the California Building Code, which take into account soil properties, seismic
shaking and foundation type. As described in Section 1.4, the seismic design of the new recycled water
tank would conform to the most current version of the California Building Code (CBC) and design standards
with any local amendments, including the use of flexible piping and other connections to minimize damage
during a seismic event in accordance with site-specific geotechnical recommendations. In addition, as
described in Section 1.8, the Project would be designed and constructed in conformance with the site-
specific recommendations contained in a design-level geotechnical study report to be completed for the
Project. Because the Project would be constructed in accordance with the applicable design standards and
with the Project-specific recommendations contained in a design-level geotechnical study, the impact
related to strong seismic ground shaking would be less than significant.

a.iii, aiv, ¢, d) Liquefaction, landslides, or otherwise unstable soils? (Less than Significant)

Excavation and earthmoving activities would be relatively shallow and would occur within previously
disturbed areas that are primarily underlain by engineered soils and/or fill beneath the existing facilities.
Mapping of liquefaction susceptibility in Mendocino County indicates that the Project site is located in an
area where soils are susceptible to liquefaction (County of Mendocino, 2008). Liquefiable and otherwise
unstable soils may be encountered within the Project area.

During construction, the new recycled water pipeline trench would be dug within land that is relatively flat.
Following construction, Project components would not be located within areas of potential landslides, and
would be located below ground.

The design and construction of new structures are subject to engineering standards of the CBC, which take
into account soil properties and foundation type. As described in Section 1.6, the Project would be designed
and constructed in conformance with the site-specific recommendations contained in a design-level
geotechnical study report to be completed for the Project and any subsequent Project-related geotechnical
reports, which would include ground improvement and pipe bedding and backfill criteria.

By applying geotechnical evaluation techniques and appropriate engineering practices, potential injury and
damage from seismic activity and unstable soils can be diminished, thereby exposing fewer people and less
property to the effects of a major damaging earthquake. Because the Project would be constructed in
accordance with the applicable design standards and with the Project-specific recommendations contained
in a design-level geotechnical study, the impact related to liquefaction, landslides, or unstable soils would
be less than significant.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-23




Environmental Analysis

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? (Less than Significant)

Construction activities would involve open trench excavation for the majority of the recycled water pipeline
system, and foundation-related excavations for the new recycled water tank. Areas to be disturbed during
construction consist predominantly of previously disturbed areas that are primarily underlain by engineered
soils and/or fills that have been highly altered from their original, natural state. As a result, the Project would
result in negligible soil erosion or disturbance to native soils. Following construction, the Project area would
be redeveloped and areas of exposed soil vulnerable to erosion would not be present. The overall impact
related to soil erosion or loss of topsoil would be less than significant.

Refer to Section 3.10, Hydrology and Water Quality, for a discussion of construction impacts to water
quality associated with soil erosion.

d) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater
disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater? (No Impact)

The Project would not involve the use of septic tanks or other alternative wastewater disposal systems. No
impact would result.

) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature? (Less than Significant)

The proposed improvements would not require modification of any unique geologic features. Excavation
and earthmoving activities would occur within previously disturbed areas that are primarily underlain by
engineered soils and/or fill. Project excavations would be relatively shallow and would occur in previously
disturbed soils. Excavation depths would not occur to depths where paleontological resources would be
likely encountered, and the Project would be required to follow procedures outlined in Public Resources
Code § 5097.5 in the event of inadvertent discovery of paleontological resources. The impact would be
less than significant.

Mendocinoc Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-24




Environmental Analysis

3.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly
or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on v
the environment?

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation :,
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions v
of greenhouse gases? 3 "

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant
impact on the environment? (Less than Significant)

Construction

There is currently no applicable federal, State, or local threshold pertaining to construction-related
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and the BAAQMD CEQA Guidelines [used by the Mendocino County Air
Quality Management District] do not include screening criteria or significance thresholds for construction-
phase emissions. Therefore, this analysis uses a qualitative approach for construction activities in
accordance with Section 15064.4(a)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines.

Construction activities would result in a temporary (approximately 10 months) increase in GHG erissions,
including exhaust emissions from on-road haul trucks, worker commute vehicles, and off-road heavy duty
equipment. Project emissions during construction would not be a considerable contribution to the
cumulative GHG impact, given that construction would be temporary, and the size and nature of
construction is not considered to result in significant air quality impacts (for example, the Project is well
below BAAQMD construction screening criterion (see Section 3.3, Air Quality). Therefore, Project-related
GHG emissions during construction are considered less than significant. Additionally, required
implementation of the dust control measures required by Mitigation Measure AQ-1 would further minimize
GHG emissions during construction.

Operation

The BAAQMD has established screening criteria to provide lead agencies with a conservative indication of
whether a proposed Project could result in significant GHG impacts during operations. If the screening
criteria are not exceeded by a proposed Project, then the lead agency does not need to perform a detailed
GHG assessment of its project's GHG emissions, and the potential impact is considered less than
significant. For operational activities, several different screening criteria are recommended by the
BAAQMD relative to air GHG emissions. For example, detailed air quality assessments are not required for
projects such as City parks that are less than 600 acres in size, and construction of government office
buildings that are less than 12,000 square feet (BAAQMD 2017). The BAAQMD CEQA Guidelines do not
include specific screening criteria for utility projects similar to the proposed Project. However, when one
compares the screening criteria established for the types of projects described above (i.e., parks and office
buildings), it is reasonable to assume that the Project would be substantially less than the screening criteria.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-25




Environmental Analysis

The recycled water distribution system would be connected to a pump station at the MCCSD WWTP and
would be electric powered. No direct GHG emissions would occur during operation. Direct operational
GHG emissions would be limited to emissions from periodic maintenance vehicles, which would be minimal.
Therefore, the Project’s operational impact on GHG emissions would be less than significant. The Project
would not increase the population or bring new, permanent employees to the Project area. Project
operation would generate less than one traffic trip per day on average associated with periodic
maintenance. Therefore, Project-generated operational greenhouse emissions would be very small, and the
impact would be less than significant.

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the
emissions of greenhouse gases? (No Impact)

The Mendocino County General Plan includes several policies and action items for reducing GHG
emission. General Plan Action Item DE-65.2 directs the County to work cooperatively with industrial
facilities to identify greenhouse gas impacts from their operations and develop a long-term plan for reducing
emissions. Because the Project is not a type of industrial development, Action ltem DE-65.2 would not
apply to the Project. Mendocino County General Plan Policy RM-43 and Action ltems RM-43.1 through
RM-43.3 direct the County to create an inventory of existing and historical GHG emissions, to create a GHG
reduction plan, and to reduce the County’s GHG footprint. As of the date this analysis was completed, the
County had not completed such an inventory and had not developed a GHG reduction plan. In addition, the
MCAQMD has not developed CEQA guidelines or significance thresholds for use in GHG analyses.
Therefore, for the purpose of this analysis, Senate Bill 32 (SB32) and the CARB 2017 Climate Change
Scoping Plan (CARB 2017) were used as evaluation criteria.

SB 32 requires a 40% reduction in GHG emissions below 1990 levels by 2030. The CARB 2017 Climate
Change Scoping Plan provides strategies for meeting the mid-term 2030 GHG reduction target set by
SB32. The 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan also identifies how the State can substantially advance
toward the 2050 greenhouse gas reduction target of Executive Order S-3-05, which consists of reducing
GHG emissions to 80 percent below 1990 levels. The recommendations cover several key sectors,
including energy and industry, transportation, natural and working lands, waste management, and water.
The recommended measures in the 2017 Scoping Plan are broad policy and regulatory initiatives that will
be implemented at the State level and do not relate to the construction and operation of individual projects.
Although Project construction and operation may be affected by State level regulations and policies that will
be implemented, such as the Phase 2 heavy-duty truck greenhouse gas standards proposed to be
implemented within the transportation sector, the Project would not impede the State from developing or
implementing the GHG reduction measures identified in the Scoping Plan.

No conflicts with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions
of greenhouse gases have been identified. Therefore, no impact would result.

Mendocino Unifled School District Recycled Water System Project  3-26




Environmental Analysis

3.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Would the project

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through the routine transport, use, or v
disposal of hazardous materials?

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset

; 2 ) : v
and accident conditions involving the release of
hazardous materials into the environment?
' ¢) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste v

within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed
school?

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a v
result, would it create a significant hazard to the
public or the environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan
or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within
two miles of a public airport or public use airport,
would the project result in a safety hazard or
excessive noise for people residing or working in
the project area?

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with
an adopted emergency response plan or v
emergency evacuation plan? :

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or
indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death v
involving wildland fires? :’

a, b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport,
use, or disposal of hazardous materials, or hazard to the public or the environment through
reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous
materials into the environment? (Less than Significant)

The Project would include disconnection of an existing 55,000-gallon concrete tank at Mendocino High
School and disconnection of an existing 8,000-gallon underground concrete tank at Friendship Park. The
tanks would be left in place and would not require handling of potential hazardous building materials.

Construction activities would involve the use of hazardous materials such as fuels, lubricants, paints and
solvents. Routine transport of hazardous materials to and from the Project site during construction could
result in an incremental increase in the potential for accidents. However, numerous laws and regulations
ensure the safe transportation, use, storage and disposal of hazardous materials. For example, the

California Department of Transportation and the California Highway Patrol regulate the transportation of

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-27




Environmental Analysis

hazardous materials and wastes, including container types and packaging requirements, as well as
licensing and training for truck operators, chemical handlers, and hazardous waste haulers. Worker safety
regulations cover hazards related to the prevention of exposure to hazardous materials and a release to the
environment from hazardous materials use. The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal-
OSHA) also enforces hazard communication program regulations, which contain worker safety training and
hazard information requirements, such as procedures for identifying and labeling hazardous substances,
communicating hazard information related to hazardous substances and their handling, and preparation of
health and safety plans to protect workers and employees. Because contractors would be required to
comply with existing and future hazardous materials laws and regulations covering the transport, use and
disposal of hazardous materials, the Project’s construction-related impact would be less than significant.

Following construction, operation of the Project would not result in the need for new hazardous materials
that would need to be transported, used, or disposed. No operational impact would occur.

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances,
or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? (Less than Significant)

Project construction activity would include pipeline installation on and adjacent to Mendocino High School
and Mendocino K-8 School. Construction activities would include the use of materials such as fuels,
lubricants, paints, and solvents, which are commonly used during construction, are not acutely hazardous,
and would be used in small quantities. Numerous laws and regulations ensure the safe transportation, use,
storage, and disposal of hazardous materials (see Impact “a” and “b” above).

Although construction activities could result in the inadvertent release of small quantities of hazardous
construction chemicals, a spill or release would not be expected to endanger individuals at Mendocino High
School or Mendocino K-8 School given the nature of the materials and the small quantities that would be
used. Therefore, because the MUSD and its contractors would be required to comply with existing and
future hazardous materials laws and regulations covering the transport, use, and disposal of hazardous
materials, and because of the nature and quantity of the hazardous materials to be potentially used by the
Project, the impact related to the use of hazardous materials during construction within one-quarter mile of
a school would be less than significant.

Following construction, the Project would not include a new stationary source of hazardous emissions or
handling of acutely hazardous materials or waste. No operational impact would result.

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant
hazard to the public or the environment? (Less than Significant)

The provisions in Government Code Section 65962.5 are commonly referred to as the "Cortese List." A
search of the Cortese List was completed to determine if any known hazardous waste sites have been
recorded on or adjacent to the Project site, including review of:

—  Department of Toxic Substances Control EnviroStor database;

- List of Leaking Underground Storage Tank Sites from the Water Board GeoTracker database;

- List of solid waste disposal sites identified by the Water Board with waste constituents above
hazardous waste levels;

—  List of "active" Cease and Desist Orders and Cleanup and Abatement Orders from the Water Board;
and

Mendocino Unified Schoo! District Recycled Water System Project  3-28




Environmental Analysis

—  List of hazardous waste facilities subject to corrective action pursuant to Section 25187.5 of the Health
and Safety Code.

The Project corridor was not identified to pass on or immediately adjacent to any parcels on lists compiled
by the California Environmental Protection Agency, Regional Water Quality Control Board, California
Department of Toxic Substances Control, or the CalRecycle Waste Management Board Solid Development
Waste Information System. The nearest such site was a former hazardous materials investigation and
cleanup that occurred on the MUSD office and bus barn. An investigation of that site was conducted
related to a former diesel fuel release, and case closure was granted in 2011 in compliance with the Health
and Safety Code. The impact would be less than significant.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in
a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area? (No
Impact)

The Project site is not located within two miles of a public use airport or private airstrip covered by the
Mendocino County Airport Comprehensive Land Use Plan (Mendocino County 1996). The nearest airport,
Little River Airport, is located approximately 3.5 miles south of the Project site. No impact would result.

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or
emergency evacuation plan? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

The Mendocino County Emergency Operations Plan serves as the primary guide for coordinating and
responding to all emergencies and disasters within the County’s jurisdiction. It complies and integrates with
local city plans and ordinances, state law, and state and federal emergency planning guidance including the
Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS), National Incident Management System (NIMS)
and the Incident Command System (ICS). The Emergency Operations Plan addresses response to and
short-term recovery from disasters and emergency situations affecting the Mendocino County Operational
Area.

3

The Mendocino County Evacuation Plan (Mendocino County 2020) describes the strategies for managing
evacuations which exceed the day-to-day capabilities of the various public safety agencies in Mendocino
County. As dictated by the County’s Emergency Operations Plan, the Sheriff's Office is charged with the
responsibility of evacuation in response to a major event threatening the life safety of residents and visitors
of Mendocino County. With a special emphasis placed on the wildland fire threat, the strategies outlined in
the Mendocino County Evacuation Plan are designed using an all-hazards approach to preparing for and
managing evacuations. Typically, most evacuations in the County are a result of a quickly spreading wildfire
and “life safety” will carry the highest priority in the incident management. However, the County’s
Evacuation Plan is designed to be applied in any event regardless of the threat or hazard that precipitates
the need to evacuate an area.

The Project site is located within the Town of Mendocino, which is located within Evacuation Planning Area
4, West Central and Coastal Region. Little Lake Road is identified as a key route for wildfire evacuations
relative to nearby areas located east of Highway 1, which includes approximately 200 homes and the
Mendocino elementary and high schools. During construction, work occurring within Little Lake Road and
other local roadways could temporarily impair implementation of the County’s Evacuation Plan, which is
considered a significant impact.

Following construction, the Project would not change existing circulation patterns, would not generate
substantial new traffic, and would not affect roadways that may be used as emergency response routes.

Mendocine Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-29




Environmental Analysis

Therefore, the Project would not impair or physically interfere with implementation of Mendocino County’s
Emergency Operations Plan or Evacuation Plan. No operational impact would result.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-1 (Implement Traffic Controls During Construction) and Impact
TR-2 (Notify Emergency Responders and Maintain Emergency Access), as summarized in Section 3.17 of
this Initial Study, require the use of traffic controls and measures to maintain emergency access that would
reduce the temporary impairment of evacuation routes during construction of the Project. Such measures
would include traffic control plans to preserve access and ensure public safety, notifications to emergency
providers, and measures to ensure that emergency access is able to be maintained, such as the use of
steel trench plates to cover open excavations. Therefore, with implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-1
and TR-2, the impact would be less than significant.

a) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or
death involving wildland fires? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

A wildfire is an uncontrolled fire spreading through vegetative fuels, posing danger and destruction to
property, wildlife and human life. The Project site is located within a State Responsibility Area (SRA), which
is an area where the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) has the primary
responsibility for wildfire protection. Based on current CAL FIRE mapping, the Project site is located in an
area that has been designated as a “moderate” fire hazard severity zone (CAL FIRE 2007). The
Mendocino Volunteer Fire Department provides emergency response within the Project area, and the
nearest fire station is located on Little Lake Road east of Highway 1.

The Mendocino County Fire Vulnerability Assessment (Mendocino County 2020b) identifies areas of the
County that are most vulnerable to fire and provides recommendations for improving the County’s existing
strategies and practices for preventing wildfires. The Fire Vulnerability Assessment notes that the Town of
Mendocino west of Highway 1 is not threatened by wildfire, as it is surrounded by ocean on three sides and
is protected by Highway 1 on the fourth side (Mendocino County 2020b). The Fire Vulnerability
Assessment notes that areas located the east of Highway 1, which includes the Project alignment along
Little Lake Road and the MUSD-owned tank site property, is susceptible to wildfire.

It is possible that fire ignition could occur during construction (e.g., related to heavy machinery usage).
Therefore, the potential construction-related impact is considered significant. With implementation of
Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 (Reduce Wildland Fire Hazards during Construction), provided below, the impact
would be less than significant.

Following construction, the Project would not result in changes to growth patterns or residential densities.
The Project site is not located within a mapped wildland-urban interface area. The use of the property on
Little Lake Road where the recycled water tank would be constructed would be substantially the same as
the existing sites. The Project also would add approximately 13 new fire hydrants along the pipeline
corridor, improving fire suppression capabilities in the Project area. The operational impact of the Project
would be less than significant.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 would require the use of construction techniques that would
reduce the likelihood of wildland fires during construction of the Project. Therefore, with implementation of
Mitigation Measure HAZ-1, the impact related to wildland fires would be less than significant.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-30




Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1: Reduce Wildland Fire Hazards during Construction

Prior to construction, the MUSD and its contractor(s) shall remove and/or clear away dry,
combustible vegetation from the construction site. Grass and other vegetation less than 18 inches
in height above the ground shall be maintained where necessary to stabilize the soil and prevent
erosion. Vehicles shall not be parked in areas where exhaust systems contact combustible
materials. Fire extinguishers shall be available on the construction site to assist in quickly
extinguishing any small fires. The contractors shall have on site the phone number for the local fire
department(s).

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-31




Environmental Analysis

3.10  Hydrology and Water Quality

- Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste
discharge requirements or otherwise substantially | v
degrade surface or ground water quality?

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge
such that the project may impede sustainable
groundwater management of the basin?

¢) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of
the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river or through the
addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which
would:

i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or v
off-site?

ii. Substantially increase the rate or amount of
surface runoff in a manner which would result in v
flooding on- or off-site?

ili. Create or contribute runoff water which would
exceed the capacity of existing or planned v
stormwater drainage systems or provide
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?

iv. Impede or redirect flood flows? v

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk : v
release of pollutants due to project inundation?

g) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water ‘
‘ quality control plan or sustainable groundwater ‘ v
management plan? ‘f

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise
substantially degrade surface or ground water quality? (Less than Significant with
Mitigation)

The Project area is located approximately half a mile north of the Big River and does not contain any on-site
aquatic drainages. There is no direct hydrologic connectivity between the Project site and Big River or
other perennial waterbodies, waterways or drainages. Temporary construction activities have the potential
to degrade water quality that could be discharged to the local storm drain system as a result of erosion
caused by earthmoving activities or the accidental release of hazardous construction chemicals. Therefore,
if not properly managed, construction activities could result in erosion, as well the discharge of chemicals
and materials. In such an instance, applicable water quality standards and waste discharge requirements
could be violated, and polluted runoff could substantially degrade water quality in the local storm drain
system. The impact is considered significant. With implementation of Mitigation Measure HYD-1

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-32




Environmental Analysis

(Implement Storm Water Control Measures During Construction), the potential impact related to water
quality during construction would be reduced to a less-than-significant level.

Following construction, operation and maintenance of the Project would not result in a new point discharge,
a substantial increase in impervious surfaces, or require planned discharges to the local storm drain
system. No operational impact would result.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure HYD-1 would reduce potential construction-phase impacts relative to
water quality standards and waste discharge requirements to a less-than-significant level by requiring
implementation of best management practices and compliance with applicable State and local
requirements.

Mitigation Measure HYD-1: Implement Storm Water Control Measures During Construction

The MUSD and its contractor shall implement appropriate Best Management Practices (BMPs) to
prevent the discharge of construction waste, debris or contaminants during construction activities.
A Water Pollution Control Plan (WPCP) shall be prepared for MUSD review and approval prior to
construction. BMPs may include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:

- Existing vegetation within the construction area shall be maintained to the maximum extent
feasible.

- Areas of disturbed soil shall be restored as soon as possible after disturbance.

- Erosion and sediment control devices shall be installed in coordination with construction
activities. Such devices shall include sediment controls, stabilized construction exits, stockpile
management, wind erosion control, and non-storm water management.

- BMPs shall be implemented to prevent the release of hazardous construction chemicals during
construction. Such BMPs shall include material handling and waste management, material
stockpile management, management of any washout areas, control of vehicle/equipment
fueling to contractor's staging area, vehicle and equipment cleaning performed off site, and spill
prevention and control.

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater
recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the
basin? (Less than Significant)

Construction of the Project may potentially require temporary groundwater dewatering to create reasonably
dry work areas. Dewatering methods would vary along the planned alignment to account for varying
groundwater levels and excavation depths. Dewatering would be constructed as needed along the
alignment to draw down the groundwater level to a minimum of three feet below and beyond the trench
excavation bottom and sidewalls. For the trenchless launching and receiving shafts on either side of
Highway 1, dewatering wells may potentially be used, or the shafts would be designed with a water-tight
shoring system. Temporary dewatering would have an effect on localized water levels in the immediate
vicinity of an excavation area. However, because pipeline installation would proceed at approximately 100
feet per day on average, construction activities would continually be shifting. Because of continuous
shifting of the construction activities, prolonged lowering of groundwater levels would not occur. Therefore,
no substantial deficit in aquifer volume or well interference would be expected to occur. The construction-
related impact on groundwater levels would be less than significant.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-33




Environmental Analysis

Following construction, the Project would not utilize groundwater and would not result in an increase in
population or employment that would indirectly increase groundwater demand. Therefore, the Project
would not create a deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of water levels. In addition, the Project would not
result in a substantial increase in impervious areas, and therefore, the Project would not interfere with
groundwater recharge. No operational im’bact would result.

c.i-iv) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in
a manner which would substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a
manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site? Create or contribute runoff water
which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or
provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? Impede or redirect flood flows?
(Less than Significant)

The Project area is located approximately half a mile north of the Big River, does not contain any on-site
streams, and is not within a mapped flood hazard zone (FEMA 2017). As such, implementation of the
Project would not require alteration of a creek or other waterbody.

Project improvements would be located primarily within existing roadways. Areas disturbed during
construction would be restored to pre-construction conditions, and the Project would not result in a
substantial increase in new impervious surfaces. The new recycled water tank would be constructed in the
vicinity of other existing tanks at the MUSD site on Little Lake Road. The Project would not result in a
substantial increase the amount of impervious surface at the site compared to existing conditions. The
Project would not result in a change to drainage patterns, would not alter the course of a stream or river,
would not increase surface runoff, or create substantial additional sources of polluted runoff. The impact
would be less than significant.

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of poliutants due to project
inundation? (No Impact)

The Project site is located in an area designated by the FEMA as Zone X, which is an area of minimal flood
hazard (FEMA 2017). The Project site is not located within a 100-year flood zone as mapped by FEMA or a
tsunami inundation zone as mapped by the California Office of Emergency Services (CDC 2021b), nor
close enough to a waterbody which would be exposed to risks from seiche. The proposed improvements
would not reduce flood storage capacity, impede or redirect flood flows, or expose people or structures to a
significant risk involving flooding. Therefore, implementation of the Project would not risk release of
pollutants due to Project inundation. No impact would result.

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable
groundwater management plan? (No Impact)

The North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board Basin Plan establishes thresholds for key water
resource protection objectives for both surface waters and groundwater in the Project area. The Project is
not located near a stream, creek, or river and would not alter water quality parameters established in the
Basin Plan. Erosion control BMPs would be required to be implemented during construction to prevent
erosion and to protect overall water quality.

The Project is located within a low priority groundwater basin (No. 1-021). The Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA) does not require development of a groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) for the

Mendocino Unified Schoot District Racycled Water System Project  3-34




Environmental Analysis

groundwater basin. Thus, the Project would not obstruct implementation of a sustainable groundwater
management plan.

As described in impact “b” above, the Project would not substantially decrease groundwater supplies or
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge or impede sustainable groundwater management. No

conflicts with a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan have been
identified. Therefore, no impact would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-35




Environmental Analysis

3.11 Land Use and Planning

- Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community? 4

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due toa

| conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation
adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an
environmental effect?

a) Physically divide an established community? (No Impact)

The Project would involve construction and operation of a new recycled water pipeline and a new recycled
water tank at the MUSD tank site on Little Lake Road. The pipeline would be underground, and the new
recycled water tank would be located at the site of the existing MUSD utility site. The Project would not
involve construction of a large physical structure such as a major transportation facility or removal of a
primary access route such as a road or bridge. The Project would not impair mobility within the area or
between the Project site and surrounding areas. The Project components would not physically divide an
established Town of Mendocino. No impact would result.

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or
regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? (Less
than Significant with Mitigation)

The Project alignment traverses through several different General Plan Land Use categories and is
primarily located within public rights-of-way. Project activities would not permanently alter any existing land
uses or their designations, and would not introduce new land uses or land use designations.

The Project also would include improvements on MUSD property currently developed with water system
infrastructure. The MUSD property is currently developed with existing facilities, and the new recycled water
tank would be located within the existing site. The Project is located within the Mendocino County Coastal
Element and the land use designation for the MUSD property is Public and Semi-Public Facility. The
zoning designation is Public Facilities (PF). The Project would not involve a change of land use on the
affected property.

Specific policies and regulations adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating environmental effects are
evaluated in this document under the corresponding issue areas. For example, an evaluation of the Project
in relation to the Mendocino County Historical Preservation District Ordinance, and Mendocino Town
Design Guidelines in relation to work within Historical Zone A, is included in Section 3.5, Cuitural
Resources. An evaluation of wildfire risk and emergency evacuations in relation to the Mendocino County
Evacuation Plan is provided in Section 3.9 (Hazards and Hazardous Materials), and Section 3.20 (Wildfire).
With implementation of the recommended mitigation measures identified in this IS/IMND, the Project would
not conflict with land use plans, policies, or regulations.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-36




Environmental Analysis

3.12 Mineral Resources

Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral
resource that would be of value to the region and v
the residents of the state?

b} Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site delineated
on a local general plan, specific plan or other land
use plan?

a, b) Resultin the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the
region and the residents of the state, or a locally-important mineral resource recovery site
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? (No Impact)

The most predominant of the minerals found in Mendocino County are aggregate resource minerals,
primarily sand and gravel, found along many rivers and streams. Although aggregate hard rock quarry
mines are found throughout the county, there are no locally important aggregate or mineral resources on or
in the vicinity of the Project site (Mendocino County 2008). in addition, the Project site is not located in an
area designated as a Mineral Resource Zone (MRZ)-2 by the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act. The
Project would not result in the loss of known mineral resources of value to the region or state, or loss of
local-important mineral resources. No impact would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-37




Environmental Analysis

3.13 Noise

. Would the project:

a) Result in generation of a substantial temporary or
permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the
vicinity of the project in excess of standards
established in the local general pian or noise
ordinance, or applicable standards of other
agencies?

b) Resultin generation of excessive groundborne
vibration or noise levels?

. ¢) For a project located within the vicinity of a private

" airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a
plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a
public airport or public use airport, would the project
expose people residing or working in the project
area to excessive noise levels?

a) Result in generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise
levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? (Less than Significant)

The County of Mendocino has not established quantified construction noise limits or allowable construction
hours. Noise impacts resulting from construction depend upon the noise generated by various pieces of
construction equipment, the timing and duration of noise-generating activities, and the distance between
construction noise sources and noise-sensitive areas. Construction noise impacts primarily result when
construction activities occur during noise-sensitive times of the day (e.g., early morning, evening, or
nighttime hours), the construction occurs in areas immediately adjoining noise-sensitive land uses, or when
construction lasts over extended periods of time, such as more than one year. In comparison, Project
construction would commence in 2023 and require approximately ten months to complete. Construction
activities would generally occur Monday to Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM. The Project would not require night time
construction work or construction on weekends or legal holidays. Impact pile driving is not anticipated as a
method of construction. Construction activities would be temporary in nature and would not exceed
established noise standards for public health and safety. The construction-related impact would be less
than significant.

Mendocino County General Plan policy DE-98 and DE-99 protect residential areas and other noise-
sensitive uses from excessive noise. These policies regulate the establishment of new land uses, stating
that no new use regulated by the County shall be permitted to generate noise that would cause the ambient
noise on any adjacent parcel to exceed guidelines shown in Policy DE-100 and DE-101. General Plan
policy DE-105 also establishes a 5 decibel increase in CNEL or Ldn noise levels as a significance
threshold. In comparison, the Project would not involve new, noise sensitive land uses and would not
expose persons to noise levels that exceed the noise standards. The new recycled water pipelines would
be underground and their operation would not be audible. Operational noise associated with a new
recycled water tank would not result in a new substantial noise source. There would be no change in

Mendaocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-38




Environmental Analysis

existing traffic-generated noise in the Project area and Project operation would not result in increased noise
levels comparative to existing conditions that could conflict with general plan policies. The operational
impact would be less than significant.

b) Result in generation of excessive groundborne vibration or noise levels? (Less than
Significant)

Vibration from the operation of construction equipment can result in effects ranging from annoyance of
people to damage of structures. Vibration amplitudes decrease with increasing distance as the energy
dissipates. The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) recommends a vibration limit of 0.5
in/sec Peak Particle Velocity (PPV) for groundborne vibration adjacent to new residential and modern
commercial/industrial structures, 0.3 in/sec PPV for older residential structures, and 0.12 in/sec PPV for
historical buildings that are documented to be structurally weakened. For the purposes of this study,
groundborne vibration levels exceeding the conservative 0.3 in/sec PPV limit have been selected as the
significance threshold for a vibration impact, as there are no known historical buildings adjacent to the
Project construction area.

No pile driving would be required for construction of the Project. At a distance of 25 feet, typical
construction activities using non-pile driving construction equipment cause vibration levels up to 0.21 in/sec
PPV. No structures sensitive to groundborne vibration are located within the construction area where the
anticipated vibration levels would exceed the 0.3 in/sec PPV limit. Impacts related to groundborne vibration
or groundborne noise levels would be less than significant.

Following construction, operation of the Project would not result in substantial sources of groundborne
vibration or groundborne noise. Therefore, no operational impact would result.

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or,
where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use
airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive
noise levels? (No Impact)

The Project site is not located within two miles of a public use airport or private airstrip covered by the
Mendocino County Airport Comprehensive Land Use Plan (Mendocino County 1996). No impact from air-
traffic related noise would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-39




Environmental Analysis

3.14  Population and Housing

Would the project:

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in
an area, either directly (for example, by proposing i
new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for v
example, through extension of roads or other
infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or
housing, necessitating the construction of : v
replacement housing elsewhere? :

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)? (Less than Significant)

The Project does not include the construction of new homes or businesses in the area or extend new roads
or other infrastructure into undeveloped areas. The Project is intended to expand the use of the recycled
water to MUSD sites to offset existing potable water use and provide additional fire water storage and
supply. Given the modest level of construction required for the Project, it is reasonable to anticipate that
workforce requirements for construction can be met through the local labor force within the region. Long-
term operation and maintenance of the proposed recycled water system would be performed by existing

MUSD staff. The Project would not induce population growth directly or indirectly. The impact would be
less than significant.

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction
of replacement housing elsewhere? (No Im pact)

Implementation of the Project would not displace existing housing units or residents. The construction of
replacement housing would not be necessary. No impact would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-40




Environmental Analysis

3.15 Public Services

Would the project:

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse
physical impacts associated with the provision of
new or physically altered governmental facilities,
need for new or physically altered governmental
facilities, the construction of which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times
or other performance objectives for any of the
public services:

Fire Protection?

Police protection?
Schools?
Parks?

Other public facilities?

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically
altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or
other performance objectives for public services? (No Impact)

As discussed in Section 3.14, Population and Housing, implementation of the Project would not induce
population growth and, therefore, would not require expanded fire or police protection facilities to maintain
acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives. The Project would not result in
an increase in student population, and therefore, no new or expanded schools would be required. The
Project would not result in the increased use of Friendship Park or other existing parks or other public
facilities as it would not induce population growth. The Project would not require the expansion of
recreational facilities to maintain acceptable service ratios in parks and would not require the expansion of
other public facilities. No impact on public services would result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-41




Environmental Analysis

3.16 Recreation

Would the project:

a) lIncrease the use of existing neighborhood and
regional parks or other recreational facilities such
that substantial physical deterioration of the facility
would occur or be accelerated?

by Include recreational facilities or require the
construction or expansion of recreational facilities,
which might have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities
such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?
(Less than Significant)

Recreational facilities in the vicinity of the Project includes Friendship Park, located at the corner of Little
Lake Road and School Street. Friendship Park features a ball field with permanent bleachers, picnic area,
concession stand, and adjoining parking lot. The construction area for the Project would include installation
of a recycled water pipeline within a portion of the Friendship Park parking lot.

Temporary construction activities would be located on land that is not within the areas of play at Friendship
Park. Construction activities at the park would include pipeline installation over an approximately 1-week
period. Construction would not prevent public access to Friendship Park during construction. Access to
and through the parking lot would be maintained during construction. Because of the temporary nature of
the Project construction activity within the park and because the park would remain open during
construction, the Project is not expected to result in the increased use of other parks such that physical
deterioration could result. The impact would be less than significant.

Following construction, the Project would not increase the use of existing recreational facilities, including
Friendship Park. The Project would not increase the existing population or housing supply of the Project
area. Operation of the Project would not cause long-term access conflicts with Friendship Park or other
recreational facilities. No increased use of parks and other recreational resources would occur at a Project-
specific level that would result in physical deterioration or accelerated deterioration of existing recreational
resources. The operational impact would be less than significant.

b) Include or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities, which might have
an adverse physical effect on the environment? (No Impact)

The Project does not propose new recreational facilities and would not require construction or expansion of
recreational resources that might have an adverse physical effect on the environment. No impact would
resulf.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-42




Environmental Analysis

3.17 Transportation

Would the project:

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy
addressing the circulation system, including transit, v
| roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?
b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines v
section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?
¢) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric
design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous v
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm
equipment)?
. d) Resultin inadequate emergency access? v
a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system,

including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? (Less than Significant)

Project construction activities would result in a short-term increase in construction-related vehicle frips on
local roadways, including Ukiah Street, Kasten Street, Little Lake Street, Lansing Street, Little Lake Road,
School Street, and State Route 1. Construction activity would last approximately 10 months, but because
of the nature of pipeline installation, construction activities would not impact one particular roadway for a
substantial portion of time. Due to the infrequency of truck traffic and the temporary nature of construction,
Project construction is not anticipated to conflict with plans, policies or programs related to the effectiveness

of the circulation system. Please see impact “c” in this section for additional evaluation of construction-
related impacts.

Following construction, the proposed new recycled water facilities would be put into an operation and
maintenance schedule that may include periodic cleanings once or twice per year. Operation and
maintenance activities could also include periodic monitoring during or after large storm events. Operation
and maintenance of the new facilities would generate less than one traffic trip per day on average. Dueto
the infrequency of maintenance trips and the short duration of such trips, Project operation is not
anticipated to conflict with plans, policies or programs related to the effectiveness of the circulation system.
No transit, roadway, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities would be affected. Therefore, the operational impact
would be less than significant.

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? (Less
than Significant)

As amended in December 2018 and effective statewide beginning on July 1, 2020, CEQA Guidelines
section 15064.3 (Determining the Significance of Transportation Impacts) specifies that Vehicle Miles
Travelled (VMT) is the primary metric or measure of effectiveness for determining the significance of
transportation impacts across California. VMT refers to the amount and distance of automobile travel
attributable to a project. The Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) has published a Technical
Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA (OPR 2018) which contains guidance on
methodology and recommendations for establishing screening criteria and thresholds for VMT evaluation,

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-43




Environmental Analysis

which is used to evaluate impacts in this Initial Study. OPR’s Technical Advisory specifies that
transportation impact analysis be based on either a project's VMT per capita (or other efficiency metric like
VMT per household, per employee) or total VMT change (before and after project).

Under the OPR guidance, construction traffic is not considered a feature of a project and is temporary,
therefore the Technical Guidance does not consider construction traffic in the analysis. Operation and
maintenance of the proposed Project would generate less than one traffic trip per day on average. OPR’s
screening thresholds for Land Use Projects includes an assumption that projects that generate or attract
fewer than 110 trips per day may be assumed to cause a less-than-significant transportation impact. The
OPR Technical Advisory does not include specific screening criteria for utility projects similar to the
proposed Project. However, when one considers the screening criteria established for Land Use Projects, it
is reasonable to acknowledge that the trips associated with operation and maintenance of the Project (less
than 1 trip per day) would be substantially less than the screening criteria for a Land Use Project (110 trips
per day). The Project would not conflict with or be inconsistent with an applicable threshold of significance
adopted per CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b). The impact would be less than significant.

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? (Less than Significant
with Mitigation)

Construction of the Project would result in a short-term increase in vehicle trips on local roadways within the
Town of Mendocino and on Highway 1. Construction would result in vehicle trips by construction workers,
supply trucks, and haul trucks to and from the active portion of construction along the Project alignment.
The number of construction-related vehicles traveling to and from the site would vary on a daily basis. In
general, construction is anticipated to require approximately 20 haul truck roundtrips each day.
Construction would also result in daily vehicle trips by construction workers (approximately 10 to 15 per
day). Construction related vehicle trips would be distributed throughout the day. The addition of
construction-related vehicles would not substantially affect congestion on local roadway segments, because
the daily construction trips would move around and because they are a small percentage of the capacity of
the roadways. Therefore, the temporary impact of increased truck traffic would be less than significant.

Construction of the Project would temporarily alter the normal functionality of local roadways due to the
need for temporary lane closures during pipeline installation. This would result in short-term decreases in
the performance and safety of local roadways during construction. This could create the potential for
conflicts between construction vehicles and cars, bicyclists, or pedestrians sharing roadways; confusion or
frustration of drivers related to construction activities and detours; and confusion of bicyclists and
pedestrians due to temporary alterations in bicycle and pedestrian access and circulation. The impact
would be significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-1 (Implement Traffic Controls During
Construction) would reduce the impact to a less-than-significant level.

Following construction, the new recycled water pipeline would be located below ground, and existing
conditions along the temporarily impacted roads would be restored to pre-existing conditions. Other
improvements would be located at Mendocino High School, Mendocino K-8 School, Friendship Park, and
the MUSD tank site and would not present a design feature or incompatible use that would result in
transportation hazards. The Project would not create sharp curves, new intersections, changes to speed
limits, or other features that would prevent safe access through the area. No operational impact would
result.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-44




Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-1 would reduce potential impacts relative to traffic hazards during
construction to a less-than-significant level by requiring implementation of traffic controls.

Mitigation Measure TR-1: Implement Traffic Controls During Construction

The MUSD and its contractor shall implement traffic controls to reduce traffic conflicts within local
and state roadways during construction to minimize disruption. A traffic control plan shall be
prepared for MUSD review and approval prior to construction, which shall comply with Caltrans and
Mendocino County encroachment permit requirements. All traffic control devices shall comply with
the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. Traffic controls may include, but not
necessarily be limited to, the following:

- During construction, at least one lane in each direction of roadways shall be kept open at all
times. Through traffic shall be maintained at all times (e.g., through temporary signals, flaggers
or other means).

- Bicycle and pedestrian access shall be maintained at all times, using short signed detours
around the construction zone if necessary.

- Access to properties shall be maintained at all times, apart from extremely brief periods while
construction work is passing through. Such exceptions shall be minimized as far as reasonably
practicable.

- Advance notification of construction work to the community and stakeholders shall be
conducted to provide notice of work.

- Construction work shall occur outside of peak travel hours as far as reasonably practicable.

~ Road and parking configurations shall be restored to pre-Project conditions.

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

Construction activities would primarily occur within the public right-of-way, including travel lanes and
parking lanes on streets and other areas designated as right-of-way. In some portions of the alignment,
partial lane closures would be required.

The Mendocino Volunteer Fire Department provides emergency response within the Project area. The
nearest fire station is located at 44700 Little Lake Road, adjacent to a portion of the proposed pipeline
alignment. Pipeline construction within and adjacent to public roadways that results in a reduction in travel
lanes could result in delays for emergency response vehicles or temporarily block access to driveways and
cross-streets along the pipeline route. The impact would only occur during the day when construction is
ongoing given that vehicle access would be restored at the end of each workday through the use of steel
trench plates or trench backfilling. Nevertheless, the impact of construction activities on emergency access
to adjacent properties would be significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-2 (Notify Emergency
Responders and Maintain Emergency Access) would reduce the impact to a less-than-significant level.

Following construction, operation and maintenance of the Project would not result in substantial additional
daily traffic from maintenance activities or truck trips along local roadways, and would, therefore, not affect
emergency services or response times in the area. Additionally, no roadway closures would cccur during
normal operation of the Project. The operational impact on emergency access would be less than
significant.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-45




Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measure

Mitigation Measure TR-2 would reduce the impact of construction activities on emergency access to a less-
than-significant level by requiring contractor(s) to have ready at all imes the means necessary to
accommodate access by emergency vehicles, as well as notifying emergency responders in advance of

construction activities. Therefore, the impact on emergency access following mitigation would be less than
significant.

Mitigation Measure TR-2: Notify Emergency Responders and Maintain Emergency Access

The MUSD and its contractor shall implement the following measures:

- Access to driveways and public and private roads shall be maintained, as feasible, by using
steel trench plates. If access must be restricted for brief periods (more than one hour), property
owners shall be notified by MUSD in advance of such closures.

- At locations where the main access to a nearby property is blocked, MUSD and the contractor
shall be required to have ready at all times the means necessary to accommodate access by
emergency vehicles to such properties, such as plating over excavations, short detours, and/or
alternate routes.

- Construction shall be coordinated with emergency service providers and administrators of land
uses that may be more significantly affected by traffic impacts, such as fire stations, schools,
hospitals, and ambulance providers. As construction progresses, emergency providers, and
other land uses as mentioned above, shall be notified by MUSD in advance of construction of
the timing, location, and duration of construction activities and the locations and durations of
any temporary detours and/or lane closures.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-46




Environmental Analysis

3.18  Tribal Cultural Resources

. Would the project;

significance of a tribal cultural resource listed or
eligible for listing in the California Register of
Historic Resources, or in a local register of historic
resources as defined in Public Resources Code
section 5020.1(k)?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of a tribal cultural resource that is a
resource determined by the lead agency, in its
discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to |
be significant pursuant to the criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of the Public Resources Code v
section 5024.1? In applying the criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of the Public Resources Code
section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the
significance of the resource to a California Native
American Tribe.

a,b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource? (Less
than Significant with Mitigation)

CEQA requires lead agencies to determine if a project would have a significant effect on tribal cultural
resources. The CEQA Guidelines define tribal cultural resources as: (1) a site, feature, place, cultural
landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American Tribe that is listed or
eligible for listing on the California Register of Historical Resources, or on a local register of historical
resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k); or (2) a resource determined by the lead
agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant according to the historical
register criteria in Public Resources Code Section 5024.1(c), and considering the significance of the
resource to a California Native American tribe.

Efforts to identify tribal cultural resources that could be affected by the Project included notification to
appropriate local Native American Tribes, and a sacred lands search through the Native American Heritage
Commission (NAHC). The search of the NAHC's Sacred Lands File for Sacred Sites in the Project area
was positive.

The MUSD has no record of receiving requests for notification of proposed projects from California Native
American tribes pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.3.1. The MUSD nevertheless initiated
contact with Native American tribes as part of preparing this environmental review document. California
Native American tribes also were notified of the Project on December 6, 2021 during completion of the
Archaeological Resources Study for the Project. Letters were sent to the Hopland Band of Pomo Indians,
Manchester Band of Pomo Indians, Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria, Robinson Rancheria Band
of Pomo Indians, Guidiville Indian Rancheria, Cahto Tribe, Kashia Band of Pomo Indians of Stewarts Point
Rancheria, Coyote Valley Band of Pomo Indians, Sherwood Valley Band of Pomo Indians, Noyo River
Indian Community, Redwood Valley or Little River Band of Pomo Indians, Potter Valley Tribe, Round Valley

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-47




Environmental Analysis

Reservation/Covelo Indian Community, Habematolel Pomo of Upper Lake, Pinoleville Pomo Nation, and
Yokayo Tribe. As of the date of this Initial Study, no responses were received from Native American tribes.

As summarized in Section 3.5, Cultural Resources, background research indicates a high sensitivity for
prehistoric and historic-era archaeological resources in the Project area (ASC 2021). Therefore, the
possibility of encountering tribal cultural resources cannot be discounted, and if tribal cultural resources are
encountered during construction, a potentially significant impact could oceur. Implementation of Mitigation
Measures TCR-1, CUL-2, and CUL-3 would reduce the potential impact on tribal cultural resources to a
less-than-significant level.

Following construction, Project operation would not include ground disturbing activities. Therefore, the
operational impact would be less than significant.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measures TCR-1, CUL-2, and CUL-3 would reduce the potential impact to
tribal cultural resources to a less-than-significant level by conducting pre-construction contractor fraining
and outlining procedures to be taken in the event of inadvertent discovery of such resources consistent with
appropriate laws and requirements. Please refer to Section 3.5, Cultural Resources, for a description of
Mitigation Measures CUL-2 and CUL-3.

Mitigation Measure TCR-1: Protect Tribal Cultural Resources during Construction Activities

In the event that any subsurface features or deposits are discovered during construction, ground-
disturbing activity in the vicinity of the resource shall be halted. The appropriate tribal
representative(s) shall be notified, and a Native American monitor and a qualified professional
archaeologist shall be retained to evaluate the find. If the find qualifies as a tribal cultural resource
as defined by CEQA, the City shall ensure that appropriate actions to protect the resource are taken
and that no additional resources are affected.

Mendocino Unified School Disirict Recycled Water System Project  3-48




Environmental Analysis

3.19  Utilities and Service Systems

Would the project:

new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or
storm water drainage, electrical power, natural gas, v
or telecommunications facilities, the construction or
relocation of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the
project and reasonably foreseeable future v
development during normal, dry and multiple dry
years?

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater
treatment provider which serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the v
project’s projected demand in addition to the
provider's existing commitments?

- d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local

standards, or in excess of the capacity of local v
infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of
solid waste reduction goals?

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management

and reduction statutes and regulations related to ‘ v
solid waste? "’
a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater

treatment or storm water drainage, electrical power, natural gas, or telecommunications
facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects? (Less than Significant)

The Project would include construction and operation of a recycled water distribution system and
associated facilities, including installation of recycled water pipelines, irrigation systems, and a recycled
water storage tank. The potential environmental impacts associated with construction of the proposed
recycled water utilities are evaluated as part of this Initial Study. No additional utility relocations or
construction of additional off-site utilities beyond those identified as necessary for the Project and evaluated
in this Initial Study would be required.

Drainage patterns would remain essentially the same as they currently exist. The Project would result in a
very small increase in impermeable surfaces associated with the proposed recycled water storage tank.
Because the Project would not substantially increase storm water runoff or impervious surfaces, the Project
would not require expanded storm water drainage. The Project also would not require new or expanded
sewer, natural gas or telecommunications facilities. The impact would be less than significant.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-48




Environmental Analysis

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable
future development during normal, dry and muitiple dry years? (No Impact)

The Project is intended to expand the use of the recycled water to MUSD sites to offset existing potable
water use and provide additional fire water storage and supply. The Project would not induce population
growth or result in land uses that would increase demand for water supplies. No impact would result.

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve
the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition
to the provider’s existing commitments? (No Impact)

The Project would not generate additional wastewater demand and would not alter existing wastewater
characteristics or result in the need for new treatment methods. Therefore, there would be no need to
expand wastewater facilities. No impact would resuit.

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of
focal infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals? (Less
than Significant)

Soil excavated during construction would be used for backfill, or would be hauled off-site for re-use or
disposal as required by County regulations. Materials that could not be reused or composted would be
disposed of at a local transfer station or solid waste facility. Solid waste generated during Project
construction would represent a very small fraction of the daily permitted tonnage of disposal facilities and
would be sufficiently accommodated by existing landfills. The construction-related impact would be less
than significant. Following construction, operation of the Project would not require routine disposal of solid
waste. No operational impact would resuit.

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations
related to solid waste? (No Impact)

No federal solid waste regulations would apply to the Project. At the State level, the Integrated Waste
Management Act mandates a reduction of waste being disposed and establishes an integrated framework
for program implementation, solid waste planning, and solid waste facility and landfill compliance. The
Project would not conflict with or impede implementation of such programs. Following construction, Project
operation would not generate additional solid waste. No impact would resuilt.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-50




Environmental Analysis

3.20 Wildfire

~Iflocated in or near State Responsibility Areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the
project:

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency

; v
response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors,
exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose
project occupants to poliutant concentrations from a
wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

¢) Require the installation or maintenance of
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel
breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or
other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that
may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the
environment?

including downslope or downstream flooding or
landslides as a result of runoff, post-fire slop
instability, or drainage changes?

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?
(Less than Significant with Mitigation)

The Mendocino County Emergency Operations Plan serves as the primary guide for coordinating and
responding to all emergencies and disasters within the County’s jurisdiction. The Mendocino County
Evacuation Plan (Mendocino County 2020) describes the strategies for managing evacuations which
exceed the day-to-day capabilities of the various public safety agencies in Mendocino County. With a
special emphasis placed on wildland fire threat, the strategies outlined in the Mendocino County Evacuation
Plan are designed using an all-hazards approach to preparing for and managing evacuations. Typically,
most evacuations in the County are a result-of a quickly spreading wildfire and “life safety” will carry the
highest priority in the incident management. However, the County’s Evacuation Plan is designed to be
applied in any event regardless of the threat or hazard that precipitates the need to evacuate an area.

The Project site is located within Evacuation Planning Area 4, West Central and Coastal Region. Little
Lake Road is identified as a key route for wildfire evacuations relative to nearby areas located east of
Highway 1, which includes approximately 200 homes and the Mendocino elementary and high schools.
During construction, work occurring within Little Lake Road and other local roadways could temporarily
impair implementation of the County’s Evacuation Plan, which is considered a significant impact.

Following construction, the Project would not change existing circulation patterns, would not generate
substantial new traffic, and would not affect roadways that may be used as emergency response routes.
Therefore, the Project would not impair or physically interfere with implementation of Mendocino County’s
Emergency Operations Plan or Evacuation Plan. No operational impact would result.

Mendocino Unified Schaol District Recycled Water System Project  3-51




Environmental Analysis

Mitigation Measures

Implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-1 (Implement Traffic Controls During Construction) and Impact
TR-2 (Notify Emergency Responders and Maintain Emergency Access), as summarized in Section 3.17 of
this Initial Study, require the use of traffic controls and measures to maintain emergency access that would
reduce the temporary impairment of evacuation routes during construction of the Project. Such measures
would include traffic control plans to preserve access and ensure public safety, notifications to emergency
providers, and measures to ensure that emergency access is able to be maintained, such as the use of
steel trench plates to cover open excavations. Therefore, with implementation of Mitigation Measure TR-1
and TR-2, the impact would be less than significant.

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby
expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled
spread of a wildfire? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

Based on current CAL FIRE mapping, the Project site is located in an area that has been designated as a
‘moderate” fire hazard severity zone (CAL FIRE 2007). The Mendocino County Fire Vulnerability
Assessment (Mendocino County 2020b) identifies areas of the County that are most vulnerable to fire and
provides recommendations for improving the County’s existing strategies and practices for preventing
wildfires. The Fire Vulnerability Assessment notes that the Town of Mendocino west of Highway 1 is not
threatened by wildfire, as it is surrounded by ocean on three sides and is protected by Highway 1 on the
fourth side (Mendocino County 2020b). The Fire Vulnerability Assessment notes that areas located east of
Highway 1, which includes the Project alignment along Little Lake Road and the MUSD-owned tank site
property, is susceptible to wildfire.

As discussed in Section 3.9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, it is possible that fire ignition could occur
during construction (e.g., related to heavy machinery usage). Given the vegetation at the MUSD tank site
on Little Lake Road and the proximity of nearby residences, the construction-related impact is considered
significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-2, as described in Section 3.9, Hazards and
Hazardous Materials, would reduce the potential impact of construction activities on wildland fires to a less-
than-significant level by requiring the use of construction techniques that minimize fire risk.

Following construction, the Project would not alter site topography in a manner that exacerbates wildlife risk
or exposure of the public to pollutants in the event of an uncontrolled wildlife. No new chemicals or
hazardous materials would be used operationally such that the increase of pollutant exposure in the event
of an uncontrolled wildfire would not increase above existing conditions. The Project would not result in
changes to growth patterns or residential densities. The Project site is not located within a mapped
wildland-urban interface area. The use of the property on Little Lake Road where the recycled water tank
would be constructed would be substantially the same as the existing sites. The Project also would add
approximately 13 new fire hydrants along the pipeline corridor, improving fire suppression capabilities in the
Project area. The operational impact of the Project would be less than significant.

Mitigation Measure

Implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 (Reduce Wildland Fire Hazards during Construction), as
summarized in Section 3.9 of this Initial Study, would require the use of construction techniques that would
reduce the likelihood of wildland fires during construction of the Project. Therefore, with implementation of
Mitigation Measure HAZ-1, the impact related to wildland fires would be less than significant.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-52




Environmental Analysis

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel
breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk
or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment? (Less than

Significant)

The Project would tie into existing electrical utilities, and electrical power would be provided by from existing
utility lines. The Project would not require additional roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power
lines or other utilities. Operation and maintenance activities currently occur under existing conditions and,
following construction, the Project would not result in the need for substantial additional operation and
maintenance activities. Therefore, the Project would not exacerbate fire risk or result in temporary or
ongoing impacts to the environment. The proposed Project consists of typical utility system infrastructure,
and any increase in fire risk as a result of maintenance would be minimal. The impact would be less than
significant.

d) Expose people of structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream
flooding or landslides as & result of runoff, post-fire slop instability, or drainage changes?
(Less than Significant)

The Project site is located in low-lying and generally flat uplands in the Town of Mendocinof No streams or
drainages are present on or near the Project site. Because the Project is located in an upland environment
away from a stream Of similar waterway, risk of downslope flooding or landslides associated with post-fire
slope instability or changes in drainage is low. The impact would be less than significant.

Mendocing Unified Schoot District Recycled Water System Project 3-53




Environmental Analysis

3.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance

Does the project:

a) Have the potential to substantially degrade the
quality of the environment, substantially reduce the
habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or
wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal v
community, substantially reduce the number or
restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or
animal or eliminate important examples of the major
periods of California history or prehistory?

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, but
cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively
considerable” means that the incremental effects of
a project are considerable when viewed in ‘ v
connection with the effects of past projects, the
effects of other current projects, and the effects of
probable future projects)?

¢) Have environmental effects which would cause
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either 4
directly or indirectly?

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment,
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife
population to drop below self sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal
community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered
plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or
prehistory? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

Potential Project impacts to biological and cultural resources are addressed in Section 3.4, Biological
Resources, Section 3.5, Cultural Resources, and Section 3.18, Tribal Cultural Resources, respectively.
With implementation of the recommended mitigation measures identified in this Initial Study, the potential
for Project-related activities to degrade the quality of the environment, including wildlife species or their
habitat, plant or animal communities, or important examples of California history or prehistory would be
reduced to less-than-significant levels.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other
current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? (Less than Significant)

Cumulative impacts are defined as “two or more individual effects which, when considered together, are
considerable or which compound or increase other environmental impacts” (CEQA Guidelines Section
15355). Cumulative impacts can result from individually minor but collectively significant actions taking
place over a period of time.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  3-54




Environmental Analysis

This cumulative impact analysis uses the list approach. Efforts to identify cumulative projects included
review of proposed projects with the MUSD and online portals summarizing proposed developments within
Mendocino County.

Projects identified and considered for cumulative impacts include:

—  Planned water system improvements at the MUSD tank site at 44020 Little Lake Road, including

replacement of existing water storage tanks, a new treatment building, and new municipal groundwater
wells;

—  Planned future improvements to the MCCSD WWTP at 10500 Kelly Street, including new chlorination
systems, pumping, and piping improvements;

—  Planned school modernization projects at Mendocino High School; and
—  Planned street striping along Main Street and Lansing Street.

As summarized in this Initial Study, the Project would not result in impacts on agriculture and forestry
resources, mineral resources, or public services. Therefore, implementation of the Project would not
contribute to any related cumulative impact on those resources.

Based on current schedules, construction of the cumulative projects identified above would not overlap with
construction of the proposed Project, and given the small footprint of the cumulative projects, would not add
appreciably to any existing or foreseeable future cumulative impact. The impacts of the proposed Project
related to aesthetics, air quality, biological resources, cuitural and tribal cultural resources, hazards and
hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, transportation, and wildfire would be mitigated to a less-
than-significant level. Incremental impacts, if any, would be very small, and the curmulative impact would be
less than significant.

c) Does the project have environmental effects which would cause substantial adverse effects
on human beings, either directly or indirectly? (Less than Significant with Mitigation)

With implementation of the recommended mitigation measures identified in this Initial Study, the potential
for Project-related activities to cause substantial adverse effects on human beings would be reduced to
less-than-significant levels.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project 3-55




References

4. References

Anthropological Studies Center (ASC). 2021. Archaeological Resources Study for the MUSD Recycled
Water System Project. December.

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). 2017. California Environmental Quality Act, Air
Quality Guidelines. May.

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2017. California’s 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan. November.
CARB. 2019. Area Designations for State Standards. Effective July 2019.

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2021. State Scenic Highway List. Available online:
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot—media/programs/design/documents/ZO1 7-03desigandeligible-
al1y.xlsx

California Department of Conservation (CDC). 2021a. Mendocino County Important Farmland 2018, Sheet
20f 2.

CDC. 2021b. California Tsunami Maps and Data. Mendocino County. Updated 2021. Available online at:
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/tsunami/mapslmendocino

California Department of Parks and Recreation (CDPR). 1971. California Coastline Preservation and
Recreation Plan.

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE). 2007. Mendocino County Fire Hazard
Severity Zones in SRA.

California Department of Water Resources (CDWR). Bulletin 118. Fort Bragg Terrace Area Groundwater
Basin.

CDWR. 2021. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Portal. Online at:
https://sgma.water.ca.gov/portal/#intro.

FEMA. 2017. National Flood Insurance Program. Flood Insurance Rate Map Number 06045C1200G:
Mendocino, CA. Federal Emergency Management Agency. July 18.

GHD. 2021. Biological Resources Evaluation. December 8.

Mendocino County Air Quality Management District (MCAQMD). 2005a. Particulate Matter Attainment
Plan. January.

MCAQMD. 2005b. Map of Likely Areas to Contain NOA in Mendocino County. May, 24.
MCAQMD. 2010. Adopted Air Quality CEQA Thresholds of Significance. June 2.
MCAQMD. 2013. Advisory; District Interim CEQA Criteria and GHG Pollutants Thresholds. December.

Mendocino County. 1992. County of Mendocino Coastal Element, Chapter 4.13: Mendocino Town Plan.
June 10.

Mendocino County. 1996. Mendocino County Airport Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  4-1




References

Mendocino County. 2006. Fire Responsibility Areas & Fire District Boundaries.

Mendocino County. 2008. County of Mendocino General Plan Update Draft EIR. September.
Mendocino County. 2009. The County of Mendocino General Plan. August.

Mendocino County. 2014. Lands in Williamson Act and TPZ.

Mendocino County. 2016. Coastal Zone & CDP Exclusion Areas.

Mendocino County. 2020a. Mendocino County Evacuation Plan. July.

Mendocino County. 2020b. Fire Vulnerability Assessment for Mendocino County. August.

Office of Planning and Research (OPR). 2018. Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation impacts in
CEQA. State of California Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. December.

United States Environmental Protection Agency. 2021. Nonattainment Areas for Criteria Pollutants.
Online at: https://www.epa.gov/green-book

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  4-2




5. Report Preparers

5.1 Mendocino Unified School District

Jason Morse, Superintendent

5.2 GHD

Brian Bacciarini, Senior Environmental Scientist
Charles Smith, AICP, LEED AP, Senior Environmental Planner
Elizabeth Meisman, Wildlife Biologist

5.3 Sub-consultants

Anthropological Studies Center, Sonoma State University

Samantha Dollinger, M.A., RPA, Staff Archaeologist

Report Preparers

Mendocino Unified School District Recycled Water System Project  5-1










o 1 5

g Py 185 P s g 6

1oL o moa.z W0Ms 5T 5555 ey suns sy s s ) ot s g 51

1920124 @

) AOIWNTH

Or#r0L OL 00400} VLS - INITYILYM GFTDADIY .. U

WILSAS MILUM OFIDAITY s -
1011810 JOOHOS ONIIND ONIDOONIW ca| v e

HINGTH Y

TYAOHdYIMIIAZY VSO TETED
QYddVIMIIAT MIIA IN40Ud

0L 133r8NS LON L3313 SIHL

oty Gt 50t

101 e e B

g

w1 ;;?.:\, :

ks

8t fee . S

Fresiony

LR

et e i Eaty

%
Qrebtt

S31ON TUINED 233HS

201-0 L3IHS 338 O+40L VIS ANITHOLYW




Nikais vy

1940424y

[E

00+601 OL 0¥+¥0} VLS - 3NIT ¥3LYM 0370403

KOINHTA W

WILSAS ¥ILYM 0310A03Y
ARSI T00HDS GININD ONIDOGNAN

B L

TYAOHddVIMIIAIY VST
0L 103rgns LON LF3HS SIHL

ro0)

NotveT

SILON TVYENID L3THS

€04-D L33HS 338 00+604 YIS  INIHOLYN

3
4




€040 ] oEh

HRONSSY G

a1 ARY

05+ELE OL G0+60F Y.LS - INITYILYM QITOA0TY oo
WILSAS ¥3LVYAM 037104034

WAQHdVIMIINTY YSQ
04 LO3rENS LON L33HS SiHL

i

FLEE]

WG

RO S et

'L

22

RALAYT

s

e

Gt

¥

5031

M3IA 3U408d

it

N

A B A

L

s

N e
L TRE

o

MIBIANYTd

et

SLON TVUSNED 133Hs

, e
05+€LL VIS INITHOLWA




g

¥01D y.:i QiKY Hsows v

1026123

o e 14

004841 OLOS+ELL VIS - INMTHILYM QF10A03Y

At

WILSAS HIALVM A3T0A03Y

LO1M1810 TOOHDS aIHIND Oz.oonzmi sty

IVAOHdVIMIIADY VS0

01 133rans 1ON 133HS SiHL

fesss

iy

@

sem v dol
or

et

S 3NITHOLYI
Ly -
3

S3LON TVHINTO 133HS




[T g e . S —

53 018 M

§01-2

~ 01sNY NIOHSSY 3035 sy s s

ey g g Py 03|

w0

aRRse L AQEANGA
0942271 01 00+841 VLS - 3T HILYM QFT0AD3Y Je— J—
WHLISAS H3LYM QHT0A03Y « T —

L3W181d T00HIS GHING ONIQQANAW

TVAOUddVIMIIAZY VSO -
OYddvIMm MIA 308

01 103r8NS 1ON 133HS SiHL

s e o s a0 [l cnsi g
o h .
o 0
g H ]
El -
. - Thate gL - T
23 R e s Wi
S et
T g
e
& i
o .
DL W ez Wralh St

S3L0ON TWYINID 133HS

901-0 L3FHS 33S  09+22) VIS INIHOLYA




NHOHS §¥

1aloichy

ERT

00+L21 0L 09+22) V1S - NI UILYM A3 TOADTY  »

ot

QBT fgnarmy 5
WALSAS UIIVM I TIADDY sy
LJIMISIT TO0HIS AI4INA ON . comad ren g e
WAOHIIVIMIIATY VST
01103rans 10N 133HS SIHL
]

il DA GaLE B R iesls T et
&2

ol

P a7 VL L S e S L s s s

S310N TWYINTO LTINS

i

B}

1000 13348 338

e

(e

it

&

{ [
00+22L VIS INITHOIVIN




fo gty v i

104 = “Emzq

NsEGHE Y

o o et
Yo

0S+1€} OL 00+22) VIS - INITYILYM 0I1DAD3Y

W3LSAS ¥31VM 03104039
ADIASIO 00HDS Q3ING

LI

FLEEEN

RIROIH T

saom wei

02 N, G258 12 2 £

e Ve iy

01 .L23rans LON L33HS SIHL

N TWAQUdYIMIIAZY ¥Sa

ﬁ SILON TwHaNID L33HS

HOGVAT

Hg

STl

it

2 R

MIIA 308

(e sl el

it

[y




“ oo 804-0 "] wows e :
[0 TF AT
pi2241) R AUISKIA B
0D+9E} OL 05+161 V1S - INIT ¥ILYM GF10AD3Y e

IWILSAS ¥2IVM QI1DA0Y

A0ILS10 TIO0HOS

B L ey

WAOQUJAYIMIIAIY ¥SQ
QL LJ3r8NS LON LITHS SIHL

SovATT

2

s gt

ey

MIIA 3T08d

Bttt

ety

e B

Nl 2 13

AR

e

Sheets

s

INHOLY

L
B

08+LEL YIS

SELON TWUINIO L33HS

L3S IIS 004961 VIS INHOLYW

60t

338




WD 4y

60i-0

M QISNY

130181}

04+QVE OL 00+9EL VIS - INITYHILYM T TDADTY o

WALSAS HILVM Q310403Y -
L1810 T00HIS UIIAINN O)

WAOYAAVIMIIADY YSa
0L 133rans LON 133HS SiHL

¥ 7

MIIA 3NH08d

ettt

AT

s
H

S3LON TVHINID 133HS

X

a W

MIAIANVId O

INTHO LYW

/15

§338 DL+0FL VLS INIIHOLYH

0M-0 L33H




et

wine

wor ) e pe——. e =
LALBITLL
et |G, ATIUNTA W
004671 OL 02+0pF V1S - INITHILYM GFIDADFY w0
WHLSAS ¥ILVM AF10A034
LORISIO TODHDS nw.u:z: OZ_UOQZmE L SO ey
IVAOHdAVIMAINGY VSa
0L 1D3PENS LON LATHS SIHL

Deset o5 bt i {eger fuah Fere [ et
w0 - ey

SHivazs

HAYATTE

S

ar e eins e

salonaan taans O

o ELE N

Fhogs

S3LON TYUINID 133HS




e

-0

~ E

s

st v ot

05+6YL 0L 0045V VIS - INITHILVM GI0ADY o

WILSAS HILYM GI10A03Y
LYISIA TOOHIS NG ONIQOANIW oy

WAOHdAV/MIIAZY VST
0L 1D3r8NS LON 133HS SiHL

19200200

e
ey

AN

SN Y dnng

B

el

ey

g

£

vAR:

seeint

S3LON TVUINTO 133HS

Z!L‘OLHBHS SES_ 05+6r1 VIS INTTHOLYIY

e




s i i

aisny HUONTSY 5095 { koo o s e s o pg
S St e v

e 20

RITTEA

e

st LY

00+¥51 OL 0S+6V1 VLS - 3NN ¥ALYAM G31DAD3Y
Emkw»,% HILYMA 4310403

prett e N3OWH T

ONIDOANTW Pl o s
TYAQYHAdYIMAIATY vST Ma_% e ,
O.N Fumﬁmbm koz FNMIW m:.t. et Fil i feBvis Wl B Binlsh SHeEty
i i » g TR SRS TSNP UL U S .m
; Fed
5
St ) fettia Tl fR 1Y et

~ SILON TYYINIO 133HS

L0 1330S

€41-0 LIFHS T3S 004451 VIS ANITHOLYW




EbL-g

QISHY

st

s oY

[T lEA TR

08+8S1 OL 00+¥5) VIS - 3N HILVM OFIDADTY «
WILSAS HILVM QI1DADIY

12141810 SHEING ONIDOANIW

bugi

AaheIE

R 505 e i s
Ve 4 s sty

TVAQHAdYIMIIATY ¥Sa
OL LD3rgns LON L33HS SiHL

-

SILON TYYENID 133HS J

peATTE

et

e

VIS

TR VA

REDT

PO LIIHS 3FS 054851 VIS INIIHOLYW

IOV

S




05 perestitan

yil-0

v QishY v [ o [

o i ) g wean qg

oty

0L+€91 OL 054851 VLS - IN(TYILVM OTTOADTH o

WILSAS HIIYM AITIA0TY ey
OHOS TIIHIND ONIDOANIN wony

sy iamngs

[ HEHOTEH

shs L

WAOUAYIMIINDY VSO
OL1378NS LON L133HS SHL

GO oSt i 0273t 013 s Ziss

G2 | - e

_ i 7 EEREES
: CEE s
ll[;l.sm!,]tlli e j S o 1
AN
O

e s

orst s

LN
Wit

INITHO

9L YIS INIHO

251 v1s

SALON VUENID L33HS

HDAIIHSFIS Oi+e

-0 L33HS 338

g
i

£




FIANE 4 - il 301 TIPS
§L1-0 ] srorsst sl

[2:20124%Y
fRieitHy EHEDUE PR Y

05+19} 01 01+£81 V1S - INITHILVM OFTOADDY

WELISAS ¥3LYM Q310A03Y

TWAQUALV/MIINGY VSa
04 L23r8NS LON 133HS SIHL

AJ1E1SIG T00HIS GILUNG ONIDOONTIW s

LTI H

AL ey

v

S3LON TvHINIO L33HS

S+I8L YIS INIHOLYW

81D 133HS 338§

iy
£

s

8053

MIIA 3408d

033

e

LS

3

etk

1
i
-

R

Gt




o s o i

s e

940

~ @ isnY

5

lgzgiz1y

swus gl AN

00+241 OL 0S+L91 VA4S - IHIT ¥ILYM GIT0AITY

WALSAS HILYM GITOADTY vsee
A2Y LS TO0H

SawmnpH RINOTYH Y

sunng g o sty amei

sy
TAQHAIYIMIIATY V5Q
OL LO3rans LON 133HS SIHL
g ot wits st e
o, e o
o , ‘ BT k I
Mwﬂ vvvvv - . - o 5

onen

3

@ i

THOLYIN

S3LON VY3NTD 133HS

L1°0 13IHS 335 00+2LL WIS 3N




aishy

wagHsSY ey

1583 240 o p

19401211

SRS

06+9L} 0L 00224 VIS - INIM YALVM 0F1DA0TY
WILSAS HILYM 0310403

ramNsey

shlacy SO et

TYAOYUdVIMIIAIY ¥Sa
01 123rdns LON 133HS SIHL

> PR

MIIA 3H40ud

s
£,

st Fiorls bt oeiz)

3

st L

oz

ore pes

£33 W

A N

.. M 20

r S3LON TyyINID 133HS




o IR T
191012t . ¥
00+18) O1 05+92} V1S - INIT UILYM OFIDADTY PP
WELSAS ¥ILVM 0TI0A0TY

HOS GILIND ONDOANIN | oo -

WACHIYIMIIATY ¥5q
0L L33rdNS LON L33IHS SIHL

v et
Riln
o S
Zia [Pl
& sz ]
4.~
&
£ skt

SILON THINIO L3FHS

MATCHLINE  STA 181+00 SEE SHEET C-119




58

6L1-0

isoizit

sBONSTY ey

s

28+181 0L 00+181 V1S - SN UIALVM QIT0A0HY  w

LECCE T,

WILSAS MALYM QDAY =

SN )

L3810 TOOHIS QNG ONISOANTN o

TWAQUJJYIMIIASY Y50
01103r8Nns LON 133HS SHL

hadl edmt
ter
i
# 5
2 g
[2 S
ey
iy Lol

S3LON TWUENID 133HS




g s
1w b g

HGHE Y

14 Y]

190141

sus

00+£0Z OL 004002 VLS - INITHILVM ATTOADTY o[ o

WILSAS HALYM QT IDAITY s — -
12141810 JO0HIS GIIFINT ONIOOGNTH secr s T e

iGNz

TR

WAQUAdVIMAINGY VSO
01 103rans LON LI3HS SiHL

ez

NREOIH

L,

ing
ot ™

onzat ERES T

S3LON VUINTD 1330S

LZHOLIIHS 33 004802 VIS INITHOLYIY




s g e Lol ﬂ aisy

19401211

gy

YP50Z 0L 00+£02 V1S - 3NIT WILVM GTIOADIY oo

W3ISAS HILYM O3IDADTY v
AOMISIA TOOHIS AILAINN ONIJOANSW

LR

KINOWH

s L i

B

M ’

WAOYAYIMIIATY YST e,
BT
01 123°8NS 1ON 133HS SIHL e wam - MR 3 1H0¥d e
2]
i

£
5 5
b
26}
i
new

0210 L33HS 3

SALON TWUINID 1330S




&

(44 %]

GisH
=

v

BiOHS 5 [ESEV SRR

180621 i

00+€0€ OL 00+00€ V1S - ANIT HILVM GT1DADZY

WILSAS WILYM GI10ADTY
LOMISIA TOOHIS AIIING ONIDOANIW

[ELTTR IS

v sl
R e
EE P SReVBY e

WAQUIVIMIIAZY VSa
0.1 123rgns LON 133HS SIHL

SH10H TWHANZO 133H8

] P

MIIA ZTI0Ud

gutde 3

et

st

EaUst]

ROUAET

szt




NNGHSRY g

FRERra €710

1801241

s sy

FE+S0E 0L 00+€0¢ VAS - NI MILYA OTOADTY oo™
WALSAS HALVM Q10ADTY

SNRTAL ety

WAQHLdYIMIINIY ¥ST
QL .123rgns 10N 133HS SIHL

E

I et Wi
<

350 L ot

HOAEATTR

sy B a5t

: 2 H
b "4
o i -
Erivey Y Pt {2

NV1d

M3

INITHOLYH

SILON TYUINTD 133HS




P GNW.O 3| aisny . gl g
TR
hiate s AEIRNIR W
LE+207 OL 00+00Y VLS - 3NV NALYM GF1DADTY —

WI1SAS HALVM 0310A03M
LOM181A TO0HDS AIING Oz,ooasz

wwammy S92

Ss sy

SHOwRE e

WAQUdVIMIIAZY ¥Sa
0L 123rans LON LI3HS SIHL

SZLOH TVUINTD 133HS

SRS

o
a1




s MN«...O SEOHS Y siees 2 ek Ay
18401214
st
9+10S 01 00+008 V1S - INI HILYM 0T 1DA0TY
TWAONddY/MIIAZY VST
QL L23r8ns LON LI3HS SIHL

28 TR ¥

SZLON IVYINIO L33HS

B0H408
w

RIIA IT08d

%035

&
L2

/L rgiea A

08 iy T

oo

[

Loty




September 2023 Superintendent’s Report

Wastewater Treatment Plant:

Operators performed routine repair and maintenance to the WWTP in September of 2023. We had a visit
from three SWRCB Regional regulators on 9/19/23. Regulators were very interested to see our airline, and
hear about the progress of the temporary emergency replacement. Over all it was a very positive visit and no
violations or major concerns were identified.

Qutfall Update: Alpha Diving is still waiting on boat repairs and ocean conditions before conducting the
annual survey work. GHD has nearly completed the effluent dilution evaluation, draft results look very
positive.

Recycled Water:

MCCSD did not transfer any recycled water during the month of September. We continue to work with
GHD, the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Financial Assistance, and Senior SWRCB
Environmental Scientists to work on a path towards funding necessary upgrades. The SWRCB DFA
Environmental Scientist are helping to make sure the appropriate CEQA process is being followed. The
current plan is for MCCSD to be the implementing agency for both the MCCSD Recycled Water Supply
upgrades, and the Mendocino Unified School District Recycled water storage and distribution upgrades.
MCCSD will be requesting the funding, and implemented the various phases of the project.

Biosolids Trailer and Transport:
MCCSD did not transport any biosolids in September

Grant and Project Updates:

Staff continue to work with GHD on grant proposals. The MUSD/MCCSD emergency water storage and
supply project went out to bid and only one bid was received. It came in at 56% above budget. GHD,
MUSD, and the Sate DFA are evaluating options. We do not have any updates on the Clean Water SRF
Funding application to assess most all aspects of the WWTP collections and treatment systems. We have had
ho recent communication from ESS or EKI grant writing consultants.

Safetv Meeting and Plant Safety Inspection:
The 30-minute monthly safety meeting was held September 29, 2023. The topic was Back Protection.

Sanitarv Sewer Collection System:
There were no Sanitary Sewer overflow reports for the period April 12, 2023- September 29, 2023




Introductory Notice to Bidders:

Questions Concerning Bid ltems:

Questions concerning interpretation of the General Conditions and Contract Documents, and bid
items shall be directed to:

Mendocino City Community Services District
District Superintendent

10500 Kelly St.

PO Box 1029

Mendocino, CA 95480

707-937-5790

mcesd@mcen.org

Office hours: Monday through Friday, 8:30 a.m to 4:30 a.m.

Meandocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




‘Netice Inviting Bids'

Mendocino City Communiyty Services District

Airline Replacement Project

) Nl 3y,
‘ 02 e e Replat "Any Bids received after the specified time
and date will nat be considered. Fax and other electronically transmitted Bids will not be accepted.

2. Opening of Bids: The Bids will be publicly opened and read at 2:00 p-m., on Wednesday, September
12, 2023, at the above-mentioned office of MCCSD. MCCSD reserves the right to postpone the date
and time for opening of Bids at any time prior to the aforesaid date and time.

3. Description of Work: The performance of all the work and the furnishing of all the labor, permits,
supplies, tools, and equipment to instalf the MCCSD Treatment Plant Airline.

4. Project Costs: The probable cost to perform this work is $50,000.

5. Site of Work: The work site covered under this contract is within the Mendocino City Community
Services District. The needed airline replacement is located at 10500 Kelly St., Mendocino, Ca 95460.

6. Obtaining Contract Documents: The Contract Documents are entitled Mendocino City Community
Services Airline Project. An electronic copy of the Contract Documents may be obtained by
contacting the MCCSD by contacting Katie Bates, District Secretary, by email at
districtsecretary@mccsd.com or by calling (707) 937-5790.

7. Contractor’s License Classification: In accordance with the provisions of California Public Contract
Code Section 3300, MCCSD has determined that the Contractor shall possess a valid Class A license
at the time that the Contract is awarded. Failure to possess the specified license shall render the Bid

as non-responsive and shall act as a bar to award of the Contract to any bidder not possessing said
license at the time of award. :

8. Rejecti‘on of Proposals: MCCSD reserves the right to reject all or any part of all bids submitted, waive

informalities and irregularities, and will, to the extent allowed by law, be bound to accept the lowest,
responsive, responsible bid. g

9. Bids To Remain Open: The Bidder shall guarantee the total bid price for a period of 90 calendar days
from the date of bid opening.

10. Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1771.1, this Project is subject to compliance monitaring
and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). A Contractor may not bid for any
bid proposal submitted for public work without first registering with the DIR and paying the annual

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




fee. Application and renewal are  completed online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-
Works/PublicWorks.html. No contractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public
works project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code
section 1725.5. If you are not registered and are offered the contract for construction will need to
register with DIR prior to MCCSD executing the construction contract,

11. California Wage Rate Requirements: In accordance with the provisions of California Labor Code
Sections 1771 and 1773 as amended, the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in accordance with the standards set forth
in Section 1773 for the locality in which the Work is to be performed. It shall be mandatory upon
the Contractor to whom the Work is awarded to pay not less than said specified rates to all workers
employed by them in the execution of the Woaork.,

12. Project Administration: All communications relative to this Work shall be directed to MCCSD
Superintendent prior to close of business, Monday, September 11, 2023.

Name: District Superintendent, Ryan Rhoades
Address: 10500 Kelly st.

Mendocino, Ca 95460

Telephone: (707) 937-5790

Email: meesd@men.com

District: Mendocino City Community Services District
By: Ryan Rhoades, District Superintendent
Date: August 30, 2023

End of Notice Inviting Bids

Mendacino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




1. Defined Terms

Instructions to Bidders

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders and the Notice Inviting Bids which are defined in the
General Conditions have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions. The term
"Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to District

2. Lacal Business License
All Contractors, not already having a local business license for the work contemplated, will be
required to secure the appropriate license before a Contract can be executed.

3. Interpretations and Addenda

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4

All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed
to the District Superintendent. Additions, deletions, or revisions to the Contract
Documents considered necessary by MCCSD Superintendent in response to such
questions will be issued by Addenda mailed or delivered to all parties recorded by
District Superintendent as having received the Contract Documents. Questions received
less than S days prior to the date of Bid opening may not be answered. Only answers to
such questions issued by formal written Addenda will be binding. Oral and other
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.

Addenda may also be issued to make other additions, deletions, or revisions to the
Contract Documents.

Bidders shall make no special interpretation or inference of intent from differing formats
in the Contract Documents.

Scope of Work:

e Provide and install 240 linear ft of 10” schedule 20; 304 stainless stee] pipe,
including at least 80-90 degree elbows, one “T” with a blind flange, one butterfly
valve, and one 10" saddle intertie.

°  Originating with a flanged connection in the existing MCCSD blower room. The new
pipe will turn 90 degrees north and extend through the exterior wall of the building.

e The pipe will then turn 90 degrees down and drop approximately eight feet along
the north exterior of the building to ground level.

°  Once at ground level, the pipe will turn 90 degrees west and run a distance of
approximately 130 linear feet, approximately 6 inches above the ground.

¢ The pipe will be supported by bracing no less than every 10 ft.

° At the northwest corner of the press building the pipe will turn 90 degrees up along
the exterior of the building. A “T” with a blind flange for future use will be
connected.

e The pipe will continue up the exterior of the wall approximately 8 ft.

°  The pipe will turn 90 degrees and continue through the exterior wall inside the press
building, just below the biosolids conveyor,

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




@ The pipe will be extended south, approximately 24 ft. in total, approximately 80
inches above the ground. It will pass through one interior wall § inches thick. It will
be supported by at least one additional post,

e At the southwest corner of the press building the pipe will be extended through the
southern exterior wall,

e The pipe will then turn 90 degrees down toward the ground and extend
approximately 12 ft., 3-4 feet below grade,

e The pipe will then turn 90 degrees south, and extend underground in a trench a
distance of approximately 36 ft.

e The 36 {t. trench excavation work is not part of the scope of this job, and will be
completed by MCCSD staff

e At this point, the pipe will turn 90 degrees up and extend approximately three feet
above grade. There it will be attached to the existing 10” iron airline. A 10” saddle
connection into the existing airline with two 90 degree elbows is recommended.

e The existing airline must remain in service during construction and installation of the
new ajrline. At no point can the existing airline be disconnected or off line for more
than four hours.

® Intertie connection periods between the new and old airlines will be coordinated
with MCCSD staff to avoid potential treatment disruption.

° Inthe MCCSD blower room, the existing 10” iron discharge airline needs to be cuton
the west end before exiting the building, and a butterfly valve installed.

e The pipe will pass through a total of three exterior walls, and one interior wall, Part
of the job will include make sure the walls are water tight, or weather proof at the
conclusion of the job.

4. Bidder's Examination of Contract Documents and Site

41, It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid:

a. To examine thoroughly the Contract Documents and other related data
identified in the Bidding Documents {including "technical® data referred to
below);

b. To visit the site to become familiar with local conditions that may affect cost,
progress, or performance of the Work;

C. To consider federal, state, and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, or performance of the Work;

d. To study and carefully correlate the Bidder's observations with the Contract
Documents; and

e. To notify the District Superintendent of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or
discrepancies in or between the Contract Documents and such other related
data.

4.2, Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective

Bidders on subsurface conditions, Underground Utilities, and other physical conditions,
and possible changes in the Contract Documents due to differing conditions appear in
Paragraphs 4.2, 4.3, and 4.4 of the General Conditions.

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project

Bid Requirements




4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

5. Bid Forms

Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder will, at Bidder's own expense, make or obtain any
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, and studies and obtain any
additional information and data which pertain to the physical conditions (surface,
subsurface, and underground utilities) at or contiguous to the site or otherwise that may
affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work and that the Bidder deems necessary
to determine its Bid for performing the Work in accordance with the time, price, and
other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents,

On request 2 minimum of 2 working days in advance, the District Superintendent will
provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such examinations, investigations,
explorations, tests, and studies as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of a Bid.
Location of any excavation or boring shall be subject to prior approval of District
Superintendent and applicable agencies. Bidder shall fill alt holes, restore all pavement
to match existing structural section, and shall clean up and restore the site to its former
condition upon completion of such explorations. District Superintendent reserves the
right to require Bidder to execute an Access Agreement with the District prior to
accessing the site.

The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way, and easements for
access thereto and other lands designated for use by the Contractor in performing the
Work are identified in the Contract Documents. All additional lands and access thereto
required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment are
to be provided by the Contractor. Easements for permanent structures or permanent
changes in existing structures are to he obtained and paid for by the District unless
otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.

The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the Bidder
that the Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Paragraph 4 and the
following:

a. That the Bid is premised upon performing the Work required by the Contract
Documents without exception and such means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction (if any} as may be required by the
Contract Documents;

b. That Bidder has given the District Superintendent written notice of all conflicts,
errors, ambiguities, and discrepancies in the Contract Documents and the
written resolution thereof by the District Superintendent is acceptable to the
Bidder; and

c. That the Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and
convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance of the Work.

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




The Bid shall be submitted on the Bid Forms provided by MCCSD. All blanks on the Bid Forms
shall be completed in ink. All names must be printed below the signatures. The Bid shall be ,
submitted in a sealed envelope which shal] be plainly marked in the upper left-hand corner with

the name and address of the Bidder and shall bear the words "BID FORM" followed by the title
of the Contract Documents for the Work, the name of MCCSD, the address where Rids areto be -
delivered or mailed to, and the date and hour of opening of Bids.

5.1. Bid Supporting Documentation. Bidders shall provide in a separate, sealed envelope at
the time of submittal of the Bid, all bid supporting documentation setting forth the
underlying assumptions made by the Bidder in submitting its Bid,

6. Certificates

6.1 Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president, a vice
president, or other corporate officer. Such Bid shall be accompanied by the enclosed
Certificate of Authority to sign, attested by the secretary or assistant secretary, and with
the corporate seal affixed. The corporate address and state of incorporation must
appear below the signature.

6.2 Bids by partnerships must be executed in the partnership name and be sighed by a
managing partner, accompanied by the enclosed Certificate of Authority to sign, and
his/her title must appear under the signature and the official address of the partnership
must appear below the signature.

6.3 Bids by joint venture must be executed in the joint venture name and be signed by a
joint venture managing partner, accompanied by the enclosed Certificate of Authority to
sign, and his/her title must appear under the signature and the official address of the
joint venture must appear below the signature.

7. Disqualification of Bidders

More than one Bid from an individual, firm, partnership, corporation, or association under the
same or different names will not be considered. i MCCSD believes that any Bidder is interested
in more than one Bid for the Work contemplated, all Bids in which such Bidder is interested will
be rejected. If MCCSD believes that collusion exists among the Bidders, all Bids will be rejected.
A party who has quoted prices to a bidder is not hereby disqualified from quoting prices to other
Bidders, or from submitting a Bid directly for the Work.

8. Quantities of Work

The quantities of work or material stated in unit price items of the Bid are supplied only to give
an indication of the general scope of the Work. The Owner does not expressly or by implication
agree that the actual amount of work or material will correspond therewith, and reserves the
right after award to increase or decrease the quantity of any unit price item of the Work by an

Mendocine City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




amount up to and including 25 percent of any Bid item in its entirety, or to add additional Bid
items up to and including an aggregate total amount not to exceed 25 percent of the Bid price.

3. Substitute Or "Or Equal” Items

10.

11.

12.

13.

Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract Documents by
using the name of a particular manufacturer and the name is followed by the words "or equal”,
the Bidder may write the name of a substitute manufacturer (which the Bidder considers as an
"or equal"} in the List of Proposed Substitutions in the Bid Forms. The District Superintendent
will make a determination of approval or rejection of the proposed substitution prior to award of
the Contract. No request for substitution of an "or equal” item will be considered by the District
Superintendent after award of the Contract. The procedure for the submittal of substitute or "or
equal” products is contained in the Bid Forms. The Bidder shall not be relieved of any
obligations of the Contract Documents or be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Pricein
the event any proposed substitution is not approved.

Submission of Bids .
The Bid shall be delivered by the time and to the place stipulated in the Notice Inviting Bids. It is

the Bidder's sole responsibility to see that its Bid is received in proper time and at the proper
place.

Modifications and Unauthorized Alternative Bids

Unauthorized conditions, limitations, or provisions attached to the Bid shall render it informal
and may cause its rejection as being non-responsive. The Bid forms shall be completed without
interlineations, alterations, or erasures in the printed text. Alternative Bids will not be
considered unless called for. Oral, electronic, or telephonic Bids or modifications will not be
considered.

Withdrawal of Bid
The Bid may be withdrawn by the Bidder by means of a written request, signed by the Bidder or
its properly authorized representative. Such written request must be delivered to the place

stipulated in the Notice Inviting Bids for receipt of Bids prior to the scheduled closing time for
receipt of Bids.

Bid Protest

Any Bid protest must be submitted in writing to the District Superintendent before 5:00 p.m. on
the fifth (5*) working day following Bid opening.

a. The initial protest document must contain a complete statement of the basis for the
protest, and all supporting documentation.
b. The party filing the protest must have actually submitted a Bid for the Work. A party

may not rely on the Bid protest submitted by another Bidder, but must timely pursue its
own protest.

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project

Bid Requirements




c. The protest must refer to the specific portion of the bid document which forms the basis
for the protest.

d. The protest must include the name, address and telephone number of the person
representing the protesting party. .
e. The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the initial protest

document and any attached documentation to all other parties with a direct financial
interest which may be adversely affected by the outcome of the protest. Such parties
shall include all other Bidders who appear to have a reasonable prospect of recelving an
award depending upon the outcome of the protest.

f. MCCSD will give the protested Bidder five (5) working days after the receipt of the
protest to submit a written response. The responding Bidder shall transmit the response
to the protesting Bidder concurrent with delivery to MICCSD.

g. The procedure and time limits set forth in this paragraph are mandatory and are the
Bidder's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of Bid protest. The Bidder's failure to
comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to pursue the Bid
protest further, including filing a Government Code Claim or legal proceedings. A Bidder

may not rely on a protest submitted by another Bidder, but must timely pursue its own
protest.

h. If MCCSD determines that a protest is frivolous, the protesting bidder may be

determined to be non-responsible and that bidder may be determined to be ineligible
for future contract awards. )

14, Award of Contract

Award of the contract, if awarded, will be made to the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder -
whose Bid complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise
specified, any such award will be made within the period stated in the Notice Inviting Bids that
the bids are to remain open. Unless otherwise indicated, a single award will be made for all the
Bid items in an individual Bid Schedule.

15. Execution of Agreement

The Bidder to whom award is made shall execute a written Agreement with MCCSD on the form
of agreement provided, shall secure all insurance, and shall furnish all certificates and bonds
required by the Contract Documents within five (5) working days after receipt of Notice of Award
from MCCSD. Failure or refusal to enter into an Agreement as herein provided or to conform to
any of the stipulated requirements in connection therewith shall be just cause for annulment of
the award and forfeiture of the Bid security. If the lowest responsive, responsible Bidder refuses
or fails to execute the Agreement, MCCSD may award the Contract to the second lowest
responsive, responsible Bidder. If the second lowest responsive, responsible Bidder refuses or
fails to execute the Agreement, MCCSD may award the contract to the third lowest responsive,
responsible Bidder. On the failure or refusal of such second or third lowest Bidder to execute the
Agreement, each such Bidder's Bid securities shall be likewise forfeited to the District.

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements




16. Liquidated Damages

Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement.
17. Workers' Compensation Requirement
The Bidder should be aware that in accordance Wi‘ch Section 3700 of the California Labor Code it

will, if awarded the Contract, be required to secure the payment of compensation to its

employees and execute the Workers' Compensation Certification in the form contained in these
Contract Documents,

18. Non-Collusion Affidavit

Bidders must execute the non-collusion affidavit contained in these contract documents and
submit the same with his/her bid.

19. Materials Suppliers List

Bidders must complete the List of Materials Suppliers and Material Guarantee form provided
with the Bid Forms and must submit the completed form with the Bid.

End of instructions To Bidders

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

10




Proposal

To the Mendocino City Community Services District:

The undersigned declares that he/she has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, that
he/she has examined the contract documents, and read the accompanying instructions to bidders, and
hereby proposes to do all the work required to complete the said work in accordance with said contract,
and special provisions for the unit or lump sum prices set forth in the attached Bid Schedules.

It is understood and agreed that the undersigned shall complete the work of the contract within the time
provided for in the Contract Documents governing said work.

If awarded the contract, the undersigned hereby agrees to sign said contract and to furnish the
necessary bonds, insurance certificates, and agreements within five (5) working days after receipt of
Notice of Award of said contract from the District.

The undersigned has examined the location of the proposed work and is familiar with the contract
documents, and the local conditions at the place where the work is to be done.

This project requires a Class A California State Contractor's License.

Contractor's License No. 1086158 License 23 Class

Expiration Date of Contractor's License January 31, 2024

A bid submitted to a public agency by a contractor who is not licensed shall be considered nonresponsive
and shall be rejected by the public agency. The undersigned contractor declares that the contractor's

license number and expiration date stated herein are made under penalty of perjury under the laws of
the State of California.

Contractor: Cronin's Custom Metals

Signed by: M/ - O..L g

Address:

30940 Sherwood Rd, Fort Bragg, CA 95437

Dated this l1ith day of _September , 2023

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

11




Non-Collusion Affidavit
To Be Executed By Bidder and Submitted With Bid

The undersigned declares:

tam the Owner/sole proprietor of Cronin's Custom Metals, the party making the foregoing
bid. The bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership,
company, association, organization, or corporation. The bid is genuine and not collusive or sham. The
bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid,
The bidder has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or
anyone else to put in a sham bid, or to refrain from bidding. The bidder has not in any manner, directly
or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the
bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of
any other bidder. All statements contained in the bid are true. The bidder has not, directly or indirectly,
submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged
information or data relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, tompany, association, organization
bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not
paid, and will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose. Any person executing this declaration on
behalf of a bidder that is a corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, limited

liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents that he or she has full power to execute, and
does execute, this declaration on behalf of the bidder.

7

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct and that this declaration is executed:

on: _9/11/2023_ {dare],

at: Fort Bragg [city], California [state].

End of Non-Collusion Affidavit Form

Mendocine City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

12




Questionnaire

The following statements as to experience qualifications of the Bidder are submitted in conjunction with

the proposal as part thereof, and the truthfulness and accuracy of the information is guaranteed by the
Bidder. '

The Bidder has been engaged in the contracting business under the present business for years,
Experience in work of a nature similar to that covered in the proposal extends over a period of
years.

The Bidder, as a contractor, has never failed to complete a contract awarded to contractor satisfactorily,
except as follows:

List all claims and lawsuits presented or filed in the last five (5) years, regardless of the form, regarding
any public works project: '

The following contracts for work have been completed in the last three (3) years for the persons, firm or
authority indicated and to whom reference is made:

Type of Work-Size, Length and

Year Location and for Whom Performed
Contract Amount

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

13




The following complaints have been made against the Bidder's co

ntractor's license within the past ten
{10} vears:

Date: Nature of Complaint:

l, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the
foregoing is true and correct.

Signature of Bidder

Ryan Patrick Cronin
Name of Bidder

End of Questionnaire

Mendacino City Comununity Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

14




Assurances for Compliance with Federal Laws and Regulations

The Contractor is required to comply with the following federal laws and regulations:

e Non-discrimination in Employment in accordance with Executive Order 11246 of September 24

1965 entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity" as amended by Executive Order 11375 of
October 13, 1967

s

Debarment in accordance with the Executive Order 12549 and Executive Order 1 u46
®  Anti-kickback in accordance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874)

e Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards in accordance with Sections 103 and 107 of the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.5.C.327-330)

Ido solemnly declare and affirm that | am obligated to comply with the above Federal laws and
regulations. It is understood that non-compliance with any one of the above Federal laws and
regulations will be sufficient reason to cause termination of the contract,

ALz 9/ 13

Signature of Prime Contractor Date

Ryan Patrick Cronin, Owner/Sole Proprieter

Print Name and Title

Mendocino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

i5




Debarment and Suspension Certification

Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 29

The bidder, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, he/she or any other person
associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, and manager:

e Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibility by any federal agency;

¢ Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any federal
agency within the past 3 years;

e Does not have a proposed debarment pending; and

® Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of
competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past 3
years.

if there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exceptions in the following space,

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining bidder
responsibility. For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and
dates of action.

Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanctions. The
above certification is part of the Proposal. Signing this Proposal on the signature portion thereof shall
also constitute signature of this Certification.

Mendacino City Community Services District Airline Project Bid Requirements

16




Cronin’s Custom Metals

30840 Sherwood Rd, Fort Bragg, CA 95437
License # 1086158  Phone: /707-813-4593  Email: ryan.cronin24@gmail.com

Proposal for MCCSD Aitline Replacement Project

9/11/2023

Mendocino City Community Services District
Attn: Ryan Rhoades, District Superintendent
10500 Kelly St

Mendocino, CA 95460

707-937-5790

mcesd@men.com

Scope of work:

approximately 240 feet of 10" schedule 20 pipe that connects the existing compressor/blower to
the sewage tank.

24 flanges and 8 - 90 degree elbows and 1 "T".

Pipe connects to blower, exit’s building #1, runs outside for roughly 130" then Enters building #2,
punches through interior wall and goes over door way and exits building#2. Pipe then travelsinto
a ditch (made by someone else) to the sewage tank, and ties into old infrastructure.

all welds are single pass MIG 1/4" fillets with tri mix gas.

all pipe will be fabricated and installed using all‘304 stainless material and hardware.

exterior pipe supports made of pressure treated wood.

Price of bid included a materials, labor, and installation

Bid amount $101,645.70




Exclusions/Additional work:

butterfly value, will do time and materials. Prices of valve vary greatly depending upon different
manufacturers.

Equipment rental, will use skid steer provided on job site to move pipe into place. Any additional
equipment will be an additional cost.

' will cut and cover 10” holes into buildings and will do my best to waterproof. | talked to a local
contractor who would make it 100% waterproof if needed for an additional fee .

We look forward to working with you!
Feel free to call if you have any questions.

material cost disclaimer: Due to the volatile nature of the current metal market, all bids are
based on material cost and availability at the time of the initial bid, and will be revised to reflect
the actual cost at the time of sale.




Ryan Rhoades

From: Ryan <ryan.cronin24@gmail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 8:53 PM

To: Ryan Rhoades

Subject: Airline Final bid clarifications

Attachments: Airline Bid Doc.docx; Untitled attachment 00040.txt

Thanks for the call today! Now to address the few items | left open ended / not 100% clear.
1) butterfly valve - If you 8uys supply the valve, | will install it no additional charge to bid.

2) extra equipment - | don’t think we will need anything besides the skid steer provided. If there is some unseen reason
we need additional equipment there will be a change order.

3) waterproofing- | am a metal contractor, by no means a carpenter. | will do my best to waterproof the 3 exterior holes,
no guarantee they will be 100% water proof!




Memo

To: MCCSD Board of Directors
From: District Superintendent
cc: Jim Jackson

Date: September 26, 2023

Re: Groundwater Management Report

The 2022-23 Rain Year

October 1, 2022 was the beginning of the 2022-23 rain year. Average annual precipitation in Mendocino
is 39.72 inches, and average rainfall in September is 0.59” inches. 0.49” inches of rainfall has been
measured in the District for the month, as of September 25, 2023 (Figure 1, Table 1).

2022-23 Rainfall, Inches

12.00 -
- i EG.:!C‘
1000

B.OG

400
700
kel O AT LR
~0L3" 0887 0B o3
OO0 — M*WWWWM@MM%%@
fiar 4 June gy Aug sept
&onth
wenms 2022-25 Bai g By Bz 8 DA thiy
‘ Oct Mo Dec Jar Feh Mar Apr May June July Al
2022-23 Rainfall 045 4,28 7.91 .70 454 10.80 1.61 1.54 015 015 0.2z
2022-23 Cumulative 0.45 471 1262 2232 26.86 3776 350.537 40,91 41.08  41.21 41.43
Average Monthly 2.29 4.99 715 7.09 5.55 5.97 2.98 1.41 047 007 .20
Av.Cumulative 2.29 7.28 1443 21.532 28.05 32072 36.95 38.39 38.86 38.83 3915

2022-23 Rainfall to Date: 41.92
43 yr Annual Average Rain: 3872
Percent of Annual Rainfall: sy

Figure 1, Table 1




Total Rainfall for Rain Year 2021-22 was 33.82” inches. Mendocino received 85% of normal annual
rainfall during the last water year. By September 25, 2023, total rainfall since October 1, 2022 was
41.92" inches, 106% of average annual rainfall.

| DAILY TOTAL RAINFALL ]
; 2223 Flaasin T Fas
| Loainde F9AE"
Data Feom : Cormmurenty Service Distrct 1AM Lo LT G0F
Day Dt | How | Dec Jan Feb Y ar e Tay Jun Jul dug Sep
i 005 | 003 004 001 104 0z 001 001
& 032 06 103 006 0.0 a0l
3 foe | oo 132 047 (105
4 002 | 0ER | 030 154 03 141 0.02 0oz IR}
5 0ot | o007 | 03t .24 10z 05 133 001 {0z a0t
] 001 | 05% | 010 104 1 na 07 0l 0.01
7 83| 102 140 07 004 04 0o1
G 01z | o1 (145 ool 007 11,34 105 001
9 149 .28 003 L% 0ot 0o 0oz 001
10 003 oo | oan 014 .35 {105 02
11 age | 01l | o024 071 035 002
2 002 1 003 oo 128 {14h 001 111}
13 o2 oand | oon2 (66 147 111 not 001
14 00t 117 .15 118 ool
15 g2 ool 0.0z 02 001 101 001
1E o0l 101 oot 001
17 101 001 131} 0.0% Uk}
15 00z 003 {147 07 a2 a0l 001
14 oot 1)) 015 a0z 1) 0.0z 103
20 oot 1) 00z a0l o0t
21 .05 024 020 1ee (.05
22 am 1.4 {104 ane
23 (o2 047 02 X! 001
24 1 00t
2 003 039
26 153 oot 153
a7 0d | s {134 122
o 016 .25 05 401
24 173 009 008
K1l L3 | b3 003
) Ly (.24 0
Sum 045 | 426 | 731 970 454 1040 LE1 154 115 115 (.2 043
Conrt 13 14 2h 13 14 2k 12 11 8 11 14 4
M et w17 140 (.86 147 074 140 165 og 06 (.39
. Rainy Days 175 Tlater vear Total Rairdal 419
Maarmm Dy Raindal 197 I |

Table 1

2022-23 Rainfall Record




September 2023 Depth-to-Water (DTW)

The average DTW measurements District-wide in the 24 monitoring wells on September 25, 2023 was
17.84" ft.. DTW averages are about 0.75 ft. lower than August of 2023, about 0.37 ft. better than August
of 2022, and about 2.09 ft. better than August of 2021. Compared to an above average rain year like
2019, which received 45.64" inches, or 115% of average annual rainfall, the average depth to water in

September is currently about 0.87. below that of 2019.

Figure 2 September 2023, Depth-To-Water Chart

Average Depth-to-Water in Mendocino

o o o [eo) o o < (@] o i —t vt i o Ll =i Lo o o™ ~N o
o C O 0O O O C 0O 0O 0o 0O 000060 20 o
™~ ™~ ™~ o NN N ™ o~ o NN N o~ ™~ o™ ™~ o8 ™ ™~
583z ggdsgggggidaocg
OOOOQOCOOOOOODQOOOOOO
4.00
20,
600 .....S8/2002019
16.97 ft
8.00
th.OO
-
& 12.00
=
14.0
- 0
R
-
e
QlS.DO
&
18.00
20.00

22.00

24.00

9/25/23
17.84 ft

9/20/22
18.21 ft

8/22/20
20.26 fi.

9/22/21
20.93 i

Following the Water Shortage Contingency Plan. The MCCSD Board declared on April 19, 2023 that
no water shortage exists within the MCCSD boundaries. According to the Water Shortage Contingency
Plan, (p. 14) “Calendar for Declaring Water Shortage,...If a water shortage is not declared by the end of
May, no further evaluation is required until the following January 31.” MCCSD staff will continue to
monitor and follow the plan. The water table is on average at its lowest during the next two months. The

Superintendent recommends continued caution and consarvation.




